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1 Ceonnected to our Past, Wells Fargo & Company (NYSEEWF() isa
Focused on our Future diversified financial services company —
From the 1850s to the 2000s, our values
are the same. Sixteen of cur team member
tell you how.

providing banking, insurance, investments,
mortgage and consumer finance from more
than 5400 stores, tha industry’s [eacing

17 Toour Owners . . st ¢ ot
. L - net si eli foX n T
Chairman and CZ0 Dick Kovacevich internet site (welisfergo.com) and otner

reports on 2001, and our progress in distribution cnannels across North America,

market share growth and service quaiity. Our corporate headquarters is in San Francisco
24 Serving our Communities: but we're decentralized so alt Welis Fargo

"The Good We May Render” “convenience points"—stores, ATMs,

We contribute an average of $175,000 Phone Bank™ centers, internet and direct

a day to non-profits across the USA.

Our goal: help all our communities
grow and Drosper. customers’ financial needs and helping

mail —are headguarters for satisfying all our

. . e them succeed financially.
29 The Businesses of Welis Fargo y

i 1 .l H To bm
We're o.ne o?‘ North Am'erzcas k rgest, Assets: $308 billion
most diversified financia! services

. , . . Rank in size among U.S. peers: 5th
companies. Here's how the pieces fit. nsize gus.p >

Market value of stock: $74 pililon

Rank by value of stockamong U.S. peers: 3:d
Fortune 506G rank: 62

Team members: 120,000

3% Board of Directors, Corporate Officers,
Senior Business Gfficers

33 Financial Review
54 Financial Statements
97 independent Auditors’ Report

108 Sharechoider information

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS In this report we male forward-looking staternents about our company's financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives and future
performance end business. When we use the words “estimats,” olen,

o "a

‘expect,” "intend, project,” “target,” “can,” "could,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions, we are making
forward-looking statements. These statements involve risks and uncertainties. A number of factors — many beyond our control —could cause results to differ from those in cur forward-
looking statements. These factors include: « changes in political, business and economic conditions, including changes in interest rates + competition from other financial services companies
- fiscal and monetary policies » customers choosing not to use banks for transactions  legislation, including the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act - the integration of merged and acquired companies
- future mergers and acquisitions. We discuss in more detail on pages 36-39 these and other factors that could cause results to differ from those in our forward-looking stetements. There are
other factors not described in this report that could cause results to differ,

© 2002 Wells Fargo & Company. All rights reserved.
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Connected to our Past, Focused on our Future.

On this 150th anniversary of Wells Fargo, we asked 16 team members—one for each decade —to reflect
on a special person or event from that time that still influences our company today. These 16 team members
represent the diversity of our businesses, from virtually every segment of the financial services industry.
They represent the diversity of our geography across North America. They represent the cultural diversity
i of America itself. Most amazing, they represent a company still thriving and growing under its founding
name, still doing what it was created to do, still identified with its founders’ vision, still reinventing itself.
Very few companies are still as connected to their past and focused on the future as Wells Fargo is today.

1848 U.S. population: 23 miflion
California Gold Rush,
California, Minnesota,
Oregon statehood

Gold discovered
in California

1855

Survived financial panic

WELLS,FARGOZ C? |

——

1852

Wells Fargo founded,
$300,000 capital




of a talented and skilled team
leader, the same type of person
we try to hire today.”

“George Monroe was the epitome

Sanford Livingston, Commercial Banking, California: “In the 1870s, we had an
African-American stagecoach driver by the name of George Monroe. He took
President Grant on the ride of his life into Yosemite Valley. Grant later wrote that
Monroe ‘drove six horses as one’and was 'the finest reinsman [ ever saw. |'ve
always thought Monroe was the epitome of a talented and skilled team leader,
the same type of person we try to hire today.”

Iron ore,“King Wheat,”

w Minneapolis “flour capital of the
© world,” Rockefeller’s Standard Oil;
cQ North Dakota, South Dakota,

e Montana, Washington statehood

1888

Wells Fargo "Ocean to Ccean’express
service; The North Western Bank:
“ordinary routine work must be dropped
instantly when a customer is waiting”

L

1882

Wells Fargo handbook: “Proper respect must
be shown to all—let them be men, women,
children, rich cr poor, white or black”

4 CONNECTED TO OUR PAST




Kathy Petersen, Community Banking, ldaho: “One of our
predecessors—the old North Western Bank in Minneapolis—had
a cashier named James B. Forgan who made every team member
sign a ‘List of Duties’on September 10, 1888. His ‘General Rule
No.1' read: ‘The ordinary routine work of the office must be
dropped instantly when a customer is waiting for anything

and his business attended to first’ Here we are 114 years later
and it’s still our No.1 operating rule for customer service.”

Magdalen Mui, Community Banking, California: “Cassie Hill
is one of my role models. Talk about heroes! Her husband dies
suddenly and she becomes the Wells Fargo agent in a tough,
railroad town for 23 years. And she’s also raising five kids as a
single mom! She lived to be 102 years old. We named one of
our operations centers after her. She still inspires us today.”

Depression,

1890

1897

Spanish-American War, . .

@Mg aztomobiles r:'\otion Wells Fargo’s John Valentine, Wells Fargo adapts refrigerator

N pictures Wyt;ming (daho from messenger to president railroad cars for express service

@Fﬁ and Utah statehood State Loan Company (Welis Fargo

Financiaf} founded, Des Moines, fowa
-
1

1895 circa 1899
Wells Fargo postal
service ends
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1900s

“We really care.
That’s how you build
solid relationships.”

Melissa Stearns, Community Banking, South Dakota: "l think one of the important keys

to our success over the years is how our team members are involved in their communities.

We really care. That's how you build solid relationships. One of my favorite examples from

a hundred years ago is Miss Julia Jones. She was a Wells Fargo agent in a rural mountain town.
She also was postmistress, a small business owner and a schoolteacher. 'm active in my community
of Hot Springs, South Dakota. | live and work alongside my customers and their children,
volunteering in our 4-H Clubs and our county fair. That’s what community banking is all about.”

| us. population: 75 million,
Wright brothers,
| Ford Motor Company,

1907 panic,
J.P.Morgan’s U.5. Steel
o

1900s

1200

Railroad magnate
Edward Harriman gains
control of Wells Fargo

1208

Architect Louis Sullivan designs
“Gateway to the West” bank,
Owatonna, Minnesota
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1205

California banker
{saias Hellman becomes
Wells Fargo president

1906

San Francisco earthquake and fire,

Wells Fargo telegram: “Building Destroyed.

Vault intact, Credit unaffected.”

lowa Security Co. (Wells Fargo Home
Mortgage) founded (Waterloo, lowa)




Northwestern National Bank Review
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K.C. Kidder, Corporate Team, Minnesota: “Growing up in the Midwest, you learn how important
the weather is. It's always been that way. | get a kick out of reading about how we shared this
information with our customers and shareholders for many years. In our Bank Review in May 1911,
for instance, there was ‘good news": ‘It is very gratifying to be able to record the fact that there has
been precipitation of abundant moisture in the two Dakotas and Minnesota to put the ground in
excellent condition for seeding.’ It sounds quaint, but it was very important to know. it still is.”

I Wwl, Federal Reserve, 1913 1278
A o . htar
5 \ ;FOQI;;SSI:IE era, Prohibition, Wells Fargo and The North Western 10,000 Wells Fargo express offices
= | Ae.w exico, hood National Bank join Federal Reserve “consolidated” by government as
(@)} | Arizona statehoo wartime measure; one Wells Fargo
= | banking office remains
4 A
T i
i

“ 1915
I

Wells Fargo creates employee pension/benefits
. plan; starts express service to Chicago, NY;
| 4-day coast-to-coast express service

circa 1888-1918
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“One of our 7irst acls back in the

"20s read, Would We Buy [t
Ourselves?—Is the Eirst and Elnal

Test of Every Security We Sell or
Recommenc. Integrity matierea
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then. It still coes today.”
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Anne Copeland, Private Client Services, California: “We've sold stocks publicly to investors as far back as

the 1850s. In the 1920s our chief investment officer, William Gabriel, decided to “broaden” our trust and
investment services and organize them into an Investment Department. One of our first ads read: ‘Would
We Buy It Ourselves? —Is the First and Final Test of Every Security We Seil or Recommend. Integrity mattered
more than anything else back then. It still does today.”

Great Depression, banking
and investments separated,
FDR's New Deal,

Social Security, Hoover Dam,
Golden Gate Bridge

1930s

= Pomi—
Fﬁﬁﬂﬂ LiOYD'S
C ATy

1937

Paramount produces
“Wells Fargo”

T

[

1933

Depression-era Glass-Steagall Act forces
Northwest to divest securities business;
Northwest suspends dividends until 1939;
no Northwest depositor loses a dollar

i
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Kathy Slote, Commercial Real Estate, California: “The 1930s Melanie Locke, Consumer Deposits, Minnesota: “After World War {1,
may have been the toughest decade our country ever endured. people knew the world was changing. They could see the consumer
So, 1 like what was said about Minnie Phelan, one of our senior emerging as a powerful force in our economy. John Burgess, one

managers in Omaha during the Depression: ‘Some people believe  of our senior credit officers, wrote a speech about it in 1942 titled
that the holding of the Office of President of the United States by “Where Do We Go from Here?” He said "Well, this | know! We are

a woman is within the range of possibility a generation or two on our way to learning a lot more about Consumer Credit than we
ahead. If women are to go that far in statecraft, who shall say how knew before... | conceive it to be the duty of banks to continue
far they yet may go in the world of economics and banking, in to be in the installment lending business. | believe it to be a good
view of the greater recognition today of their abilities in finance.”” business.’ Now, it’s hard to imagine our business without it.”
Big Band era, 1947 1949
w | wwi, .
' Punch card tabulators Northwestern National
© | atomic bomb, Bank of Mi i
g United Nations, Northwest processes an '? fnneapolis
Q 600,000 items per da unvetis
— | ColdWar | P Y Weatherball:
|-
circa 1942 1946 “When the Weatherball is Red
Warmer Weather is Ahead.
Consumer instaliment loan When the Weatherball is White,
boom begins Colder Weather is in Sight.

When the Weatherball is Green,
No Change in Weather is Forseen.
If Cofors Blink, by Night or Day,
Percipitation’s on the Way.
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“It's important to rededicate
ourselves to a great idea and
the people who thought of it.”

\
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Shaffi Poswal, Wells Fargo Services Company, Texas: “There’s a picture of one of our community banks—
in Owatonna, Minnesota— I really like. It tells me that the design of a bank building can stand for certain
values. Architect Louis Sullivan was hired in 1908 to design a bank building that he called “gateway to

the west” The building was rededicated in 1958 and the New York Times wrote: ‘In recent years, architects
have recognized it as one of the great buildings in the United States and the outstanding one in Minnesota.’
To me, it's important to rededicate ourselves to a great idea and the people who thought of it.”

U.S. population: 150 million, 1952 1955 1957
g f:;::r::::g"r‘;g‘;gzzc_'"e' Drive-in banks Jet transport Tales of Wells Fargo TV show
W | alaska, Hawaii statehood of paymints The Music Man, Broadway musical,
@ (580 mph) features “Wells Fargo Wagon” song
il

1956

Northwest Bancorporation
“grandfathered” under
Federal law to sell insurance

FOCUSED ON OUR FUTURE 11




“’Forty years of dealing with
people in a service way—

that is the precious thing

Mrs. Harholt remembers. That'’s
what | hope to remember, too.”

Bill Lock, Phone Bank, California “l work on the phones all day and rarely see my
customers face-to-face, but | feel responsible to them. Then, | saw this newspaper report
from the 1960s about Catherine Harholt, one of our team members who was retiring after
forty years. It said: ‘Forty years of counting coins and sheaves of beautiful green currency
are at the end. Be a pretty dull thing to look back on. But forty years of dealing with people
in a service way — that is the precious thing Mrs. Harholt remembers.’ That’s what | hope
to remember, too.”

Vietnam War; 1960 NOB | 1962 1969
w K.ennedys, , Wells Fargo Bank, CISTRD Northwest Bancorporation First ATMs
© | King assassinated; h NYSE.
%) e American Trust (NOB) on NYSE
Civil Rights Act,
(@)Y Company merge
man on moon
=
1
1
Northwest Growth Fund 1961
(Venture Capital} Computer “data”
centers

12 CONNECTED TO OUR PAST




19705

1980s

Oriol Segarre, Island Finance, Puerto Rico: "We're successful as Mary Grommesch, Wells Fargo Insurance, Minnesota: “In the 1980s,
a company because we value diversity as a key business factor. when Norwest faced bad foreign debts, problems in farm lending,
One of Wells Fargo’s chairmen, Ernie Arbuckle, said it well in May uncertainties in the mortgage business, and our headquarters
1971:'l do not think we can validly try to forecast or plan for the building in Minneapolis burned down, our CEOQ, Lloyd Johnson,
future without taking social change into consideration. To put reinvented our company with his “control, profit and growth” strategy.
it in very simple terms, we are experiencing a revolution in ‘Trust is the key word,’ he said. ‘When mutual trust is achieved, stand
values from quantity to quality. Economically, it takes the form back and watch out—your company will be transformed. A trusting,
of revolution from an industrial society to a service society. caring company is a company without politics. It is a company

Sociologically, it is a movement from uniformity to diversity.

1970s

> American Bicentennial,

m ”

of team players.’ Today, we have over 120,000 team players.

Watergate, 1975 1977

Northwest Bancorporation $7 billion assets Wells Fargo processing

oil crisis and inflation, P
3 million items per day

California’s Proposition 13 Wells Fargo & Company $12 billion assets
“taxpayers’ revoit”

1976

Money market funds, asset allocation,
portfolio management, indexed funds

Wells Fargo & Company (WFC) on NYSE
FOCUSED ON OUR FUTURE 13




Ed Miranda, Wells Farge Home Mortgage, lowa: “When we look Art Buckiey, Corporate Banking, Texas: "Back in 1852, our

back on the ‘90s, | think we'll see it as the decade when we really company started as a ‘partnership’among investors. Today,
began to understand the value of technelogy. One of the great our success as a sales and service team still depends on our
accomplishments occurred when team members such as Gailyn ability to partner for the financial success of our customers.
Johnson, the manager of our internet initiative, said our banking The more we partner, the more successful we are —and the

services needed to be available to our customers ‘anytime,

more successful our customers are. Another way of saying it

anywhere.” With that, one newspaper said: ‘Wells Fargo’s virtual is:our history is our future.”
stagecoach has cruised onto the information superhighway.’
Today, we're the world’s #1 internet bank.”

Trillion-doilar U.S. budget, 1982 'EEQ_FE 1983 1986 1089
8 g::\s;:al::zpslt;:é Fire destroys ENE Norwest name Wells Fargo-Crocker 57-story Norwest Center
€0 diverlsif?ed ﬁngncial s'ervices Northwest B ¥BE o | adopted merger opens, Minneapolis
& era of bankin convenience' Bancorporations
= 9 headquarters building
| -

1980

Wells Fargo Trade Bank
alliance with HSBC

74 CONNECTED TO OUR PAST

1988 US Banker names
CEOs Lioyd Johnson (Norwest),
Carl Reichardt (Wells Fargo),

e By 24-hour phone

WELLS FARGO BANK

banking service “bankers of the year”

Wells Fargo online

circa 1985 banking introduced




“The more we partner, the more
successiul we are—and the
MOre successiul our customers
are. Another way of saying it is:
our nistery is our future,”

Economic boom, 1990 1992 1994 1996 1998
Y So.wet Union coll‘apse's, Norwest assets: Wells Fargo wellsfargo.com Norwest awards Norwest-Weils Fargo
© | Midwest and California floods, -
RN e-mail (30,000 mps) $31 billion to launches PartnerShares stock merger creates $186
(@) ' P $89 billion by 1997 national smail Part Sh @ | options toteam billion diversified financia
= business banking annersnares members services company
~ 4
. 1991 1996 gangE
R A ) aaniy + WELLS
</ % @R £\ | Norwest Mortgage-USA's Wells Fargo-First EEREE. FARGO
4 ‘ . , No. 1 mortgage lender Interstate merger circa 1997
05 ; i
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“Henry Wells and Wiiliam Fargo helped
create a new American industry, the
express business, significantly reducing
time and distance relative to money
and information. They knew what
their customers wanted and they gave
it to them — dependability and
convenience, security and trust, plus
outstanding service.They believed
in the power of ordinary people to
accomplish extraordinary things. That
spirit lives today as we prepare for
the ‘Next Stage’ of success for our
team members, customers,
communities and stockholders.”

Dick Kovacevich, Chairman and CEO

U.S. population: 284 million, 2000

wd millennium, financial services ,

© | consolidation, collapse gfzéoslfﬁinknfff':::a’ VIIEILILES
© of dot.coms ymerg Fﬁ\%@
% Fortune’s "most o

£ admired bank”
; PRTONE
iy “\Wiost v

2001
Assets top $300 billion

Wells Fargo processes
20 million items a day
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To cur Owners,

First, Let's Look at 2007 Earnings per share of $1.97 for
2001 decreased 15 percent from the previous year. That
was disappointing. This decrease was due primarily to a
$1.1 billion non-cash special charge in the second quarter
to write down the value of our venture capital portfolio
and other assets.

Earnings per share, excluding this special charge,
increased 14 percent, a very respectable performance given
the challenging economy. Core revenue, which excludes
market-sensitive revenue™ and acquisitions, increased 13
percent for the year and 16 percent for the fourth quarter.
To increase earnings, excluding the special charge, and core
revenue by double-digit rates —during a recession, extreme
interest rate volatility and the decline of the stock market —
was an extraordinary accomplishment by our 120,000
team members. Few companies in any industry did that in
2001. Pm very proud of the way our people responded to
these challenges, earned more of their customers’ business
and provided great service.

The lower-than-expected profitability for 2001 was
caused principally by accounting rules that resulted in the
company recording a $1.1 billion after-tax charge to write
down the value of our venture capital portfolio and other
assets including the stocks of technology companies. Let me
explain what happened. The market value of technology
stocks soared in 1999 and 2000. We sold more than $2
billion in venture capital investments during that time but,
in hindsight, we should have sold even more. Accounting
rules forced us to recognize certain investments at the then
market value even before we sold the stock.Thus we
recorded unrealized gains as current income even though
we believed it was not prudent to do so because of the
volatility of these stocks, lack of sufficient liquidity, and
certain restrictions on their sale. These gains, which
management viewed as unusually large and not sustainable,
were largely offset by non-recurring charges including
integration and merger expenses. When the value of these
stocks plunged in early 2001 and their recovery seemed
uncertain, we wrote down their value accordingly. Neither
the accounting “write up” nor the accounting “write down”
involve cash. We believe accounting rules would be more
conservative and appropriate if unrealized gains and
losses were tracked as part of comprehensive income on
our balance sheet. Thus, current income gains or losses
would be recognized only when the stocks are actually
sold — as individual investors would do.

*Includes net venture capital gains, fimited partnership income and net investment securities gains.

We continue to be strongly committed to our venture
capital businesses. Celebrating their 40th anniversary in
2001, they are among the oldest and most successful of
their kind in the U.S. Even including the second quarter
special charge, the average annual rate of return on
investments by our venture capital businesses has been
more than 50 percent the past five years, over 20 percent
the last 40 years.

Diversity and Discipline The diversity of our revenue sources,
loan portfolio and geography continue to help us weather
economic cycles. Money is the basis of our business.
Money never declines. Money just moves. Our job is to
be there with the right products, service, convenience,
and sound financial advice when customers decide to move
their money. For example, stock market declines made
2001 a tough year for our investment businesses. Because
many customers did not invest further in stocks, our
community banking regions benefited from higher deposit
balances. Core deposits rose more than $24 billion or 16
percent from year-end 2000. Our mortgage company
took advantage of low interest rates and a tidal wave of
refinancing, setting records for earnings, originations ($194
billion, up 155 percent) and its servicing portfolio ($488
billion, up eight percent). For the second year in a row,
Wells Fargo was the #1 mortgage originator in the nation.
Commercial loan volume slowed considerably but fee
income rose at double-digit rates—and we’re gaining
new commercial and corporate banking customers every
day. As the economy has slowed, our credit losses and
non-performing loans (generally those 90 days past due
in principal and interest payments) increased during the
year consistent with economic conditions.

A Different Economy The economy and recent world events
are unlike anything most of us have ever experienced.
A global war against terrorism is a first for our country.
The recession that began early in 2001 also is a first.
It is the first with historically low unemployment (still far
below that of the early ’80s or early *90s), the first with
virtually no inflation, the first with interest rates— from
mortgage rates to the prime rate—at recent all-time lows.
Despite this unusual environment, we enter 2002 with
optimism and momentum. For the fourth quarter 2001
compared with fourth quarter 2000:
e cash earnings per share were 80 cents, up seven percent,

FOCUSED ON OUR FUTURE 17




o earnings per share were 69 cents, up six percent, and

° core revenue rose 16 percent.

Signs point to a U.S. economic recovery by the second half
of 2002. More than a trillion dollars in institutional funds
and perhaps another trillion dollars in consumers’ funds
are waiting to be invested in the stock market. Billions

of dollars of fiscal stimulus have been pumped into the
economy. There is an energy “tax cut”: oil and natural gas
costs today are about $150 billion less than early last year.
Mortgage refinancing and other loan rates have reduced
consumers’ interest costs nearly $100 billion. Inventories
are at record lows which means production should
increase as demand increases. Productivity has been quite
strong even though the economy has slowed. Consumer
confidence has dropped to the lowest level since the 1983
recession but is showing signs of recovering. Yes, oil
imports could be disrupted. Terrorist attacks could reoccur.
There is no doubt, however, that the free world eventually
will win this war. No one should ever bet against the
tenacity, resilience, ingenuity, spirit and determination of
the American people. Demand for products and services
will rebound. I am also optimistic because the U.S. financial
services industry, especially banking, is generally in good
shape, compared to the recessions of the early *80s and the
early *90s. Our industry will provide the financial support
required for an economic recovery.

Progress Toward our Vision Even with all this challenge
and change, much has #ot changed for our company.

Our vision— to satisfy all our customers’ needs, offer them
sound financial advice and help them succeed financially—
has not changed. Our financial services vision, our business
model, our strategy, our values, our focus on outstanding
sales and service, our commitment to safeguard our
customers’ assets and financial information, our belief in
people as a competitive advantage — none of those have
changed. We are capable of producing double-digit
revenue growth whether the economy is growing or
contracting, in peace or war, if we continue to execute

our business model successfully and earn more of our
customers’ business. This is, admittedly, a stretch goal

but we’re proud to shoot for it.

Our greatest opportunity is right in front of us. We
simply have to convince more of our own customers of the
compelling price-value reasons for giving Wells Fargo the
business they’re already giving someone else. We need to
provide customers such valuable advice that we will help

18 CONNECTED TO QUR PAST

them succeed financially. We must deliver exceptional
service that exceeds their expectations. Every day our
current customers give 75 percent of their financial services
business to our competitors! When our customers do give
us more of their business—everyone benefits. We can give
them a better deal. They save time with one-stop shopping.
They stay with us longer. They give us more opportunities
to satisfy their needs. They can access their finances when,
where and how they want to across many distribution
channels, anytime, 24/7. We can serve them better and our
stockholders can earn higher, more consistent profits.

We have another advantage. We’re competing in the
world’s largest, most exciting, dynamic and fragmented
industry. It’s ripe for consolidation and market share gains.
Financial services is a $2.5 trillion industry —seven times
that of banking. Wal-Mart has 55 percent of the discount
retail market. Home Depot has 32 percent of the home
improvement industry. What’s the market share of the
largest player in financial services? About three percent!
Like Wal-Mart and Home Depot, we view ourselves as
a distributor. In our case, we’re a distributor of financial
services products, whether we make the product or someone
else does. We’re not a product-centered company but a
customer-centered company. We’re focused not on selling
checking accounts, credit cards or mortgages but on
helping our customers succeed financially, satisfying their
needs to borrow, save, invest, and insure their assets.

To measure our progress in market share growth, four
years ago we created 10 strategic initiatives. Here’s a
progress report:

1. Investments, Trust, Brokerage and Insurance This is,

by itself, a $1.4 trillion industry — more than half the

size of the entire financial services industry. Therefore,

it’s our single biggest cross-sell opportunity. Our customers
put about 50 percent of their assets in investments

and insurance. They bring us less than a third of that.
Five or six years ago, less than five percent of our profits
came from investments and insurance. Today it’s about

16 percent. We need to reach at least 25 percent. If we do,
we’d still only be halfway there. To help us get there, we’re
expanding our network of financial consultants. We have
one banker for every 1,600 of our banking households. We
have one broker per 9,000 banking households. To
address this imbalance, we made two key acquisitions in
2001. With the addition of H.D. Vest—a network of mare
than 6,000 independent tax professionals and financial




Qur Performance

% Change
(S in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000 2001/2000
AS REPORTED
FOR THE YEAR
Net income $ 3423 $ 4,026 (15)%
Net income applicable to common stock 3,409 4,009 (15)
Earnings per common share $ 1.99 $ 236 (16)
Diluted earnings per common share 1.97 233 (15)
Dividends declared per common share 1.00 .90 11
Average common shares outstanding 1,709.5 1,699.5 1
Diluted average common shares outstanding 1,726.9 1,7184 —
Profitability ratios
Net income to average total assets (ROA) 1.20% 1.61% (25)
Net income applicable to common stock to average
common stockholders’ equity (ROE) 12.79 16.31 (22)
Total revenue $ 20,150 $ 19,708 2
Efficiency ratio 64.0% 60.0% 7
Average loans $163,124 $145,577 12
Average assets 285,421 250,188 14
Average core deposits 167,946 145,793 15
Net interest margin 5.36% 5.35% —
AT YEAR END
Securities available for sale $ 40,308 $ 38,655 4
Loans 172,499 161,124 7
Allowance for loan losses 3,761 3,719 1
Goodwill 9,527 9,303 2
Assets 307,569 272,426 13
Core deposits 182,295 156,710 16
Common stockholders’ equity 27,150 26,221 4
Stockholders’ equity 27,214 26,488 3
Tier 1 capital 18,247 16,096 13
Total capital 27,253 23,024 18
Capital ratios
Common stockholders’ equity to assets 8.83% 9.63% 8)
Stockholders’equity to assets 8.85 9.72 9)
Risk-based capital
Tier 1 capital 6.99 7.29 (4)
Total capital 10.45 1043 —
Leverage 6.25 6.49 4)
Book value per common share $ 16.01 $ 1529 5
Team members (active, full-time equivalent) 119,714 108,727 10
CASH NET INCOME AND RATIOS*
FOR THE YEAR
Net income $ 4,183 S 4,663 (10)%
Net income applicable to common stock 4,169 4,646 (10)
Diluted earnings per common share 2.41 2.70 {11)
Profitability ratios
Net income to average total assets (ROA) 1.52% 1.94% (22)
Net income applicable to common stock to average
common stockholders’ equity (ROE) 25.31 30.89 (18)

¥ Cash net income and profitability ratios exclude goodwill amortization, the reduction of unamortized goodwill due to sales of assets and nonqualifying core deposit intangible
(CDI) amortization. The ratios also exclude the balance of goodwill and nonqualifying CDI. Nonqualifying core deposit intangible (acquired after reguiatory rule changes in 1992)
amortization and average balance excluded from these calculations are, with the exception of the ROA ratio, net of applicable taxes. The pretax amount for the average balance of
nonqualifying CDI was $1,062 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, The after-tax amounts for the amortization and average balance of nonqualifying CD! were $96 million
and $659 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2001. Goodwill amortization and the reduction of unamortized goodwill due to the sales of assets and the average
balance of goodwill (which were not tax effected) were $610 million, $54 million and $9,514 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2001.
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advisors—we’re now offering investment and insurance
products to two million more individuals, families and
small business customers. Our acquisition of Acordia —
one of the nation’s largest independent property and
casualty insurance brokers —has more than tripled our
insurance sales force. We’re now the fifth largest insurance
broker in the United States. We want all our customers to
consolidate their banking, investments and insurance
business with Wells Fargo.

2. Going for“Gr-eight”! We want to increase to eight the
number of products our average banking household and
business customer have with us. We’re making progress
but not nearly fast enough. We now sell an average of 3.8
products to every banking household compared with

3.3 when Norwest and Wells Fargo merged in late 1998.
We can and must do better. We estimate the average U.S.
household has 15 financial services products! Our share

of banking deposits in a given market might be 25 to

30 percent but in those same markets our share of total
household financial assets is only about three percent.

The number of commercial and large corporate customers
who have eight products with us rose 16 percent in 2001
but the average is still less than four. To save our customers
time and money and earn more of their business, we
introduced packages of related products and services
called Wells Fargo Packs™ in the second quarter of 2001.
More than 17 percent of our new retail banking customers
bought four or more products from us by year-end 2001.

3. Doing It Right for the Customer We want to be
advocates for our customers and put them at the center
of everything we do. We want to give them outstanding
service each and every time, so they’ll give us all their
business, honor us with repeat purchases and rave about
us to their family, friends and business associates.

One year ago we told you about cur company’s single
biggest opportunity for continued double-digit revenue
growth and a higher stock price— the quality of our
customer service. We still have a very long way to go but
our people have made outstanding progress. Last year
we identified our company’s Top 10 customer service
issues and we are scheduled to have fixed all 10 of them
by mid 2002:

1. Qur 6,700 ATMs are now immediately available to
our customers virtually 100 percent of the time. Our
computer network is available 99 percent of the time.
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2. We virtually eliminated delays in posting loan, deposit
and credit card payments and resolving offsets to
online dollar transaction postings.

3. We virtually eliminated delays in getting customers
their deposit account statements and reduced by
57 percent the number of missing items in customer
account statements.

4. We reduced by half the number of bad or poor
photocopies of customer checks. By using new
technology, we’ll soon be able to deliver copies to
customers via e-mail.

5. Our error rate on customer statements is down a
dramatic 78 percent since last year.

6. Our error rate for new account opening information
has declined 33 percent. ‘

7. Our average response time for our Phone Bank
centers and store transactions now is well within
customer expectations.

8. Thanks to more training and better communications,
our customer-contact people know more about
our products. They’re answering more customer
questions on the spot rather than referring them
to our Phone Bank representatives.

9. Because we're doing less manual processing of paper
checks in our banking stores, our input errors are
down 20 percent from a year ago. They’re down
35 percent in our banking states that are processing
deposits of five checks or less electronically.

10. Our commercial loan hubs—serving all 23 of our
banking states—are meeting all their service level
agreements 95 percent of the time— more than
double the year-end 2000 rate.

Having fixed last year’s Top 10 service issues, here’s
our new Top 10:
1. Make our deposit statements more customer-friendly,
2. Make our fraud detection process even more effective,
3. Make internet service available more consistently
to our commercial and corporate customers,
4, Reduce error rates in our new loan account process,
5. Eliminate more paper from the process when
customers open new deposit accounts,
6. Create a process to respond even faster to customer
questions and problems,
7. Ensure correct publishing of all customer 1-800
numbers—so our customers know where to go to get
what they need.




8. Speed up the process when our customers change
account addresses,
9. Check back with customers soon after they open
accounts, and
10. Make it easier for customers to bank with us across
state lines by standardizing more procedures.

This new list will be even more challenging than the first

set because these issues are more complex. We’ll have to

meet a higher standard of performance than ever before.

However, if we want to achieve our goal of reducing by at

least half the annual rate at which we’re losing customers,

then we must be willing to reach for the “Next Stage™® of
success in service quality. It will rake teamwork, persistence
and commitment. I do not know of another company with
more talented team members that has made such a service
commitment, dedicated the resources to do it, and made
measurable progress.

Fixing broken processes is a must—but it’s not enough
by itself to ensure world class service each day, every time.
The real foundation of service quality is the way we think
about service, our attitude. We’ve learned to measure
progress not just through our own eyes but from our
customers’ points of view. Reducing total error rates may
make us feel good but if the remaining errors are clustered
in certain pockets they could still inconvenience a
significant number of customers. In the “Next Stage” of
our service quality initiative we’re asking: what does the
entire customer experience feel like at Wells Fargo? We
may provide customers with very acceptable photocopies
of checks when they ask for them. We may post their
payments and deposits on time. Qur ATMs, Phone Bank
centers and internet banking may be fully available to
them every hour, every day. And vet, overall, customers
may believe our service still is only about average—and
we may not even know it! As a result, we also need to
answer these questions:

e When customers come to us with their problems, how
fast do we fix them?

o How often does a Wells Fargo team member —the
first point of contact for a customer— take personal
responsibility to make sure the customer’s problem
is fixed?

o Are we making it difficult for our customers to learn
more about the full array of our products and services—
and if so how can we make it easier for them?

e Are we using information technology in the best ways
to serve our customers faster?

4. 100 Percent Bank and Mortgage/Home Equity Cross-Sell
We want all our mortgage and home equity customers

in our banking states to bank with us and we want our
banking customers who need a mortgage or home equity
loan to get it through Wells Fargo. Only 14 percent of our
customers who are home owners have a mortgage with us.
Among our mortgage customers, only about seven percent
have a home equity loan with us even though we’ve made
significant market share gains. We originated more home
equity loans in 2001 than any of our competitors in our
23 banking states. We’re #1 in home equity market share
in Alaska, California, Colorado, Minnesota, Montana,
Nebraska, Nevada and Wyoming and #2 in Arizona,
Idaho, New Mexico and Oregon. Our national home
equity market share rose from 2.2 percent in June 1999

to 3.0 percent at June 2001.

5. Wells Fargo Cards in Every Wallet We must make sure
every one of our bank customers has a credit card and
debit card with us. Two years ago 21.2 percent of our
banking households had a Wells Fargo credit card. Today
it’s 23.1 percent. Three years ago, 59 percent of our
checking customers had a Wells Fargo debit card. Today
it’s 83 percent (industry average: 62 percent}. Almost 12
percent of our business checking accounts have a Wells
Fargo business debit card —compared with virtually zero
at the start of 2001. Our Wells Fargo Purchasing Card —
enabling employees of our commercial and corporate
customers to pay for travel, equipment and supplies under
employer guidelines —increased sales 20 percent and
revenue 27 percent in 2001,

6. When, Where and How We want to integrate all our
delivery channels—stores, ATMs, our Phone Bank
service, our online banking site, direct mail, interactive
video —to match them with when, where and how our
customers want to be served. The most exciting example
of our “when, where and how” progress is the continued
rapid growth of wellsfargo.com, our fastest growing
delivery channel. It’s evolving from a transaction center
to a relationship center. Our goal is to virtualize the bank.
We’re making outstanding progress toward offering and
selling any product or service via the internet that we offer
through our other channels for consumers, investors, small
businesses and middle market and large corporations:
e Nearly a third of our checking customers have signed
up to bank with us online. #1 among ALL banks!
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o We have nearly three million users (six months active) for
our internet banking service and the number of our cus-
tomers who pay their bills online rose 44 percent in 2001.
We sold more than 600,000 products online to
individual customers in 2001. That includes $1 billion

in mortgages and $1.4 billion in home equity loans,
giving us 18 percent national market share in online
home equity originations. #1 among ALL banks!

More than 275,000 small businesses bank with us
online (one-stop for secure payments, payroll, insurance

[}

e}

and e-commerce services). We started this service

only 19 months ago. Enrollments in 2001 jumped 138
percent. Almost one of every four small businesses in
our 23 banking states that bank online do it with us!

#1 among ALL banks!

Nearly 12,000 of our middle market and large corporate
customers bank with us online with one sign-on for

<]

treasury management, international services, trust and
investments, credit and loan services and purchasing.
We started this service only 16 months ago. In 2001 we
signed up an average of 800 new customers every
month. #1 among ALL banks!

We started later than our competitors in internet
brokerage but we’re already the only financial services
company to be in the Gomez Advisors’ Top 10 for both
online banking and online brokerage. OQur discount

brokerage revenue rose 24 percent in 2001.

s}

7.“Information-Based Marketing” We must use technology
to take full advantage of what we know about our
customers, while respecting and protecting the privacy of
their personal information. We want to offer the right
product to the right customer at the right time at every
point of customer contact to save them time and money.
For example, in advance of customer requests for credit,
we now use technology to store pre-filled applications that
shorten the approval process. In 2001, more than one
million customers who applied for loans and credit cards
benefited from the faster turn-around time.

8. Be Our Customers' Payments Processor We must
make sure Wells Fargo adds real value that enables us

to be the intermediary —electronic or paper —whenever
and wherever our customers buy services. Payment
transactions —such as checking, cards, direct deposits,
treasury management, and wire transfers—account

for more than $3 billion in revenue.
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9. Qutstanding Customers We must keep all our high
value customers and attract more of them by earning
more business from households that can become high
value customers. Almost half a million of our banking
households now use our Wells Fargo Portfolio
Management Account™ (PMA®) product, a consolidated
statement of account balances with value pricing that we
believe is the most comprehensive of its kind in our
industry. These households have $87 billion in balances,
up 38 percent from year-end 2000. They buy an average
of 7.31 products and have average relationship balances
of $186,000.

10.People as a Competitive Advantage We must continue
to develop, reward and recognize all our team members,
and build an inclusive work environment and a more
diverse organization. The diversity of our business allows
us to shift team members from slower growth to faster
growth businesses. As a result, compared to our peers, the
total number of people who’ve not found positions at
Wells Fargo— or who’ve chosen to leave the company —
after their job was eliminated has been relatively small the
last three years. For example, new technology made one
of our online customer service centers obsolete in 2001.
We were able to place more than half the affected team
members in similar positions at a Wells Fargo Phone Bank
center in the same community, We continue to make
people diversity — respecting and valuing all the ways
we’re different—a priority in all our business decisions.
Our markets are more diverse ethnically than ever before.
In California, for example, the so-called “minorities”

are now the majority. There are more Latinos in the
United States— 35 million—than the total population

of Canada. To help more Mexican nationals in the
United States access financial services, we were one

of the first U.S. financial services companies to accept
identification cards issued by the Mexican government as
a second form of identification for opening bank accounts.

150 Years—What Does it Mean? This is an historic year
for our company. On March 18, 2002 we began the
celebration of our company’s 150th anniversary —the
signing of charter documents by Henry Wells, William
Fargo and other investors to provide banking and express
services on the American frontier, Today we’re one of
America’s oldest, continuous brands—still connecting
one market to another, connecting customers to




the “Next Stage” of their success, connecting them with
information and their wealth. We’re part of a very select
group of American companies. As far as we’ve been able
to tell, only about a dozen or so Fortune 500 companies
have been around longer than we have, still doing what
they were created to do, still using their founding name,
still identifying with their founders’ vision. If we continue
providing outstanding service—the implicit promise of
our brand—T have no doubt our customers will entrust
us with more of their deposits and investment “nest eggs”
and come to us for sound financial advice because we’ve
been around 150 years through all economic cycles and
national crises.

It’s a rare company that outlives the average human
being. Qur company has survived and prospered about
twice that. How did we do it? By constantly reinventing
ourselves. Wells Fargo has survived for 150 years— from
stagecoaches that went five miles an hour to e-mail at
30,000 miles a second—because it’s been a uniquely
capitalistic enterprise. From decade to decade it has not
been afraid to take advantage of “creative destruction.”

It has continually adapted new technology to create better
ways to save customers time and money. In the 1870s, for
example, it recognized it was not a stagecoach company —
it was a connecting company. It became an express
business using ocean steamers and the railroad. It became
a secure, cost-effective competitor in local mail delivery. In
the 1890s it adopted the refrigerator railroad car to move
fresh vegetables east, making California the agricultural
capital of the world. It diversified into hauling passengers,
goods, the mail and money. It became a modern day UPS,
Federal Express, Postal Service, Greyhound bus line and
bank all rolled into one. Wells Fargo continued to reinvent
itself in the 20th century. It diversified beyond traditional
banking and into financial services including mortgages,
investments, and insurance, by giving customers choices
for when, where and how they wanted to be served:
through traditional banking stores, supermarket banking,
ATMSs, Phone Bank centers, the internet and mail, Our
150th anniversary also reminds us of the priceless value of
our brand. The stagecoach carried valuables for customers
to help them pursue prosperity, achieve their dreams of
financial success, connect and correspond with their
friends and families. It visually represents our values—
trust, security, dependability, outstanding service and
convenience. It also represents one of the founding

values of America: “the pursuit of happiness.”

Connecting to the “Next Stage” of Success As we celebrate
150 years of service we thank our team members—

all 120,000 —for helping connect our customers and
communities to the “Next Stage” of their success.
You’re simply “the best.” We thank our customers-—all
20 million of them—for entrusting us with their assets
and their financial transactions. We thank our
communities— thousands of them across North
America—for the privilege of helping them grow and
prosper. We thank you— our owners— for your
confidence and support of Wells Fargo.

We look to the future with great excitement—just as
Henry Wells and William Fargo did in 1852. Henry Wells
once wrote “This is a Great Country & a Greater People!”
He and William Fargo had boundless faith in America,
faith in the caring, creativity, and resourcefulness of people.
So do we. In the 1860s, someone asked Henry Wells what
it takes to succeed in business. “There is one very powerful
business rule,” he responded. “It is concentrated in the
word— ‘courtesy’.” In the 21st century we call it “service.”
Always putting our customers’ needs first. Asking them the
right questions. Listening to their answers. Offering them
sound financial advice and the best products to help them
achieve their financial goals. Giving them such great
service that they’ll want to give us all their business and
recommend us to their family and friends. That was the
vision of Henry Wells and William Fargo in 1852. It’s still
our vision today. We’re ready to achieve the “Next Stage”
of success and start down the road of the next 150.

It’s going to be a great ride!

Richard M. Kovacevich, Chairman and CEQ
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Serving our
Communities:
"The Good We

May Render”

“May we all remember,” wrote one of our founders, Henry Wells, “our lives are
not measured by the number of years and days we exist, but by what we
accomplish while we do live, and the good we may render our fellow man.”
Today we call that community invoivement. it means doing good by doing
well. If every segment of our communities prospers then Wells Fargo does too.
In that sense, community involvement is part of our vision: to satisfy, through
advice and service, all our customers’ financial needs and help them succeed
financially. We have no doubt Henry Wells would have agreed. That commitment
continues today —150C years since our founding —in every community in
which we do business. in just the past two vears, we contributed more than
$128 miilion to more than 10,000 non-profit organizations across America,
an average of more than $175,000 a day. Five of those 10,000 stories follow.
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A Tale of Teamwork (left) In St. Louis, Missouri, where one out

of three people rent rather than own homes, two Wells Fargo
businesses partnered to help more people become homeowners.
Thanks to Wells Fargo Home Mortgage and its Capital Markets
business, two non-profit housing agencies will split $250,000 to
build 30 homes.

Thomas Neary of Capital Markets took action when the
Wells Fargo Housing Foundation chose St. Louis as a recipient
of a Focus Communities Challenge Grant. “We had just started
planning our annual Fall Classic golf tournament and knew there
was an opportunity to help the local organizations raise their
matching funds,” said Neary.

“The tournament raised $150,000, more than the agencies
needed to qualify for the $100,000 challenge grant,” said Earl
Moore, Wells Fargo Home Mortgage store manager.

Construction begins in 2002, and team members (opposite
page, clockwise from left) Neary, Tony Collins, Moore and
Rena Marion are already seeing the fruit of their teamwork.

Banking on Qur Future™ — 100,000 Times Over It's estimated
90 percent of high school graduates do not understand basic
financial concepts or the importance of disciplined savings.

A new on-line program—designed by Wells Fargo, Operation
HOPE and SmartForce—is helping reverse that trend by teaching
basic banking and money management skills.

The new financial literacy program-—Banking on OQur Future—
helps students like those above in the fifth grade at Cesar Chavez
Academy in East Palo Alto, California. Guided by Wells Fargo
team members, including Miriam Nallie (left) and Robert Pietri
(right), students learn how to balance a check book and do math
exercises that involve banking principles. “The students really
engage in the program and understand the value of what theyre
learning,” said Pietri. “One student said that she couldn't wait
to get home and teach her parents what she learned.”

By the end of 2002, more than 100,000 students across the
country are scheduled to be introduced to basic financial literacy
principles through this free program.
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What a Difference Thirty Hours a Year Makes In a society where
40 hours is an average workweek, 30 hours a year might not seem
like a lot of time. It's making a huge difference, however, at the
Accelerated School, a charter school in South Central Los Angeles,
where all parents are required to commit 30 hours of service a year
to the school. Parents volunteer in the classrooms during the week
and on weekends, are involved in the school’s decision making,
and attend parent workshops and enrichment classes.

“The founders of the Accelerated School wanted to create
a family environment where every child is viewed as gifted and
where families are active in education,” said Scott Bottles (above),
president of the school’s Board of Trustees and senior managing
director for Wells Fargo Capital Markets.

26 CONNECTED TO OUR PAST

The Wells Fargo Foundation presented the founders with
a $200,000 grant 10 years ago to help make the school a reality.
“Wells Fargo believed in the founders’idea and their ability
to create a completely new kind of school,” said Bottles.

Students at the Accelerated School score on average over
100 percent higher on standardized tests compared to their peers
at other schools in the south L.A. community. The school also has
received national recognition, named Time magazine's Elementary
School of the Year.

When the school opened in 1994, students enrolled on a first-
come basis. Demand now is so high a lottery is used. After the
campus expansion is complete, the school will more than triple
its current enrollment of 270 and serve students in pre-K through
12th grades.

Wells Fargo recently contributed $1 million to the school’s
capital campaign, chaired by Paul Watson, head of Commercial
and Corporate Banking.




Pursuing the American Dream When Assistant Police Chief
Rudy Landeros (right) appealed to banks in Austin, Texas, only
Wells Fargo responded. “Chief Landeros realized many robbery
victims in Austin are Mexican nationals who carry large amounts
of cash,” said Wells Fargo Bank President Rick Burciaga. “We
offered them a secure place for their funds and a way for them
to access more financial services.”

This initiative had nationwide implications. It paved the way
for Wells Fargo to accept the Matricula Consular as a primary
form of identification for opening a bank account in all 23 of
the Company’s banking states. Partnering with the Mexican
government, issuer of the Matricula, Wells Fargo was among the
first financial institutions in the United States to actively promote
acceptance of the card.

Personal bankers such as Fernando Montemayor (center)
and Laura Lara-Hughes (left) make banking products available
to Mexican nationals every day.

In just the first three months of the program, more than 20,000
Mexican nationals across the USA became Wells Fargo customers.
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HELP-ing Entrepreneurs Succeed More than two dozen Hmong
entrepreneurs in St. Paul, Minnesota, are now ready to grow
their businesses thanks to a program created by Wells Fargo
and the Vang Pao Foundation. Some of the entrepreneurs head
family-owned businesses, others own small service companies,
but thanks to the program all have a better chance for success.
Participants in the Hmong Entrepreneur Learning Program (HELP)
do market research, learn the importance of establishing and main-
taining good credit, and create a case study outlining their business
objectives. “The nine-week program helps Hmong entrepreneurs
integrate their business plans into the mainstream business
community,” said Joel Jackson (above), business banking manager.
“HELP connects the talents of team members, community leaders,
educators and Hmong for the benefit of the entire community.”
The program grew from a relationship Wells Fargo began with
the Hmong community over 10 years ago, and is the first step in
creating a national Hmong entrepreneur training program.
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The Businesses
of Wells Fargo

We compete in virtually every segment
of the financial services industry and
we're market [eaders in many of them.
Here’s how one of North America’s most
diverse financial services companies

fits together.

O Community Banking ............. 40%
C  Investments & Insurance ......... 15%
3 Home Mortgage/Home Equity ...13%
O Specialized Lending .............. 12%
2 Wholesale Banking ............... 10%
O Consumer Finance ...............J 6%
* Commercial Real Estate ............ 4%

Diversified Financial Services—
Not Just Banking We're one of
the USA's most diversified financial
services companies—a diversity
that has enabled us to weather all
economic cycles.

Based on historical averages and near future
year expectations

Wells Fargo Banks The USA's most
extensive banking franchise, from
Van Wert, Ohio to Bethel, Alaska,
incfudes 12 of the nation’s 20
fastest growing states.

Wells Fargo Financial The store
network of Wells Fargo Financial
(consumer finance) stretches
from Saipan in the Pacific through
Canada, across the USA, and into
the Caribbean.

Welis Fargo Home Mortgage
Through its stores and its presence
in our banking stores, Wells Fargo
Home Mortgage is the USA’s largest
originator of home mortgages and
has the most extensive franchise.
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The Businesses of Wells Fargo

Markets Size Customers Team Performance
Members

Community Banking
California and Border Banking California and $62.5 billion’ 3.7 million? 13,900 California’s #1 home equity lender;

San Diego, Calif. to Border Banking new household growth

Brownsville, Texas more than triple company average
Western Banking Ariz, Colo, 1d, Nev.,, $63.4 billion' 4.1 million? 17,900 Added 530,000 First Security

N.M,, Ore., Texas, households in seven states

Utah,Wash., Wy.

North Central Banking Ak, IIl, Ind., towa, Mich,, $36.4 billion’ 1.7 million? 9,600 Added 149,000 National Bank of Alaska,
Minn., Mont, Neb.,N.D, Brenton Banks (lowa) customers
Chio, 5.D., Wisc.
Private Client Services USA $137 billion 975,000 6,100 Added H.D.Vest, tax preparers
managed and financial planners
Business Banking/ USA/Canada $38 billion* 6.5 million 7,000 USA's #1 small business lender,
Consumer Lending #2 debit card issuer
Internet Services Global 5 million 3 million 1,600 Among top 10 for online banking
unique visitors active users and online brokerage®; #1 for
monthly consumers, small business, large

corporate customers

Wells Fargo Home Mortgage USA $194 billion 4.2 million 19,700 #1 in USA in originations, #2 servicing
originations
$488 billion
servicing

Home Equity USA $25.5 billion 711,000 2,500 #1 market share growth among peers;
portfolio #1 internet home equity lender

Corporate Trust USA 10,000 issues, 2,500 980 Rated North America’s #1trustee
$482 billion
in debt
securities

Norwest Equity Partners USA $1.5 billion 77 active 29 Among USA’s oldest, most
(nep.com) capital and investments successful venture capital firms;
commitments 40 years old in 2001

under mgt.

Norwest Venture Partners $1.5 billion 100 active 25
(norwestvp.com) capital and investments
commitments
under mgt.

Wholesale Banking

Commercial Banking Ariz,, Calif,, Colo, td, IIl., $28 billion' 12,000 2,700 Added 900 First Security Customers
Minn., Mo., Nev,, Ore,,
Utah,Texas, Wash., Wisc.

Corporate Banking USA $358 million 1,600 380 Shareowner Services rated
revenue #1 for customer service
Capital Markets USA $15.5 billion’ 23,500 1,000 Interest rate hedging transactions up 50%
Internationat USA $1.3 billion’ 14,000 660 Foreign Exchange, Trade Service
#1 for internet delivery
Insurance Services USA $5.8 billion 2.9 million 5,600 Added Acordia, one of USA's largest
premiums property/casualty insurance brokers;

USA's #5 insurance broker business

Asset-Based Lending USA $6 billion' 1,300 960 New offices: Atlanta, Cincinnati, Dallas

Eastdil USA $6.5 billion® 85 USA’s #1 real estate investment bank

Institutional Investments USA $146 billion 1.1 million® 2,700 Wells Fargo Funds rated among
managed’ top 10% for service

Commercial Real Estate USA $8.7 billion’ 400 430 Continued expansion: east, southeast USA

Wells Fargo Financial USA, Canada, Caribbean $16 billion* 4.7 million 12,100 Earnings up 12%, receivables up 17%

! assets 2 households * transactionvalue * receivables ° Gomez Advisors ° 401(k}participants
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Qverview

Wells Fargo & Company is a $308 billion diversified financial
services company providing banking, insurance, investments,
mortgage banking and consumer finance through banking
branches, the internet and other distribution channels to con-
sumers, commercial businesses and financial institutions in
all 50 states of the U.S. and in other countries. It ranked fifth
in assets and third in market capitalization among U.S. bank
holding companies at December 31, 2001. In this Annual
Report, Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries (consoli-
dated) is referred to as the Company and Wells Fargo &
Company alone is referred to as the Parent.

On October 25, 2000, the Company completed its merger
with First Security Corporation (the FSCO Merger). First
Security Corporation (First Security or FSCO) survived as a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The FSCO Merger
was accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method of
accounting and, accordingly, the information included in the
financial review presents the combined results as if the merger
had been in effect for all periods presented.

Certain amounts in the financial review for prior years
have been reclassified to conform with the current financial
statement presentation.

Net income in 2001 was $3.42 billion, compared with
$4.03 billion in 2000. Diluted earnings per common share
were $1.97, compared with $2.33 in 2000. The decreases
in net income and earnings per share were due to second
quarter 2001 non-cash impairment of public and private
equity securities and other special charges of $1.16 billion
{after tax), or $.67 per share. Apart from these charges,
very strong growth in business revenue more than offset
the impact of higher credit losses on 2001 profits.

Return on average assets (ROA) was 1.20% and return
on average common equity (ROE) was 12.79% in 2001,
compared with 1.61% and 16.31%, respectively, in 2000.
Excluding non-cash impairment and other special charges
ROA was 1.60% and ROE was 17.13%.

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis was
$12.54 billion in 2001, compared with $10.93 billion a year
ago. The Company’s net interest margin was 5.36% for 2001,
compared with 5.35% in 2000.

Noninterest income was $7.69 billion in 2001, compared
with $8.84 billion in 2000. The decrease was due to approxi-
mately $1.72 billion (before tax) of impairment write-downs
in the second quarter of 2001 reflecting other-than-temporary
impairment in the valuation of publicly traded securities
and private equity investments, partially offset by increases
in gains on sales of securities available for sale and mortgage
banking income.
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Revenue, the total of net interest income and noninterest
income adjusted for the $1.72 billion (before tax) of non-cash
impairment, increased from $19.71 billion to $21.87 billion,
or 11%.

Noninterest expense totaled $12.89 billion in 2001,
compared with $11.83 billion in 2000, an increase of 9%.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in salaries and
incentive compensation resulting from increases in full-time
equivalent staff and higher commissions due to record mort-
gage originations. Expense growth also included the effect of
acquisitions, particularly Acordia, the fifth largest insurance
broker in the U.S.

The provision for loan losses was $1.78 billion in 2001,
compared with $1.33 billion in 2000. During 2001, net
charge-offs were $1.78 billion, or 1.09% of average total
loans, compared with $1.22 billion, or .84%, during 2000.
The allowance for loan losses was $3.76 billion, or 2.18%
of total loans, at December 31, 2001, compared with $3.72
billion, or 2.31%, at December 31, 2000.

At December 31, 2001, total nonaccrual and restructured
loans were $1.64 billion, or 1.0% of total loans, compared
with $1.20 billion, or .7%, at December 31, 2000. Foreclosed
assets were $171 million at December 31, 2001, compared
with $128 million at December 31, 2000.

The ratio of common stockholders’ equity to total assets
was 8.83% at December 31, 2001, compared with 9.63% at
December 31, 2000. The Company’s total risk-based capital
(RBC) ratio at December 31, 2001 was 10.45% and its
Tier 1 RBC ratio was 6.99%, exceeding the minimum regu-
latory guidelines of 8% and 4%, respectively, for bank hold-
ing companies. The Company’s RBC ratios at December 31,
2000 were 10.43% and 7.29%, respectively. The Company’s
leverage ratios were 6.25% and 6.49% at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively, exceeding the minimum regula-
tory guideline of 3% for bank holding companies.




Recent Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement No. 141 (FAS 141), Business Combinations,
and Statement No. 142 (FAS 142), Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.

FAS 141, effective June 30, 2001, requires that all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting; the use of the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting is eliminated. FAS
141 also establishes how the purchase method is to be applied
for business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. This
guidance is similar to previous generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP); however, FAS 141 establishes additional
disclosure requirements for transactions occurring after the
effective date.

FAS 142 eliminates amortization of goodwill associated
with business combinations completed after June 30, 2001.
During the transition period from July 1, 2001 through
December 31, 2001, goodwill associated with business combi-
nations completed prior to July 1, 2001 continued to be
amortized through the income statement. Effective January 1,
2002, goodwill amortization expense ceased and goodwill will
be assessed for impairment at least annually at the reporting
unit level by applying a fair-value-based test. FAS 142 also
provides additional guidance on acquired intangibles that
should be separately recognized and amortized, which could
result in the recognition of additional intangible assets, as
compared with previous GAAP.

After January 1, 2002, the elimination of goodwill amorti-
zation under FAS 142 is expected to reduce noninterest expense
by approximately $600 million (pretax) and increase net
income by approximately $560 million (after tax), for the
year ended December 31, 2002, compared with 2001. The
Company expects to complete its initial goodwill impairment
assessment to determine if a transition impairment charge
will be recognized under FAS 142 and record any transition
adjustment in first quarter 2002. At December 31, 2001, the
Company had $9.53 billion of goodwill, $5.50 billion of which
related to the 1996 purchase of First Interstate Bancorp. The
Company has determined that impairment of the remaining
First Interstate goodwill is not permitted under FAS 142 since
the former First Interstate operations must be combined with
other similar banking operations for impairment testing.

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143 (FAS
143), Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, which
addresses the recognition and measurement of obligations
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets.
FAS 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets resulting from the acquisition,
construction, development or the normal operation of a
long-lived asset. FAS 143 requires that the fair value of an
asset retirement obligation be recognized as a liability in the

Table 1: Ratios and Per Common Share Data

($ in millions, except Year ended December 31,
per share amounts) 2001 2000 1999

PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Net income to average total assets (ROA)

Net income applicable to common stock to
average common stockholders’ equity (ROE) 12.79 16.31 17.55

1.20% 1.61% 1.78%

Net income to average stockholders’ equity 12,75 16.20 17.35
EFFICIENCY RATIO (1 64.0% 60.0% 58.8%
CAPITAL RATIOS
At year end:
Common stockholders' equity to assets 8.83% 963% 9.79%
Stockholders’ equity to assets 8.85 9.72 9.90
Risk-based capital @
Tier 1 capital 6.99 7.29 8.00
Total capital 10.45 10.43 10.93
Leverage @ 6.25 6.49 6.76
Average balances:
Common stockhdlders' equity to assets 9.33 9.83 10.07
Stockholders’ equity to assets 9.41 993 10.27
PER COMMON SHARE DATA
Dividend payout 50.25% 38.14% 33.83%
Book value $16.01 51529 31391
Market prices “;
High $54.81 $56.38 34994
Low 38.25  31.00 32.13
Year end 4347 5569 40.44

(1) The efficiency ratio is defined as noninterest expense divided by total revenue
(net interest income and noninterest income).

(2} See Note 22 to Financial Statements for additional information.

(3) Dividends declared per common share as a percentage of earnings per
common share.

(4) Based on daily prices reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite
Transaction Reporting System.

period in which it is incurred. The asset retirement obligation
is to be capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the
long-lived asset and the expense is to be recognized over the
useful life of the long-lived asset. FAS 143 is effective January 1,
2003, with early adoption permitted. The Company plans to
adopt FAS 143 effective January 1, 2003 and does not expect
the adoption of the statement to have a material effect on the
financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144 (FAS
144), Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets, which supersedes Statement No. 121 {FAS 121),
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of. FAS 144 carries forward
from FAS 121 the fundamental guidance related to the recogni-
tion and measurement of an impairment loss related to assets to
be held and used and provides guidance related to the disposal
of long-lived assets to be abandoned or disposed of by sale.
FAS 144 became effective January 1, 2002 and was required
to be applied prospectively. Adoption of FAS 144 did not have
a material effect on the financial statements.
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Table 2: Six-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data

(in millions, except % Change Five-year
per share amounts) 2001/ compound
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2000 growth rate

INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income $ 12,460 $ 10,865 $ 10,116 $ 9673 $ 9,258 S 8776 15% 7%
Provision for loan losses 1,780 1,329 1,104 1,617 1,203 541 34 27
Noninterest income 7,690 8,843 7,975 6,920 6,046 5,075 {13) 9
Noninterest expense 12,891 11,830 10,637 11,311 9,580 9,256 2 7
Net income 3,423 4,026 4,012 2,19 2,712 2,411 (15) 7
Earnings per common share $ 199 § 236 § 232 $ 128 $ 157 $ 144 (16) 7
Diluted earnings

per common share 1.97 233 229 1.26 1.55 1.42 (15) 7
Dividends declared

per common share 1.00 .90 785 70 615 525 11 14
BALANCE SHEET
(at year end)
Securities available for sale $ 40,308 §$ 38655 S 439N $ 36,660 $ 32,151 $ 33,077 4% 4%
Loans 172,499 161,124 133,004 119,662 116,435 115,119 7 8
Allowance for loan losses 3,761 3,719 3,344 3,307 3,220 3,202 1 3
Goodwill 9,527 9,303 8,046 7,889 8,237 8,307 2 3
Assets 307,569 272,426 241,053 224,135 203,819 204,075 13 9
Core deposits 182,295 156,710 138,247 144,179 133,051 137,409 16 6
Long-term debt 36,095 32,046 26,866 22,662 18,820 18,936 13 14
Guaranteed preferred beneficial

interests in Company’s

subordinated debentures 2,435 935 935 935 1,449 1,300 160 13
Common stockholders’ equity 27,150 26,221 23,600 21,869 20,700 20,466 4 6
Stockholders’ equity 27,214 26,488 23,871 22,332 21,164 21,256 3 5

Factors That May Affect Future Results

We make forward-looking statements in this report and in Forward-looking statements discuss matters that are not
other reports and proxy statements we file with the Securities historical facts. Because they discuss future events or condi-
and Exchange Commission (SEC). In addition, our senior tions, forward-looking statements often include words such
management might make forward-looking statements orally as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,”
to analysts, investors, the media and others. Broadly speaking, “plan,” “project,” “target,” “can,” “could,” “may,”
forward-looking statements include: “should,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions. Do

not unduly rely on forward-looking statements. They give
our expectations about the future and are not guarantees.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they
are made, and we might not update them to reflect changes
that occur after the date they are made.

There are several factors—many beyond our control—
that could cause results to differ significantly from our
expectations. Some of these factors are described below.
Other factors, such as credit, market, operational, liquidity,

e projections of our revenues, income, earnings per share,
capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure or other
financial items;

e descriptions of plans or objectives of our management
for future operations, products or services, including
pending acquisitions;

e forecasts of our future economic performance; and

e descriptions of assumptions underlying or relating to

any of the foregoing. . . . L
y gong interest rate and other risks, are described elsewhere in this

In this report, for example, we make forward-looking report (see, for example, “Financial Review—Balance Sheet
statements discussing our expectations about: Analysis”). Factors relating to the regulation and supervision
of the Company are described in our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. Any factor
described in this report or in our 2001 Form 10-K could by
itself, or together with one or more other factors, adversely
affect our business, results of operations and/or financial
condition. There are factors not described in this report or

in our Form 10-K that could cause results to differ from

our expectations.

e future credit losses and non-performing assets;

e the future value of equity securities, including those
in our venture capital portfolios;

o the impact of new accounting standards, including the
impact of FAS 142 on future noninterest expense and
net income; and

e future short-term and long-term interest rate levels and
their impact on our net interest margin, net income,
liquidity and capital.
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Industry Factors

AS A FINANCIAL SERVICES COMPANY, OUR EARNINGS ARE SIGNIFICANTLY
AFFECTED BY GENERAL BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS.

Our business and earnings are impacted by general business
and economic conditions in the United States and abroad.
These conditions include short-term and long-term interest
rates, inflation, monetary supply, fluctuations in both debt
and equity capital markets, and the strength of the U.S.
economy and the local economies in which we operate. For
example, an economic downturn, increase in unemployment,
or other events that negatively impact household and/or
corporate incomes could decrease the demand for the
Company’s loan and non-loan products and services and
increase the number of customers who fail to pay interest

or principal on their loans.

TERRORIST ATTACKS. We cannot predict at this time the severity
or duration of the impact on the general economy or the
Company of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks or

any subsequent terrorist activities or any actions taken in
response to or as a result of those attacks or activities. The
most immediate impact has been decreased demand for air
travel, which has adversely affected not only the airline
industry but also other travel-related and leisure industries,
such as lodging, gaming and tourism. To the extent the
impact has spread or might spread to the overall U.S. and
global economies, it could further decrease capital and
consumer spending and deepen the U.S. and/or global
recession. Decreased capital and consumer spending and
other recessionary effects could adversely affect the Company
in a number of ways including decreased demand for our
products and services and increased credit losses.

CALIFORNIA ENERGY CRISIS. California is an example of a local
economy in which we operate. During 2001, California and
other western states experienced an energy crisis, including
increased energy costs, repeated episodes of diminished or
interrupted electrical power supply and the filing by a
California utility for protection under bankruptcy laws.
We cannot predict whether this situation will continue in
2002 and, if it does, how severe the situation will be.
Continuation or reoccurrence of the situation, however,
could disrupt our business and the businesses of our cus-
tomers who have operations or facilities in those states. It
could also trigger an economic slowdown in those states,
decreasing the demand for our loans and other products
and services and/or increasing the number of customers who
fail to repay their loans. Continuation or reoccurrence of the
situation could also impact other states in which we operate,
creating the same or similar concerns for us in those states.
We discuss other business and economic conditions in
more detail elsewhere in this report.

QOUR EARNINGS ARE SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECTED BY THE FISCAL AND
MONETARY POLICIES OF THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS AGENCIES.
The policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System impact us significantly. The Federal Reserve
Board regulates the supply of money and credit in the United
States. Its policies directly and indirectly influence the rate

of interest earned on loans and paid on borrowings and
interest-bearing deposits and can also materially affect the
value of financial instruments we hold, such as debt securi-
ties and mortgage servicing rights. Those policies determine
to a significant extent our cost of funds for lending and
investing. Changes in those policies are beyond our control
and are hard to predict. Federal Reserve Board policies also
can affect our borrowers, potentially increasing the risk that
they may fail to repay their loans. For example, a tightening
of the money supply by the Federal Reserve Board could
reduce the demand for a borrower’s products and services.
This could adversely affect the borrower’s earnings and
ability to repay its loan.

THE FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY IS HIGHLY COMPETITIVE.

We operate in a highly competitive environment in the
products and services we offer and the markets in which we
operate. The competition among financial services companies
to attract and retain customers is intense. Customer loyaley
can be easily influenced by a competitor’s new products,
especially offerings that provide cost savings to the customer.
Some of our competitors may be better able to provide a
wider range of products and services over a greater
geographic area.

We believe the financial services industry will become
even more competitive as a result of legislative, regulatory
and technological changes and the continued consolidation
of the industry. Technology has lowered barriers to entry and
made it possible for non-banks to offer products and services
traditionally provided by banks, such as automatic transfer
and automatic payment systems. Also, investment banks
and insurance companies are competing in more banking
businesses such as syndicated lending and consumer banking.
Recently, a number of foreign banks have acquired financial
services companies in the United States, further increasing
competition in the U.S. market. Many of our competitors
have fewer regulatory constraints and some have lower
cost structures. We expect the consolidation of the financial
services industry to result in larger, better capitalized compa-
nies offering a wide array of financial services and products.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the Act) permits banks,
securities firms and insurance companies to merge by
creating a new type of financial services company called a
“financial holding company.” Financial holding companies
can offer virtually any type of financial service, including
banking, securities underwriting, insurance (both agency
and underwriting) and merchant banking. Under the Act,
securities firms and insurance companies that elect to become
a financial holding company can acquire banks and other
financial institutions. The Act significantly changes our
competitive environmernt.
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WE ARE HEAVILY REGULATED BY FEDERAL AND STATE AGENCIES.

The holding company, its subsidiary banks and many of its
non-bank subsidiaries are heavily regulated at the federal
and state levels. This regulation is to protect depositors,
federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as

a whole, not security holders. Congress and state legislatures
and federal and state regulatory agencies continually review
banking laws, regulations and policies for possible changes.
Changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies,
including changes in interpretation or implementation of
statutes, regulations or policies, could affect us in substantial
and unpredictable ways including limiting the types of finan-
cial services and products we may offer and/or increasing the
ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and
products. Also, our failure to comply with laws, regulations
or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies
and damage to our reputation. For more information, refer
to the “Regulation and Supervision” section of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001
and to Notes 3 {Cash, Loan and Dividend Restrictions) and
22 (Risk-Based Capital) to Financial Statements included in
this report.

CONSUMERS MAY DECIDE NOT TO USE BANKS TO COMPLETE THEIR
FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS.

Technology and other changes are allowing parties to
complete financial transactions that historically have
involved banks. For example, consumers can now pay

bills and transfer funds directly without banks. The process
of eliminating banks as intermediaries, known as “disinter-
mediation,” could result in the loss of fee income, as well
as the loss of customer deposits and income generated from
those deposits.

Company Factors

MAINTAINING OR INCREASING OUR MARKET SHARE DEPENDS ON
MARKET ACCEPTANCE AND REGULATORY APPROVAL OF NEW
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to adapt our
products and services to evolving industry standards. There
is increasing pressure on financial services companies to pro-
vide products and services at lower prices. This can reduce
our net interest margin and revenues from our fee-based
products and services. In addition, the widespread adoption
of new technologies, including internet-based services, could
require us to make substantial expenditures to modify or
adapt our existing products and services. We might not
successfully introduce new products and services, achieve
market acceptance of our products and services, and/or
develop and maintain loyal customers.
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THE HOLDING COMPANY RELIES ON DIVIDENDS FROM {TS SUBSIDIARIES
FOR MOST OF ITS REVENUE.

The holding company is a separate and distinct legal entity
from its subsidiaries. It receives substantially all of its revenue
from dividends from its subsidiaries. These dividends are the
principal source of funds to pay dividends on the holding
company’s common and preferred stock and interest and
principal on its debt. Various federal and/or state laws and
regulations limit the amount of dividends that our bank and
certain of our non-bank subsidiaries may pay to the holding
company. Also, the holding company’s right to participate

in a distribution of assets upon a subsidiary’s liquidation

or reorganization is subject to the prior claims of the
subsidiary’s creditors. For more information, refer to
“Regulation and Supervision—Dividend Restrictions”

and “—Holding Company Structure” in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001,

WE HAVE BUSINESSES OTHER THAN BANKING.

We are a diversified financial services company. In addition
to banking, we provide insurance, investments, mortgages
and consumer finance. Although we believe our diversity
helps mitigate the impact to the Company when downturns
affect any one segment of our industry, it also means that
our earnings could be subject to different risks and uncer-
tainties. We discuss some examples below.

MERCHANT BANKING. Our merchant banking activities includ-
ing venture capital investments have a much greater risk

of capital losses than our traditional banking activities.

In addition, it is difficult to predict the timing of any gains
from these activities. For example, realization of gains from
our venture capital investments depends on a number of
factors—many beyond our control—including general
economic conditions, the prospects of the companies in
which we invest, when these companies go public, the size
of our position relative to the public float, and whether we
are subject to any resale restrictions.

Early in 2001, we experienced sustained declines in the
market values of some of our publicly traded and private
equity securities, in particular securities of companies in the
technology and telecommunications industries. In the second
quarter of 2001, we recognized non-cash charges to reflect
other-than-temporary impairment in the valuation of
securities. A number of factors, including the continued
deterioration in capital spending on technology and telecom-
munications equipment and/or the impact of the recent
terrorist attacks and other terrorist activities and actions
taken in response to or as a result of those attacks and
activities, could result in additional declines in the market
values of our publicly traded and private equity securities.

If we determine that the declines are other-than-temporary,
additional impairment charges would be recognized. In addi-
tion, we will realize losses to the extent we sell securities at
less than book value. For more information, see in this report
“Financial Review—OQverview,” “—Earnings Performance—
Noninterest Income,” “—Balance Sheet Analysis—Securities
Available for Sale” and Note 4 to Financial Statements.
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MORTGAGE BANKING. The impact of interest rates on our
mortgage banking business can be large and complex. Loan
origination fees and loan servicing fees account for a signifi-
cant portion of mortgage-related revenues. Changes in interest
rates can impact both types of fees. For example, we would
expect a decline in mortgage rates to increase the demand for
mortgage loans as borrowers refinance, but also lead to accel-
erated payoffs in our mortgage servicing portfolio. Conversely,
in a constant or increasing rate environment, we would expect
fewer loans to be refinanced and a decline in payoffs in our
servicing portfolio. While the Company uses dynamic and
sophisticated models to assess the impact of interest rates

on mortgage fees, amortization of mortgage servicing rights,
and the value of mortgage servicing assets, the estimates

of net income and fair value produced by these models are
dependent on estimates and assumptions of future loan
demand, prepayment speeds and other factors which may
overstate or understate actual subsequent experience. For
more information, see in this report “Financial Review—
Risk Management—Mortgage Banking Interest Rate Risk.”

WE HAVE AN ACTIVE ACQUISITION PROGRAM.

We regularly explore opportunities to acquire financial
institutions and other financial services providers. We cannot
predict the number, size or timing of future acquisitions. We
typically do not comment publicly on a possible acquisition
or business combination until we have signed a definitive
agreement for the transaction.

Qur ability to successfully complete an acquisition
generally is subject to regulatory approval, and we cannot
be certain when or if, or on what terms and conditions, any
required regulatory approvals will be granted. We might be
required to divest banks or branches as a condition to
receiving regulatory approval.

Difficulty in integrating an acquired company may cause
us not to realize expected revenue increases, cost savings,
increases in geographic or product presence, and/or other
projected benefits from the acquisition. Specifically, the
integration process could result in higher than expected

deposit attrition (run-off), loss of key employees, the disrup-
tion of our business or the business of the acquired company,
or otherwise adversely affect our ability to maintain relation-
ships with customers and employees or achieve the anticipated
benefits of the acquisition. Also, the negative impact of any
divestitures required by regulatory authorities in connection
with acquisitions or business combinations may be greater
than expected.

OUR BUSINESS COULD SUFFER IF WE FAIL TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN
SKILLED PEOPLE.

Our success depends, in large part, on our ability to attract
and retain key people. Competition for the best people in most
activities engaged in by the Company can be intense. We may
not be able to hire people or to keep them.

OUR STOCK PRICE CAN BE VOLATILE.
Our stock price can fluctuate widely in response to a variety
of factors including:

® actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly
operating results;

¢ new technology used, or services offered, by
our Competitors;

e significant acquisitions or business combinations,
strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital
commitments by or involving us or our competitors;

o failure to integrate our acquisitions or realize
anticipated benefits from our acquisitions; and

e changes in government regulations.

General market fluctuations, industry factors and general
economic and political conditions and events, such as the
recent terrorist attacks, economic slowdowns or recessions,
interest rate changes, credit loss trends or currency fluctua-
tions, also could cause our stock price to decrease regardless
of our operating results.
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Earnings Performance

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest income
(which includes yield-related loan fees) and interest expense.
Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis was $12.54
billion in 2001, compared with $10.93 billion in 2000, an
increase of 15%. The increase was primarily due to a 14%
increase in earning assets.

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis
expressed as a percentage of average total earning assets is
referred to as the net interest margin, which represents the
average net effective yield on earning assets. For 2001, the
net interest margin was 5.36%, compared with 5.35% in
2000. On average for the year 2001, earning asset yields
declined approximately the same as the decline in the average
cost of all funding sources, about 95 basis points. During
2001, the net interest margin widened on a sequential quar-
terly basis from 5.21% in the first quarter to 5.50% in the
fourth quarter. Three factors account for the margin increase
during the year: (a) a greater proportion of consumer loans
in the total loan mix, (b) an increase in lower cost core
deposits, particularly mortgage escrow deposits as mortgage
origination activity expanded, and (c) a faster decline in
deposit and borrowing costs than in loan yields as the
general level of market rates declined throughout the year.

Table 3 presents the individual components of net interest
income and the net interest margin,

Noninterest Income
Table 3 shows the major components of noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts increased in line
with the growth in core consumer deposit balances and
account activity.

The increase in trust and investment fees for 2001 was
primarily due to the acquisition of H.D. Vest and an increase
in mutual fund fees resulting from the overall growth in
mutual fund assets. The Company managed mutual funds
with $77 billion of assets at December 31, 2001, compared
with $69 billion at December 31, 2000. The Company also
managed or maintained personal trust, employee benefit
trust and agency assets of approximately $525 billion at
December 31, 2001, compared with $480 billion at
December 31, 2000.

The increase in mortgage origination and other closing
fees was predominantly due to increased refinancing activity
resulting from the decline in fixed-rate mortgage rates during
the last three quarters of 2001. Mortgage servicing fees
before amortization and impairment provision increased
in 2001 in line with substantial growth in the servicing port-
folio. However, these additional fees were more than offset
by increased amortization and impairment provisions for
mortgage servicing rights and other retained interests. Such
valuation adjustments are driven by higher estimated prepay-
ments assumed to be associated with the lower prevailing
level of interest rates. (For additional disclosures related
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Table 3: Noninterest Income

(in millions) Year ended December 31, % Change
2001 2000 1999 2001/ 2000/
2000 1999
Service charges on
deposit accounts $1,876  $1,704  $1,580 10% 8%
Trust and investment fees:
Asset management and
custody fees 731 735 784 1) (6)
Mutual fund and
annuity sales fees 803 763 472 5 62
All other 176 126 110 40 15
Total trust and
investment fees 1,710 1624 1,366 5 19
Credit card fees 796 721 694 10 4
Other fees:
Cash network fees 202 187 151 8 24
Charges and fees on loans 445 347 314 28 1"
All other 597 579 505 3 15
Total other fees 1,244 1,113 970 12 15
Mortgage banking:
Origination and other
closing fees 737 350 406 11 (14)
Servicing fees, net of
amortization and impairment  (260) 665 404 — 65
Net gains on securities
available for sale 134 — — — —
Net gains on sales of
mortgage servicing rights — 159 193 (100) (18)
Net gains on mortgage loan
origination/sales activities 705 38 117 — (68)
All other 355 232 287 53 (19)
Total mortgage banking 1,671 1444 1407 16 3
Insurance 745 41 395 81 4
Net venture capital (losses) gains  (1,630) 1,943 1,008 — 93

Net gains (losses) on

securities available for sale 463 (722) (228) — 217
Net income (loss) from equity

investments accounted for by the;

Cost method (55) 170 138 — 23
Equity method (51) 94 81 — 16
Net gains (losses) on sales of loans 35 (134) 68 — —
Net gains on dispositions
of operations 122 23 107 430 (79)
All other 764 452 389 69 16
Total $7.690 98843 $7975 (13)% _11%

to assumptions used to value mortgage servicing rights, see
Note 1 (Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets) and
Note 19 to Financial Statements.) The increase in gains on
mortgage loan origination/sales activities in 2001 was due
to increased production volume.

The increase in insurance fees was predominantly due to
the acquisition of Acordia in the second quarter of 2001
and subsequent growth in that business.

Net venture capital losses for 2001 included
approximately $1,500 million (pretax) of non-cash
impairment write-downs recognized in the second quarter
of 2001 reflecting other-than-temporary impairment in the
valuation of publicly traded securities and private equity
investments. Venture capital gains in 2000 included a $560
million (pretax) non-cash gain recognized during the first
quarter on the Company’s investment in Siara Systems.




Net losses for 2001 from equity investments included
approximately $215 million of non-cash impairment
write-downs recognized in the second quarter of 2001.

The Company routinely recognizes impairment in its
venture capital portfolios. During second quarter 2001,
based on general economic and market conditions, including
those events occurring in the technology and telecommunica-
tions industries, adverse changes occurred that impacted
venture capital financing. While the impairment recognized
is based on all of the information available at the time of the
assessment, other information or economic developments in
the future could lead to further impairment.

The net losses on securities available for sale in 2000
were predominantly due to the sales of securities associated
with the restructuring of the debt securities portion of the
securities available for sale portfolio during the first nine
months of 2000.

Net losses on sales of loans in 2000 were due to sales of
loans and loan asset securitizations by First Security prior to
the FSCO Merger.

The increase in net gains on dispositions of operations in
2001 was predominantly due to a $26 million net gain in
the first quarter of 2001, which included a $54 million
reduction of unamortized goodwill, related to the divestiture
of 39 stores (as a condition to the First Security merger) in
Idaho, New Mexico, Nevada and Utah.

“All other” noninterest income included writedowns of
auto lease residuals of about $80 million recorded in 2001,
related to the portfolios acquired as part of the FSCO Merger,
compared with about $180 million in 2000. In 2000, the
Company began acquiring residual loss insurance, which
is intended to cover most of the risk of additional declines
in residual values for the auto lease portfolio in the
foreseeable future.

Noninterest Expense
Table 4 shows the major components of noninterest expense.

Table 4: Noninterest Expense

(in millions) Year ended December 31, % Change
2001 2000 1999 2001/ 2000/
2000 1999
Salaries $ 4,027 $ 3,652% 3,307 10% 10%
Incentive compensation 1,195 846 643 41 32
Employee benefits 960 989 901 (3) 10
Equipment 909 948 928 (4) 2
Net occupancy 975 953 813 2 17
Goodwill 610 530 459 15 15
Core deposit intangible:
Nonqualifying 155 173 186 (10} @)
Qualifying 10 13 20 (23) (35)

Net gains on dispositions
of premises and equipment (21) (58) (16) (64) 263

Qutside professional services 486 447 381 9 17
Contract services 472 536 473 (12) 13
Telecommunications 355 303 286 17 6
Outside data processing 319 343 312 (7) i0
Travel and entertainment 286 287 262 — 10
Advertising and promotion 276 316 251 (13) 26
Postage 242 252 239 (4) 5
Stationery and supplies 242 223 191 9 17
Operating losses 234 179 150 31 19
Insurance 167 157 152 6 3
Security 156 98 95 59 3
All other 836 643 604 30 6
Total $12,891 $11,830 $10,637 9% _11%

(1) Represents amortization of core deposit intangible acquired after February
1992 that is subtracted from stockholders’ equity in computing regulatory
capital for bank holding companies.

The increase in salaries in 2001 was due to a 10% increase
in active full-time equivalent staff, including employees from
newly acquired companies.

The increase in incentive compensation was predominantly
due to additional sales and service team members, partially to
originate record mortgage volume.

The slight decrease in employee benefits was due to the
Company recognizing net pension income of $49 million in
2001, compared with net pension cost of $49 million in 2000.
This decrease was substantially offset by the increase in other
employee benefits related to additional active full-time equiva-
lent staff and rising benefit costs. The net pension income in
2001 was due to amortization of gains on pension plan assets
due primarily to strong equity and bond market performance
in 2000. The Company expects to recognize increased pension
cost in 2002.
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Table 5: Average Balances, Yields and Rates Paid (Taxable-Equivalent Basis) (1)(2)

(in millions}) 2001 2000
Average Yields/ Interest Average Yields/ Interest
balance rates income/ balance rates income/

expense expense

EARNING ASSETS
Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under resale agreements $ 2,583 3.69% § 95 S 2370 601% $ 143
Debt securities available for sale 3 i
Securities of U.S. Treasury and federal agencies 2,158 6.55 137 3,322 6.16 210
Securities of U.S, states and political subdivisions 2,026 7.98 154 2,080 7.74 162
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies 27,433 7.19 1,917 26,054 7.22 1,903
Private collateralized mortgage obligations 1.766 8.55 148 2,379 7.61 187
Total mortgage-backed securities 29,199 7.27 2,065 28,433 7.25 2,090
Other debt securities @ 3,343 7.80 254 5,049 7.93 261
Total debt securities available for sale (4 36,726 7.32 2,610 38,884 7.24 2,723
Mortgages held for sale 8! 23,677 6.72 1,595 10,725 7.85 849 .
Loans held for sale 4,820 6.58 317 4,915 8.50 418
Loans:
Commercial 48,648 8.01 3,896 45,352 9.40 4,263
Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 19,715 7.18 1,416 16,356 7.95 1,300
Other real estate mortgage 24,194 7.99 1,234 22,509 8.99 2,023
Real estate construction 8,073 8.10 654 6,934 10.02 695
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 21,232 9.25 1,965 15,292 10.43 1,595
Credit card 6,270 13.36 838 5.867 14.58 856
Other revolving credit and monthly payment 23,459 11.40 2,674 21,824 12.06 2,631
Total consumer 50,961 10.75 5,477 42,983 11.82 5,082
Lease financing 9,930 7.67 761 9,822 7.66 752
Foreign 1,603 20.82 333 1,621 2115 343
Total loans 616} 163,124 8.87 14,471 145,577 9.93 14,458
Other 4,000 4.77 191 3,206 6.21 199
Total earning assets $234,930 8.24 19,279 $205677 9.19 18,790
FUNDING SOURCES
Deposits:
interest-bearing checking $ 2178 2.51 55 $ 3,424 1.88 64
Market rate and other savings 80,585 2.05 1,655 63,577 2.81 1,786
Savings certificates 29,850 5.13 1,530 30,101 537 1,616
Qther time deposits 1,332 5.04 &7 4,438 5.69 253
Deposits in foreign offices 6,209 3.96 246 5.950 6.22 370
Total interest-bearing deposits 120,154 2.96 3,553 107,490 3.80 4,089
Short-term borrowings 33,885 3.76 1,273 28,222 6.23 1,758
Long-term debt 34,501 5.29 1,826 29,000 6.69 1,939
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in Company’s
subordinated debentures 1,394 6.40 89 935 7.92 74
Total interest-bearing liabilities 189,934 3.55 6,741 165,647 4.75 7,860
Portion of noninterest-bearing funding sources 44,996 — — 40.030 —
Total funding sources $234,930 2.88 6,741 $205,677 3.84 7.860
Net interest margin and net interest income on
a taxable-equivalent basis ) 536% $12,538 535%  $10,930
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 14,608 $ 13,103
Goodwill 9,514 8,811
Other 26,369 22,597
Total noninterest-earning assets $ 50,491 $ 44,511
NONINTEREST-BEARING FUNDING SOURCES
Deposits $ 55,333 $ 48,691
Other liabilities 13,301 11,000
Preferred stockholders’ equity 210 266
Common stockholders’ equity 26,643 24,584
Noninterest-bearing funding sources used to
fund earning assets (44,996) {40.030)
Net noninterest-bearing funding sources $ 50,491 $ 44,511
TOTAL ASSETS $285,421 $250,188

(1) The average prime rate of the Company was 6.91%, 9.24%, 8.00%, 8.35% and 8.44% for 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The average three-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) was 3.78%, 6.52%, 5.42%, 5.56% and 5.74% for the same years, respectively.

(2) Interest rates and amounts include the effects of hedge and risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories.

(3) Yields are based on amortized cost balances computed on a settlement date basis.
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1999 1998 1997

Average Yields/ Interest Average Yields/ Interest Average Yields/ Interest
balance rates income/ balance rates income/ balance rates income/
expense expense expense
$ 1,673 5.11% $ 86 $ 1,770 5.57% $ 99 $ 1,207 5.40% S 65
6,124 5.51 348 5916 6.02 353 5,987 6.22 37
2,119 8.12 168 1,855 8.39 148 1,630 8.35 133
23,542 6.77 1,599 20,079 6.99 1,376 22,173 7.08 1,559
3,945 6.77 270 3,072 6.72 205 3,083 6.80 210
27,487 6.77 1,869 23,151 6.95 1,581 25,256 7.05 1,769
3,519 7.49 209 1,570 794 105 1,192 571 71
39,249 6.69 2,594 32,492 6.90 2,187 34,065 6.91 2,344
13,559 6.96 951 14,712 6.85 1,008 7,314 7.27 532
5,154 7.3 377 4,876 7.71 376 3,900 8.10 316
38,932 8.66 3,370 35,805 8.85 3,169 31,939 9.22 2,943
13,315 7.78 1,036 13,870 7.92 1,098 16,924 8.46 1,432
18,822 8.74 1,645 17,539 9.40 1,648 17,603 9.61 1,692
5,260 9.56 503 4,270 9.71 415 3,858 10.13 39
11,656 9.96 1,161 10,708 10.43 1,117 9,882 961 950
5,686 13.77 783 6,322 14.99 948 6,960 14.59 1,015
19,561 11.88 2,324 19,992 1215 2428 20,188 11.88 2,398
36,903 11.57 4,268 37,022 1213 4,493 37,030 11.78 4,363
8,852 7.81 691 7,039 8.13 572 5,467 8.32 455
1,554 20.65 321 1,353 20.65 279 1,042 20.40 212
123,638 9.57 11,834 116,898 9.99 11,674 113,863 10.09 11,488
3,252 5.01 162 3,092 5.86 181 2,558 593 152
M 8.60 16,004 M 8.97 15,525 w_& 9.16 14,897
$ 3,120 99 3 $ 3,034 1.35 41 $ 3,491 1.72 60
60,901 2.30 1,399 56,724 2.63 1,492 54,753 262 1,433
30,088 4.86 1,462 31,905 5.29 1,686 32,143 5.32 1,711
3,857 4.94 196 4,565 5.47 250 4,112 5.61 231
1,658 4.76 79 948 4.84 46 1.386 483 67
99,724 3.7 3,167 97,176 3.62 3,515 95,885 3.65 3,502
22,559 5.00 1,127 17,927 536 963 14,038 5.36 756
24,646 5.90 1,453 19,294 6.29 1,214 18,335 6.40 1,173
- 935 7.73 72 1,160 8.12 94 1437 7.89 113
147,864 3.94 5,819 135,557 4,27 5,786 129,695 4.27 5,544
38,661 — — 38,283 — — 33,212 — —
£186,525 313 2819 $173,840 334 _578 $162,907 341 —2.244
5.47% $10,185 5.63% $ 9,739 5.75% $ 9,353
$ 12,252 $ 11,410 $ 12,297
7,983 8,069 8,325
18,339 14,255 14,689
$.38.574 233734 $35311
$ 45,201 $ 43,229 $ 39,903
8,909 7,314 7,688
461 463 555
22,664 21,011 20,377
(38,661) 38,283 33.212)
$ 38574 $ 33734 $ 35311
$225.099 207,574 5198218
(4) Includes certain preferred securities.
(5) Interest income includes loan fees, net of deferred costs, of approximately $146 million, $194 million, $210 million, $148 million and $126 million in 2001, 2000, 1999,
1998 and 1997, respectively,
(6) Nonaccrual loans and related income are included in their respective loan categories.
(7) Includes taxable-equivalent adjustments that primarily relate to income on certain loans and securities that is exempt from federal and applicable state income taxes.
The federal statutory tax rate was 35% for all years presented.
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Operating Segment Results

COMMUNITY BANKING net income was $2,568 million in 2001,
compared with $3,106 million in 2000. Excluding second
quarter 2001 impairment and other special charges of $1,089
million (after tax), net income was $3,657 million in 2001,
an increase of 18% from 2000. Net interest income increased
by $1,324 million, or 17%, compared with 2000, primarily
due to an increase in mortgages held for sale and mortgage
loans, as well as lower borrowing costs. The provision for
loan losses increased by $166 million from 2000 due to higher
charge-offs and growth in the loan portfolio. Noninterest
income was $5,189 million in 2001, compared with $6,685
million in 2000. Excluding second quarter 2001 impairment
and other special charges of $1,742 million (before tax),
noninterest income was up $246 million in 2001, or 4%,
compared with 2000, due to increases in trust and investment
fees, service charges on deposit accounts, mortgage banking
and credit card fees. Also, noninterest income in 2000
included losses on sales of loans and securitizations by First
Security prior to the FSCO Merger. These improvements,
plus a significant increase in gains on securities available for
sale more than offset the decrease in venture capital gains,
excluding approximately $1,500 million of impairment
charges taken in second quarter 2001. Noninterest expense
increased by $576 million over 2000 due to an increase in
sales and services staff related expenses as a result of record
mortgage origination volume.

Balance Sheet Analysis

WHOLESALE BANKING net income was $928 million in 2001,
compared with $1,007 million in 2000. Excluding second
quarter 2001 impairment and other special charges of $62
million (after tax), net income was $290 million in 2001, a
decrease of 2% from 2000. Net interest income increased $20
million, or 1%, from 2000, due to higher loan volume, which
was offset by the lower interest rate environment that existed
during 2001. Average outstanding loan balances increased $4
billion, or 9%, from 2000. Noninterest income increased by
$3435 million, or 20%, compared with 2000, due to higher
insurance revenue related to the acquisition of Acordia in

the second quarter of 2001. Noninterest expense increased
by $399 million, or 21%, compared with 2000, primarily

as a result of the Acordia acquisition along with increased
personnel expenses related to increased sales and service
staff. The provision for loan losses increased to $278 million
in 2001, compared with $151 million in 2000.

WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL net income was $288 million in 2001,
compared with $258 million in 2000, an increase of 12%.
Net interest income increased by 18% from 2000, due to
growth in average loans. The provision for loan losses was
$487 million in 2001, compared with $329 million in 2000.
The increase was predominantly due to growth in average
loans and higher net write-offs in the loan portfolios.

For a further discussion of operating segments see Note 17
to Financial Statements.

A comparison between the year-end 2001 and 2000 balance
sheets is presented below.

Securities Available for Sale

The Company holds both debt and marketable equity securities
in its securities available for sale portfolio. Debt securities
available for sale are primarily held for liquidity, interest rate
risk management and yield enhancement purposes. Given these
purposes, the portfolio is primarily comprised of very liquid,
high quality federal agency debt securities. At December 31,
2001, the Company held $38.7 billion of debt securities avail-
able for sale, up from $35.4 billion at December 31, 2000.
The Company had a net unrealized gain of $655 million at
December 31, 2001 compared with a net unrealized gain of
$718 million at December 31, 2000. Although the Company
realized $597 million in gains on securities sold during 2001,
the net unrealized gain declined only $63 million from
December 31, 2000 because of the favorable impact of lower
long-term interest rates on the value of debt securities not
sold during 2001. The weighted average expected maturity

of the debt securities portion of the securities available for
sale portfolio was 5 years and 10 months at December 31,
2001. Since 80% of this portfolio is held in mortgage-backed
securities, the expected remaining maturity may differ from
contractual maturity because the issuers of such securities may
have the right to prepay obligations with or without penalty.
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The effect of a 200 basis point increase and a 200 basis
point decrease on the fair value and the expected remaining
maturity of the mortgage-backed securities available for sale
portfolio is indicated in Table 6.

Table 6: Mortgage-Backed Securities

($ in billions) Fair Net unrealized Remaining
value gain (loss) maturity
At December 31,2001 $324 $ 5 5yrs., 6 mos.

At December 31,2001,

assuming a 200 basis point:
Increase in interest rates 29.2 (2.7) 7 yrs, 4 mos.
Decrease in interest rates 34.2 2.3 2 yrs., 8 mos.

Equity securities available for sale are comprised of
marketable common stocks, largely distributed from the
Company’s private equity investment activities. The decrease
of $1.64 billion in cost between December 31, 2000 and
December 31, 2001 was due to sales and dispositions and
the non-cash impairment charges taken in the second quarter
of 2001. The fair value of this portfolio exceeded cost by
$176 million at December 31, 2001 and $72 million at
December 31, 2000.

See Note 4 to Financial Statements for securities available
for sale by security type.




Loan Portfolio
A comparative schedule of average loan balances is presented
in Table 5; year-end balances are presented in Note S to
Financial Statements.

Loans averaged $163.1 billion in 2001, compared with
$145.6 billion in 2000, an increase of 12%. Total loans
at December 31, 2001 were $172.5 billion, compared
with $161.1 billion at year-end 2000, an increase of 7%.
The increase in average loans is due to increased consumer
demand, particularly for home finance. Mortgages held for
sale increased from $11.8 billion to $30.4 billion due to
record originations, including significant refinancing activity.
These increases were partially offset by a slow down in
commercial loan demand in line with the weakening
U.S. economy.

Deposits

Comparative detail of average deposit balances is presented
in Table 5. Average core deposits funded 58.8% and 58.3%
of the Company’s average total assets in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Year-end deposit balances are presented in
Table 7. Total average interest-bearing deposits rose from
$107.5 billion in 2000 to $120.2 billion in 2001. For the
same periods, total average noninterest-bearing deposits

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

rose from $48.7 billion to $55.3 billion. While savings
certificates of deposits declined on average from $30.1 billion
in 2000 to $29.9 billion in 2001, noninterest-bearing check-
ing accounts and other core deposit categories increased
substantially in 2001 reflecting the Company’s success in
growing customer accounts and balances and reflecting
growth in mortgage escrow deposits associated with the
record amount of mortgages originated in 2001. Deposit
growth in 2001 was also partly due to sweep accounts
moved onto the balance sheet.

Table 7: Deposits

(in millions) December 31, %
2001 2000 Change

Noninterest-bearing $ 65,362 $ 55,096 19%
Interest-bearing checking 2,228 3,699 (40)

Market rate and

other savings 89,251 66,859 33
Savings certificates 25,454 31,056 (18)
Core deposits 182,295 156,710 16
Other time deposits 839 5137 (84)
Deposits in foreign offices 4,132 7,712 (46)

Total deposits $187,266 $169,559 10%

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company consolidates majority-owned subsidiaries that
it controls. Other affiliates, including certain joint ventures,
in which there is generally 20% ownership are accounted for
by the equity method of accounting and not consolidated;
those in which there is less than 20% ownership are
generally carried at cost.

The Company’s mortgage operation, in the routine course
of business, originates a portion of its mortgage loans
through joint ventures. Such joint ventures are used as a
means to generate loans that are funded by Wells Fargo
Home Mortgage, Inc. or an affiliated entity and are subject
to established underwriting criteria. The Company has also
entered into joint ventures to provide title, escrow, appraisal
and other real estate-related services. These joint ventures
were formed to provide certain operational efficiencies due
to scale and are managed by the Company’s joint venture
partner, an unrelated third party. The Company has also
formed alliances with other unrelated third parties to gain
economies of scale through other joint ventures in areas such
as credit card processing and related activities. These joint
ventures are accounted for under the equity method and the
assets and liabilities of such ventures are not significant.

The Company does not dispose of troubled loans or
problem assets by means of unconsolidated special
purpose entities.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company
routinely originates, securitizes and sells into the secondary
market mortgage loans, and from time to time, other
financial assets, including student loans, commercial mort-
gages and auto receivables. The Company also structures
investment vehicles, typically in the form of collateralized
debrt obligations, which are sold to customers to meet their
specialized investment needs. Typically, all securitizations
are structured without recourse to the Company, without
other financial commitments from the Company and without
restrictions on the retained interests. At December 31, 2001,
with respect to these securitizations, the Company had
issued a total of $15.6 million in liquidity commitments in
the form of demand notes and had committed to provide
a total of $19.8 million in credit enhancements related to
four of these securitizations. At December 31, 2001, the
Company retained servicing rights and other beneficial
interests from these sales of approximately $1.6 billion,
consisting of $4135 million in securities, $330 million of
mortgage and other servicing assets and $825 million in
other retained interests. Refer to Note 18 to Financial
Statements for additional information regarding
securitization activities.
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Table 8 summarizes significant contractual obligations and
other commitments:

Table 8: Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

(in millions) Long-term Operating Total
debt ) leases
2002 $10,115 $ 383 $10,498
2003 6,904 304 7,208
2004 3,915 253 4,168
2005 4,273 190 4,463
2006 3,359 158 3,517
Thereafter 7,529 736 8,265
Total $36,095 $2,024 $38,119
Other commitments:
Commitments to extend credit $99,652
Standby letters of credit and
financial guarantees @ 5,467
Commercial and similar
letters of credit 577
Credit lines to mortgage joint ventures 410
Securitization liquidity commitments
and related credit enhancements 35
Equity and other investments 1,227

(1) Includes capital leases of $27 million
(2) Net of participations sold to other institutions of $736 million

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments
Through the normal course of operations, the Company
has entered into certain contractual obligations and other
commitments. Such obligations generally relate to funding
of operations through debt issuances as well as leases for
premises and equipment. As a financial services provider,
the Company routinely enters into commitments to extend
credit, including loan commitments, standby letters of credit
and financial guarantees. While contractual obligations

Risk Management

represent future cash requirements of the Company, a
significant portion of commitments to extend credit are likely
to expire without being drawn upon. Such commitments are
subject to the same credit policies and approval processes
accorded to loans made by the Company. In the merchant
banking business, the Company makes commitments to fund
equity investments directly to investment funds and to specific
private companies. The timing of future cash requirements
to fund such commitments is generally dependent upon the
venture capital investment cycle. This cycle, the period over
which privately-held companies are funded by venture capi-
talists and ultimately taken public through an initial offering,
can vary based on overall market conditions as well as the
nature and type of industry in which the companies operate.
It is anticipated that many private equity investments would
become liquid or would become public before the balance
of unfunded equity commitments is utilized. Other commit-
ments include investments in low-income housing and
other community development initiatives undertaken by
the Company.

The Company enters into derivative financial
instruments as part of its interest rate risk management
process, customer accommodation or other trading activities.
See “Asset/Liability and Market Risk Management” herein
and refer to Note 23 to Financial Statements for additional
information regarding derivative financial instruments.

Transactions with Related Parties

There are no related party transactions required to be dis-
closed in accordance with FASB Statement No. 57, Related
Party Disclosures. Loans to executive officers and directors
of the Company and its banking subsidiaries were made in
the ordinary course of business and were made on substan-
tially the same terms as comparable transactions.

Credit Risk Management Process

The Company’s credit risk management is structured as an
integrated process that stresses decentralized line of business
group management and accountability, supported by the
Chief Credit Officer’s oversight, consistent credit policies, and
frequent and comprehensive risk measurement and modeling.
The process is also examined regularly by the Company’s
Chief Loan Examiner and Chief Auditor.

Credit risk (including counterparty risk) is managed
within the framework and guidance of comprehensive
company-wide policies. Credit policies are in place for all
banking and non-banking operations that have exposure to
credit risk. These policies provide a consistent and prudent
approach to credit risk management across the enterprise.
They are routinely reviewed and modified as appropriate.
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The Chief Credit Officer provides company-wide credit
oversight. Each business group with credit risks has a desig-
nated credit officer and retains the primary responsibility
for managing that risk. The Chief Credit Officer delegates
authority, limits, and requirements to the business units.

All portfolios of credit risk are subject to periodic reviews,
to ensure that the risk identification processes are functioning
properly and that credit standards are being adhered to. Such
reviews are conducted by the business units themselves and
by the office of the Chief Credit Officer. In addition, all such
portfolios are subject to the independent review of the Chief
Loan Examiner and/or the Chief Auditor.




Table 9: Nonaccrual and Restructured Loans and Other Assets

(in millions)

Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial (M
Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage
Other real estate mortgage 2
Real estate construction
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage
Other revolving credit and monthly payment
Total consumer
Lease financing
Foreign
Total nonaccrual loans ®)
Restructured loans
Nonaccrual and restructured loans
As a percentage of total loans

Foreclosed assets
Real estate investments 4

Total nonaccrual and restructured
loans and other assets

December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

$ 827 $ 739 $374 $302 $224

203 127 144 138 177

210 113 118 204 263

145 57 11 23 32

24 23 17 17 17

59 36 27 41 18

83 59 44 58 35

163 92 24 13 12

9 7 9 17 —

1,640 1,194 724 755 743

— 1 4 1 9

1,640 1,195 728 756 752
1.0% 7% 5% 6% 6%

171 128 161 152 216

2 27 33 1 4

$1,813 $1,350 $922 $909 $972

(1) Includes commercial agricultural loans of $68 million, $44 million, $49 million, $41 million and $32 million at December 31,2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
(2) Includes agricultural loans secured by real estate of $43 million, $13 million, $17 million, $12 million and $18 million at December 31,2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and

1997, respectively.

(3) Of the total nonaccrual loans, $995 million, $761 million, $372 million, $389 million and $416 million at December 31,2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively,
were considered impaired under FAS 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.

(4) Represents the amount of real estate investments {contingent interest loans accounted for as investments) that would be classified as nonaccrual if such assets were
recorded as loans. Real estate investments totaled $24 million, $56 million, $89 million, $128 million and $172 million at December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and

1997, respectively.

Quarterly asset quality forecasts are completed to quantify
each business group’s intermediate-term outlook for loan
losses and recoveries, non-performing loans and market
trends. Periodic stress tests are conducted using a portfolio
loss simulation model, which correlates the performance of
the Company’s various sub-portfolios to validate the adequacy
of the overall allowance for loan losses.

In addition, the Company routinely reviews and evaluates
downside scenarios for risks that are not borrower specific but
that may influence the behavior of a particular credit, group
of credits, or entire sub-portfolios. This evaluation includes
assessments related to particular industries and specific
macroeconomic trends.

NONACCRUAL AND RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS

Table 9 presents comparative data for nonaccrual and
restructured loans and other assets. Management’s
classification of a loan as nonaccrual or restructured does

not necessarily indicate that the principal of the loan is uncol-
lectable in whole or in part. Table 9 excludes loans that are
contractually past due 90 days or more as to interest or prin-
cipal, but are both well-secured and in the process of collection
or are real estate 1-4 family first mortgage loans or consumer
loans that are exempt under regulatory rules from being
classified as nonaccrual. This information is presented in
Table 10. Notwithstanding, real estate 1-4 family loans (first

and junior liens) are placed on nonaccrual within 120 days
of becoming past due and are shown in Table 9. (Note 1

to Financial Statements describes the Company’s accounting
policy relating to nonaccrual and restructured loans.)

The Company anticipates changes in the amount of
nonaccrual loans that result from increases in lending activity
or from resolutions of loans in the nonaccrual portfolio. The
performance of any individual loan can be affected by exter-
nal factors, such as the interest rate environment or factors
particular to a borrower such as actions taken by a borrower’s
management. In addition, from time to time, the Company
purchases loans from other financial institutions that may
be classified as nonaccrual based on the Company’s policies.

The Company generally identifies loans to be evaluated
for impairment under FASB Statement No. 114, Accounting
by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, when such loans are
on nonaccrual or have been restructured. However, not all
nonaccrual loans are impaired. Generally, a loan is placed
on nonaccrual status upon becoming 90 days past due as
to interest or principal (unless both well-secured and in
the process of collection), when the full timely collection
of interest or principal becomes uncertain or when a
portion of the principal balance has been charged off. Real
estate 1-4 family loans (both first liens and junior liens) are
placed on nonaccrual status within 120 days of becoming
past due as to interest or principal, regardless of security.
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In contrast, under FAS 114, loans are considered impaired
when it is probable that the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled interest payments.
For a loan that has been restructured, the contractual terms
of the loan agreement refer to the contractual terms specified
by the original loan agreement, rather than the contractual
terms specified by the restructuring agreement. Consequently,
not all impaired loans are necessarily placed on nonaccrual
status. That is, loans performing under restructured terms
beyond a specified performance period are classified as
accruing but may still be deemed impaired under FAS 114.

For loans covered under FAS 114, the Company makes
an assessment for impairment when and while such loans
are on nonaccrual, or when the loan has been restructured.
When a loan with unique risk characteristics has been
identified as being impaired, the Company will estimate the
amount of impairment using discounted cash flows, except
when the sole {remaining) source of repayment for the loan
is the operation or liquidation of the underlying collateral.
In such cases, the current fair value of the collateral, reduced
by costs to sell, will be used in place of discounted cash
flows. Additionally, some impaired loans with commitments
of less than $1 million are aggregated for the purpose of
estimating impairment using historical loss factors as a
means of measurement, which approximates the discounted
cash flow method.

If the measurement of the impaired loan results in a
value that is less than the recorded investment in the loan
(including accrued interest, net deferred loan fees or costs
and unamortized premium or discount), an impairment is
recognized by creating or adjusting an existing allocation of
the allowance for loan losses. FAS 114 does not change the
timing of charge-offs of loans to reflect the amount
ultimately expected to be collected.

If interest that was due on the book balances of all
nonaccrual and restructured loans (including loans that
were but are no longer on nonaccrual or were restructured
at year end) had been accrued under their original terms,
$123 million of interest would have been recorded in 2001,
compared with $29 million actually recorded.

Foreclosed assets at December 31, 2001 were $171 million,
compared with $128 million at December 31, 2000. Most of
the foreclosed assets at December 31, 2001 have been in the
portfolio three years or less.

LOANS 90 DAYS OR MORE PAST DUE AND STILL ACCRUING

Table 10 shows loans that are contractually past due 90
days or more as to interest or principal, but are not
included in Table 9, Nonaccrual and Restructured Loans
and Other Assets.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses,
including charge-offs and recoveries by loan category, is
presented in Note 5 to Financial Statements. At December 31,
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Table 10: Loans 90 Days or More Past Due and Still Accruing

(in miflions} December 31
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Commercial S 60 $ 90 § 27 $33 $37
Real estate
1-4 family
first mortgage 152 66 45 42 58
Other real estate /
mortgage 22 24 18 18 17
Real estate
construction 47 12 4 6 14
Consumer:
Real estate
1-4 family junior
lien mortgage 56 27 36 65 75
Credit card 117 96 105 145 165
Other revolving
credit and
monthly
payment _289 263 198 A7 252
Total consumer _462 _386 339 381 _452
Total $743 $578 $433 $480 $578

|
|
H
H
|I

2001, the allowance for loan losses was $3.76 billion, or
2.18% of total loans, compared with $3.72 billion, or 2.31%,
at December 31, 2000 and $3.34 billion, or 2.51%, at
December 31, 1999. The provision for loan losses totaled
$1.78 billion in 2001, $1.33 billion in 2000 and $1.10
billion in 1999. Net charge-offs in 2001 were $1.78 billion,
or 1.09% of average total loans, compared with $1.22 billion,
or .84%, in 2000 and $1.12 billion, or .90%, in 1999. Loan
loss recoveries were $421 million in 2001, compared with
$428 million in 2000 and $473 million in 1999. Any loan
that is past due as to principal or interest and that is not both
well-secured and in the process of collection is generally
charged off (to the extent that it exceeds the fair value of any
related collateral) after a predetermined period of time that is
based on loan category. Additionally, loans are charged off
when classified as a loss by either internal loan examiners
or regulatory examiners.

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses
of $3.76 billion adequate to cover losses inherent in loans,
commitments to extend credit and standby and other
letters of credit at December 31, 2001. The process for
determining the adequacy for loan losses is critical to the
financial results of the Company and requires subjective
and complex judgement by management, as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effect of matters that
are inherently uncertain. Therefore, no assurance can be
given that the Company will not, in any particular period,
sustain loan losses that are sizeable in relation to the
amount reserved, or that subsequent evaluations of the
loan portfolio, in light of the factors then prevailing,
including economic conditions and the ongoing examination
process by the Company and its regulators, will not require
significant increases in the allowance for loan losses. For
discussion of the process by which the Company determines
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, see Note 5
to Financial Statements,




Asset-Liability and Market Risk Management
Asset/liability management comprises the evaluation,
monitoring, and management of the Company’s interest rate
risk, market risk and liquidity and funding. The Corporate
Asset/Liability Management Committee (ALCO) maintains
oversight of these risks. The Committee is comprised of
senior financial and senior business executives. Each of the
Company’s principal business groups — Community Banking,
Mortgage Banking and Wholesale Banking — have individual
asset/liability management committees and processes that are
linked to the Corporate ALCO process.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk, one of the more prominent risks in terms
of potential earnings impact, is an inevitable part of being a
financial intermediary. It can occur for any one or more of
the following reasons: (a) assets and liabilities may mature
or re-price at different times (for example, if assets re-price
faster than liabilities and interest rates are generally falling,
Company earnings will initially decline); (b) assets and
liabilities may re-price at the same time but by different
amounts (when the general level of interest rates is falling,
the Company may choose for customer management,
competitive, or other reasons to reduce the rates paid on
checking and savings deposit accounts by an amount that

is less than the general decline in market interest rates);

(¢) short-term and long-term market interest rates may
change by different amounts (i.e. the shape of the yield curve
may impact new loan vields and funding costs differently); or
(d) the remaining maturity of various assets or liabilities may
shorten or lengthen as interest rates change (for example,
mortgage-backed securities held in the securities available for
sale portfolio may prepay significantly earlier than anticipated
— with an associated reduction in portfolio vield and income
- if long-term mortgage interest rates decline sharply).

In addition to the direct impact of interest rate changes on
net interest income through these channels, interest rates
indirectly impact earnings through their effect on loan
demand, credit losses, mortgage origination fees, the value
of mortgage servicing rights and other sources of Company
earnings. The principal tool used to evaluate Company
interest rate risk is a simulation of net income under various
economic and interest rate scenarios. Table 11 depicts the
Company’s estimated net income at risk at December 31,
2001, expressed as the variance from the Company’s base
net income forecast.

Table 11: Estimated Net Income at Risk

% increase (decrease) in net income
for the year ended December 31,
2002 2003

Short-term interest rates increase

200 basis points by end of 2002;

400 basis points by end of 2003 (4.4)% (5.3)%
Short-term interest rates decline

100 basis points by end of 2002,

then remain flat in 2003 o _m

(1) Less than 1%.

These estimates are highly assumption-dependent, will
change regularly as the Company’s asset-liability structure
and business evolves from one period to the next, will vary
as different interest rate scenarios are used and are measured
relative to a base net income scenario that may change. At
December 31, 2001, the principal sources of risk from much
higher interest rates were the modeled slowdown in mortgage
origination activity and the flacter yield curve assumed in that
higher interest rate scenario. The principal sources of risk in
the lower rate scenario were assumed slower loan demand
and assumed higher credit losses. (Any provision for impair-
ment for mortgage servicing rights is assumed to be offset by
higher mortgage origination fees and non-mortgage sources of
earnings — see “Mortgage Banking Interest Rate Risk” below
and Note 19 to Financial Statements for analysis of mortgage
company earnings sensitivities to key interest rate risk model
assumptions.) As indicated in Table 11, the Company’s model-
ing indicates these risks would largely be offset by additional
earnings from other sources in each rate scenario.

The Company uses exchange-traded and over-the-counter
interest rate derivatives to hedge its interest rate exposures.
The notional or contractual amount, credit risk amount and
estimated net fair values of these derivatives as of December
31, 2001 and 2000 are indicated in Note 23 to Financial
Statements. Derivatives are used for asset/liability management
in three ways: (a) most of the Company’s long-term fixed-rate
debt is converted to floating-rate payments by entering into
received-fixed swaps at issuance, (b) the cash flows from
selected asset and/or liability instruments/portfolios are
converted from fixed to floating payments or vice versa,
and (c) the Mortgage Company actively uses swaptions,
futures, forwards and rate options to hedge the Company’s
mortgage pipeline, funded mortgage loans, and mortgage
servicing rights asset. '

MORTGAGE BANKING INTEREST RATE RISK

The home mortgage industry is subject to complex risks.
Because Wells Fargo Home Mortgage Company sells or
securitizes most of the mortgage loans it originates, credit risk
is contained. Changes in interest rates, however, may have a
potentially large impact on Mortgage Banking earnings. In
general, high or rising interest rates may reduce mortgage
loan demand and hence origination and servicing fees, but
may also lead to reduced servicing prepayments and hence
reduced amortization costs. Conversely, low or declining
interest rates may lead to increased origination and servicing
fees, but would likely increase servicing portfolio prepay-
ments and, therefore, accelerate servicing amortization costs.
If large enough, declining mortgage rates and any associated
increase in refinancings may also require provisions for
impairment of mortgage servicing rights. These provisions
may be offset by higher future origination fees but the
amount of provision and higher fees may not be exactly
equal; the provision is charged to net income immediately
whereas the higher fees would occur over time, and the size
of any provision could be material to earnings in any one
quarter even if there are offsetting other sources of earnings
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over a full twelve month period. Wells Fargo dynamically
manages both the risk to net income over time from all
sources as well as the risk to an immediate reduction in the
fair value of its mortgage servicing rights. The process for
the valuation of mortgage servicing rights is critical to the
financial results of the Company and requires subjective
and complex judgement by management as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain. Both mortgage loans held on the
Company’s balance sheet and off-balance sheet derivative
instruments are used to maintain these risks within
parameters established by Corporate ALCO.

MARKET RISK — TRADING ACTIVITIES

The Company incurs interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk and commodity price risk in several trading businesses
managed under limits set by Corporate ALCO. The purpose
of this business is to accommodate customers in the manage-
ment of their market price risks. All securities, loans, foreign
exchange transactions, commodity transactions and deriva-
tives transacted with customers or used to hedge capital
market transactions done with customers are carried at

fair value. Counterparty risk limits are established and
monitored by the Institutional Risk Committee. The notional
or contractual amount, credit risk amount and estimated net
fair value of all customer accommodation derivatives as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000 are indicated in Note 23 to
Financial Statements. Open, “at risk” positions for all
trading business are monitored by Corporate ALCO. During
the 90 day period ending December 31, 2001 the maximum
daily “value at risk”, the worst expected loss over a given
time interval within a given confidence range (99%), for

all trading positions did not exceed $25 million.

MARKET RISK — EQUITY MARKETS

Equity markets impact the Company in both direct and
indirect ways. The Company makes and manages direct
equity investments in start up businesses, emerging growth
companies, management buy-outs, acquisitions and corporate
recapitalizations. The Company also invests in non-affiliated
funds that make similar private equity investments. These
private equity investments are made within capital allocations
approved by the Company’s management and its Board of
Directors. Business developments, key risks and historical
returns for the private equity investments are reviewed

with the Board at least annually. Management reviews

these investments at least quarterly and assesses for possible
other-than-temporary impairment. Other-than-temporary
impairment is subject to considerable judgment and analysis.
For nonmarketable investments, the analysis is based on

facts and circumstances of each individual investment and
the expectations for that investment’s cash flows and capital
needs, the viability of its business model and the Company’s
exit strategy. At December 31, 2001, the private equity
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investments were carried on the Company’s balance sheet

at a total of $1.7 billion, compared with $2.0 billion at
December 31, 2000. Most of the decline was due to the
$330 million in other-than-temporary impairment recognized
during second quarter 2001; new investments made during
2001 were very selective and in the aggregate immaterial.

The Company also has marketable equity securities in its
available for sale investment portfolio, including shares dis-
tributed from the Company’s venture capital activities. These
investments are managed within capital risk limits approved
by management and the Board and monitored by Corporate
ALCO. Gains and losses on these securities are recognized in
net income when realized and, in addition, other-than-tem-
porary impairment may be periodically recorded. The initial
indicator of impairment for marketable equity securities is a
sustained decline in market price below the amount recorded
for that investment. The Company considers such factors
as the length of time and the extent to which the market
value has been less than cost; the financial condition, capital
strength, and near-term prospects of the issuer; any recent
events specific to that issuer and economic conditions of its
industry; and, to a lesser degree, the Company’s investment
horizon in relationship to an anticipated near-term recovery
in the stock price, if any. The decline in cost of the portfolio
during 2001 of $1.64 billion was largely due to the second
quarter impairment writedown and dispositions. At
December 31, 2001, the fair value of the marketable equity
securities held as available for sale was $991 million, exceed-
ing cost by $176 million.

Changes in equity market prices may also indirectly
impact the Company’s net income by impacting the value of
third party assets under management and hence fee income,
by impacting particular borrowers whose ability to repay prin-
cipal and/or interest may be impacted by the stock market, or
by impacting other business activities. These indirect risks are
monitored and managed as part of the operations of each
business line.

LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING

The objective of effective liquidity management is to
ensure that the Company can meet customer loan requests,
customer deposit maturities/withdrawals and other cash
commitments efficiently under both normal operating
conditions as well as under unforeseen and unpredictable
circumstances of industry or market stress. To achieve

this objective, Corporate ALCO establishes and monitors
liquidity guidelines requiring sufficient asset based liquidity
to cover potential funding requirements and to avoid
over-dependence on volatile, less reliable funding markets.
The Company sets liquidity management guidelines for
both the consolidated balance sheet as well as for the
Parent Company specifically to ensure that the Parent
Company is a source of strength for its regulated, deposit
taking banking subsidiaries.




In addition to the immediately liquid resources of cash
and due from banks and federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements, asset liquidity is provided
by the debt securities in the securities available for sale
portfolio which is comprised of marketable securities. The
weighted average expected remaining maturity of the debt
securities within this portfolio was 5 years and 10 months at
December 31, 2001. Of the $38.7 billion of debt securities in
this portfolio at December 31, 2001, $5.4 billion, or 14%,
is expected to mature or be prepaid in 2002 and an additional
$3.9 billion, or 10%, is expected to mature or be prepaid in
2003. Asset liquidity is further enhanced by the Company’s
ability to sell loans in secondary markets through whole-loan
sales and securitizations. In 2001, the Company sold residen-
tial mortgage loans of approximately $139 billion and
securitized residential mortgage loans, commercial
mortgage loans, student loans and auto receivables of
approximately $19 billion. The amount of such assets,
as well as home equity loans and certain commercial loans,
available to be securitized totaled approximately $35 billion
at December 31, 2001.

Core customer deposits have historically provided the
Company with a sizeable source of relatively stable and
low-cost funds, The Company’s average core deposits and
stockholders’ equity funded 68.3% and 68.2% of its
average total assets in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The remaining funding of average total assets was mostly
provided by long-term debt, deposits in foreign offices,
short-term borrowings (federal funds purchased and securities
sold under repurchase agreements, commercial paper and
other short-term borrowings) and trust preferred securities.
Short-term borrowings averaged $33.9 billion and $28.2
billion in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Long-term debt
averaged $34.5 billion and $29.0 billion in 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Trust preferred securities averaged $1.4 billion
and $.9 billion in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Liquidity for the Company is also available through the
Company’s ability to raise funds in a variety of domestic
and international money and capital markets. The Company
accesses the capital markets for long-term funding through
the issuance of registered debt, private placements and
asset-based secured funding. Approximately $50 billion of
the Company’s debt is rated by Fitch, Inc. and Moody's
Investors Service as “AA” or equivalent, which is among the
highest ratings given to a company in the financial services
sector. The rating agencies base their ratings on many quan-
titative and qualitative factors, including capital adequacy,
liquidity, asset quality, business mix, level and quality of earn-
ings and other tools. Material changes in these factors could
result in a different debt rating.

During 2001, the Parent issued $3.735 billion in senior debt
and $750 million in subordinated notes under registration
statements filed in 2000 and 1999. The remaining issuance
authority at December 31, 2001 was $6.035 billion under the
2000 registration statement. Proceeds from the issuance in
2001 of the debt securities were, and with respect to any such
securities issued in the future are expected to be used for gen-
eral corporate purposes. The Parent issues commercial paper
and has two back-up credit facilities amounting to $2 billion.

In February 2001, Wells Fargo Financial, Inc. (WFFI)
filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC, under which
WEFFI may issue up to $4 billion in senior or subordinated
debt securities. In 2001, WFFI issued a total of $2.25 billion
in senior notes. As of December 31, 2001, the remaining
issuance authority under that registration statement and the
WEFI shelf registration statements filed in 2000 and 1999
was $3.70 billion. In October 2001, a subsidiary of WFFI
filed a shelf registration statement with the Canadian provin-
cial securities authorities for the issuance of up to $1.5 billion
(Canadian) in debt securities. In October 2001, the subsidiary
issued $200 million (Canadian) in debt securities.

In February 2001, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. established a
$20 billion bank note program under which it may issue up
to $10 billion in short-term senior notes outstanding at any
time and up to an aggregate of $10 billion in long-term
senior and subordinated notes. Securities are issued under
this program as private placements in accordance with OCC
regulations. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. began issuing under the
short-term portion of the program in July 2001 and issued
$2.3 billion under the long-term portion in 2001. During
2001, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, called $750 million of subordi-
nated notes. As of December 31, 2001, the remaining issuance
authority under the long-term portion was $8.4 billion.

In August 2001, the Company filed a registration state-
ment with the SEC to register an aggregate of $1.5 billion
in the Company’s debt and equity securities, and preferred
and common securities to be issued by one or more trusts
that are directly or indirectly owned by the Company
and consolidated in the financial statements. Following
effectiveness of the registration statement in August 2001,
Wells Fargo Capital IV, a business trust established by the
Company for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities
pursuant to the registration statement, issued $1.3 billion
in trust preferred securities to the public. In December 2001,
Wells Fargo Capital V, a business trust identical to Wells
Fargo Capital IV, issued the remaining $200 million in
trust preferred securities to the public. Both offerings
were pursuant to the August 2001 registration statement.

In late February 2002, the Company filed a universal
shelf registration statement to register an aggregate of $10.0
billion in the Company’s debt and equity securities and cer-
tain other securities, including preferred and common securi-
ties to be issued by one or more trusts that are directly or
indirectly owned by the Company and consolidated in the
financial statements.
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Capital Management

The Company has an active program for managing stock-
holder capital. The objective of effective capital management
is to produce above market long term returns by opportunis-
tically utilizing capital when returns are perceived to be high
and issuing/accumulating capital when the costs of doing so
is perceived to be low.

Uses of capital include investments for organic growth,
acquisitions of banks and non-bank companies, dividends
and share repurchases. During 2001, the Company’s consoli-
dated assets increased $35 billion, or 13%. Capital used for
acquisitions in 2001 totaled $803 million. During 2001, the
Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 85
million additional shares of the Company’s outstanding
common stock. At December 31, 2001 total remaining
common stock repurchase authority was approximately
50 million shares. Effective July 1, 2001, FAS 141 eliminated
pooling-of-interests accounting for business combinations.
Prior to this date, purchases of the Company’s common
stock for unspecified purposes could have precluded
pooling-of-interests method of accounting treatment for
acquisitions. On July 24, 2001, in response to FAS 141, the
Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of shares of the
Company’s outstanding common stock for general corporate
purposes including capital management. Total common stock
dividend payments in 2001 were $1.7 billion. In July 2001,
the Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s
quarterly common stock dividend to 26 cents per share
from 24 cents per share, representing an 8% increase in
the quarterly dividend rate.

Sources of capital include retained earnings, common
stock issuance and issuance of subordinared debt and
preferred stock. In 2001, total net income was $3.4 billion
and retained earnings were $16.0 billion after payment
of $1.7 billion in common stock dividends. Total common
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stock issued in 2001 under various employee benefit and
director plans and under the Company’s dividend reinvest-
ment program amounted to 21 million shares. At the annual
meeting of stockholders held on April 24, 2001, the stock-
holders of the Company approved an increase in the number
of shares of common stock authorized for issuance from

4 billion to 6 billion shares. Issuance of subordinated debt
amounted to $750 million, and two placements of trust
preferred securities amounting to $1.5 billion were complet-
ed late in 2001. On October 1, 2001, the Company called
all of the Adjustable-Rate Noncumulative Preferred Stock,
Series H. The redemption was completed at $50 per share
plus accrued and unpaid dividends in accordance with

its terms,

The Company has a capital expenditure program to
accommodate future growth and current business needs.
Capital expenditures for 2002 are estimated to be approxi-
mately $575 million for equipment for stores, relocation and
remodeling of Company facilities, routine replacement of
furniture and equipment, and servers and other networking
equipment related to expansion of the Company’s internet
services business. The Company will fund these expenditures
from various sources, including retained earnings of the
Company and borrowings of various maturities.

The Company and each of the subsidiary banks are
subject to various regulatory capital adequacy requirements
administered by the Federal Reserve Board and the Office
of the Comptroller of the Currency. Risk-based capital
(RBC) guidelines establish a risk-adjusted ratio relating
capital to different categories of assets and off-balance sheet
exposures. At December 31, 2001, the Company and each
of the covered subsidiary banks were “well capitalized”
under regulatory standards. (See Note 22 to Financial
Statements for additional information.)




Comparison of 2000 to 1999

Net income in 2000 was $4.03 billion, which included a loss
of $220 million (after tax) for First Security for the first three
quarters of 2000 and First Security related integration and
conversion costs of $110 million (after tax) in the fourth
quarter, compared with $4.01 billion in 1999. Diluted earnings
per common share were $2.33, compared with $2.29 in 1999,
an increase of 2%.

Return on average assets (ROA) was 1.61% and return
on average common equity (ROE) was 16.31% in 2000,
compared with 1.78% and 17.55%, respectively, in 1999.

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis was
$10.93 billion in 2000, compared with $10.19 billion in 1999.
The Company’s net interest margin was 5.35% for 2000, com-
pared with 5.47% in 1999. The decrease was mostly due to
the impact of funding strong loan growth with higher costing
short- and long-term borrowings, partially offset by improved
yields within the investment securities portfolio from the
restructuring that occurred during the fourth quarter of 1999
and the first nine months of 2000.

Noninterest income increased to $8.84 billion in 2000 from
$7.98 billion in 1999, an increase of 11%, largely due to higher
net venture capital gains, increased trust and investment fees
and service charges on deposit accounts, primarily offset by
net losses on sales of securities incurred in restructuring the
Company’s securities available for sale portfolio and net losses
on sales of loans and securitizations associated with First
Security prior to the FSCO Merger.

Additional Information

Noninterest expense totaled $11.83 billion in 2000,
compared with $10.64 billion in 1999, an increase of 11%.
The increase was primarily due to integration and conversion
costs related to the WFC Merger, the FSCO Merger and
other acquisitions.

The provision for loan losses was $1.33 billion in 2000,
compared with $1.10 billion in 1999. During 2000, net
charge-offs were $1.22 billion, or .84% of average total
loans, compared with $1.12 billion, or .90%, during 1999.
The allowance for loan losses was $3.72 billion, or 2.31%
of total loans, at December 31, 2000, compared with $3.34
billion, or 2.51%, at December 31, 1999.

At December 31, 2000, total nonaccrual and restructured
loans were $1,195 million, or .7% of total loans, compared
with $728 million, or .5%, at December 31, 1999.
Foreclosed assets were $128 million at December 31, 2000,
compared with $161 million at December 31, 1999.

The ratio of common stockholders’ equity to total assets
was 9.63% at December 31, 2000 and 9.79% at December
31, 1999. The Company’s total risk-based capital {RBC) ratio
at December 31, 2000 was 10.43% and its Tier 1 RBC ratio
was 7.29%, exceeding the minimum regulatory guidelines of
8% and 4%, respectively, for bank holding companies. The
Company’s RBC ratios at December 31, 1999 were 10.93%
and 8.00%, respectively. The Company’s leverage ratios were
6.49% and 6.76% at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, exceeding the minimum regulatory guideline of 3%
for bank holding companies.

Common stock of the Company is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange. The high,
low and end-of-period annual and quarterly prices of the
Company’s common stock as reported on the New York
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Stock Exchange Composite Transaction Reporting System
are presented in the graphs. The number of holders of
record of the Company’s common stock was 98,598 as
of January 31, 2002.
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Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income

{in millions, except per share amounts) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

INTEREST INCOME

Securities available for sale $ 2,544 $ 2,671 $ 2,533
Mortgages held for sale 1,595 849 951 {
Loans held for sale 317 418 377
Loans 14,461 14,446 11,823
Other interest income 284 341 250
Total interest income 19,201 _ 18725 15934
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits 3,553 4,089 3,166
Short-term borrowings 1,273 1,758 1127
Long-term debt 1,826 1,939 1,452
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests
in Company’s subordinated debentures 89 74 73
Total interest expense 6,741 7,860 5818
NET INTEREST INCOME 12,460 10,865 10,116
Provision for loan losses 1,780 1,329 1,104
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 10,680 9536 9,012
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,876 1,704 1,580
Trust and investment fees 1,710 1,624 1,366
Credit card fees 796 721 694
Other fees 1,244 1,113 970
Mortgage banking 1,671 1,444 1,407
Insurance 745 411 395
Net venture capital (losses) gains (1,630) 1,943 1,008
Net gains (losses) on securities available for sale 463 (722) (228)
Other 815 605 783
Total noninterest income 7,690 8,843 7,975
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries 4,027 3,652 3,307
Incentive compensation 1,195 846 643
Employee benefits 960 989 901
Equipment 909 948 928
Net occupancy 975 953 813
Goodwill 610 530 459
Core deposit intangible 165 186 206
Net gains on dispositions of premises and equipment (21) (58) (16)
Other 4,071 3,784 3,396
Total noninterest expense 12,891 11,830 10,637
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 5,479 6,549 6,350
Income tax expense 2,056 2,523 2,338
NET INCOME $ 3423 $ 4026 $ 4012
NET INCOME APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK $ 3,409 $ 4,009 $_3977
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE $ 199 $ 236 $ 232
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE $ 197 $ 233 $ 229
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE $  1.00 $ .90 $ 785
Average common shares outstanding 1,708.5 1,699.5 1,714.0
Diluted average common shares outstanding 1,726.9 1,718.4 1,735.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

54 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in millions, except shares)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements

Securities available for sale
Mortgages held for sale
Loans held for sale

Loans
Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Mortgage servicing rights
Premises and equipment, net

Core deposit intangible

Goodwill

Interest receivable and other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

Total deposits
Short-term borrowings
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Long-term debt

Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests
in Company'’s subordinated debentures

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock

Unearned ESOP shares
Total preferred stock

Common stock — $1%/5 par value, authorized 6,000,000,000 shares;
issued 1,736,381,025 shares and 1,736,381,025 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Cumulative other comprehensive income

Treasury stock — 40,886,028 shares and 21,735,182 shares
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

December 31,

2001 2000

$ 16,968 $ 16,978
2,530 1,598
40,308 38,655
30,405 11,812
4,745 4,539
172,499 161,124
3,761 3719
168,738 157,405
6,241 5,609
3,549 3,415
1,013 1,183
9,527 9,303
23,545 21929
$307,569 $272,426
$ 65,362 $ 55,096
121,904 114,463
187,266 169,559
37,782 28,989
16,777 14,409
36,095 32,046
2,435 935
218 385
{154) (118)

64 267

2,894 2,894
9,436 9,337
16,005 14,541
752 524
(1,937) (1.075)
27.214 26,488
$307,569 $272,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

(in millions, except shares) Notes Cumulative Total
Unearned Additional receivable other stock-
Number  Preferred ESOP  Common paid-in  Retained from  Treasury  comprehensive  holders’
of shares stock shares stock capital  earnings ESOP stock income equity

BALANCE DECEMBER 31,1998 $547 § (84 $2.882 $8981  $10,25% $ (3 $_ (740 $493  $ 22332
Comprehensive income
Net income-1999 4,012 4012
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Translation adjustments
Net unrealized gains on securities
available for sale, net of
reclassification of $136 million of
net losses included in net income
Total comprehensive income
Common stack issued 21,793,709
Common stock issued for acquisitions 11,059,131
Common stock repurchased 48,974,800
Preferrad stock redeemed
Preferred stock issued to ESOP
Preferred stock released to ESOP
Preferred stock (86,358) converted

to common shares 2,200,716 —
Preferred stock dividends (35)
Common stock dividends {1,401)
Cash payments received on notes
receivable from ESOP 2
Change in Rabbi trust assets (classified as treasury stock) -
Net change _ 2
BALANCE DECEMBER 31,1999 _344 (73) 2,894 9213  _12.565 1 (831 _760 23871
Comprehensive income
Net income - 2000 4,026 4,026
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Translation adjustments @ )
Net unrealized osses on securities
available for sale, net of
reclassification of $90 million of
net gains included in net income (234) 234
Total comprehensive income 3,790
Common stock issued 17,614,859 1 295 (458) 716 554
Common stock issued for acquisitions 75,554,229 (185) (6) 3,128 2,937
Common stock repurchased 78,573,812 m (42) (3,195) (3,238)
Stock appreciation rights 48 48
Preferred stock repurchased nm (1)
Preferred stock issued to ESOP 170 (181} 1 —
Preferred stock refeased to ESOP 136 (8) 128
Preferred stock (122,288) converted
to common shares 3,036,660 (128) 5 123 —
Preferred stock dividends (17) (17)
Common stock dividends {1,569) (1,569)
Cash payments received on notes
receivable from ESOP 1 1
Change in Rabbi trust assets (classified as treasury stock) _ - (16 —_— 6
Net change 4 45 — 124 1976 _ 1 756 236 2617
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2000 _385 118 2,894 9337 14,541 —— 1,075 _524 26,488
Comprehensive income
Net income - 2001 3,423 3,423
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Translation adjustments (3) (3)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (42) (42)

Net unrealized gains on securities

available for sale, net of reclassification

of $373 million of net losses included

in net income 10 10
Cumulative effect of the change in

accounting principle for derivatives

and hedging activities 7 Al
Net unrealized gains on derivatives and

hedging activities, net of reclassification

of $76 million of net losses on cash flow

hedges included in net income 192 192

Total comprehensive income 3,651
Common stock issued 16,472,042 92 (236) 738 594
Common stock issued for acquisitions 428,343 1 1 20 22
Common stock repurchased 39,474,053 (1,760) {1,760)
Preferred stock {192,000} issued to ESOP 192 (207) 15 —
Preferred stock released to ESOP 171 (12) 159
Preferred stock (158,517) converted

to common shares 3,422,822 {159) 3 156 —
Preferred stock redeemed (200) (200)
Preferred stock dividends (14) (14)
Common stock dividends (1,710) (1,710)
Change in Rabbi trust assets (classified as treasury stock) o - _ (16) _ (16)
Net change 167 36 = 99 1,464 _—— 862 _228 726
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2001 218 154 $2,894 $9,436  $16,005 $§ — 1,937) §752  $27.214

H
|

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

56 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 3423 $ 4,026 $ 4012
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 1,780 1,329 1,104
Depreciation and amortization 2,961 1,790 1,971
Net (gains) losses on securities available for sale (597) 722 228
Net venture capital losses (gains) 1,630 (1,943) (1,008)
Net gains on mortgage loan origination/sales activities (705) (38) (117)
Net (gains) losses on sales of loans (35) 134 (68)
Net gains on dispositions of premises and equipment (21) (58) (16)
Net gains on dispositions of operations (122) (23) (107)
Release of preferred shares to ESOP 159 128 86
Net increase in trading assets (1,219) (1,087) (462)
Deferred income tax {(benefit) expense (589) 873 1,611
Net decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 232 (230) (113)
Net (decrease) increase in accrued interest payable (269) 290 (36)
Originations of mortgages held for sale {179,475) (62,095) (94,988)
Proceeds from sales of mortgages held for sale 157,884 62,873 105,159
Net increase in loans held for sale (206) (1,498) (874)
Other assets, net (349) (2,060) (1,428)
Other accrued expenses and liabilities, net 4,292 2,436 1,321
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (11,226) 5,569 16,275
Cash flows from investing activities:
Securities available for sale:
Proceeds from sales 19,586 23,624 15,150
Proceeds from prepayments and maturities 6,730 6,247 8,757
Purchases (29,053) (19,770) (29,917)
Net cash (paid for) acquired from acquisitions (459) 469 (69)
Net decrease (increase) in banking subsidiaries’ loans
resulting from originations and collections (11,596) (36,076) (11,494)
Proceeds from sales (including participations) of banking subsidiaries’ loans 2,305 11,898 3,986
Purchases (including participations) of banking subsidiaries’ loans (1,104) (409) (1,246)
Principal collected on nonbank subsidiaries' loans 9,964 8,305 4,844
Nonbank subsidiaries’ loans originated (11,651) (9,300) (9,002)
Proceeds from (paid for) dispositions of operations 1,191 13 (731)
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 279 255 234
Net (increase) decrease in federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements (932) 124 25
Net increase in mortgage servicing rights (3,405) (1,460) (2,094}
Other, net 512 (4,688) (2,366
Net cash used by investing activities (17.633) (20,768) (23,923)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 17,707 20,745 (4,868)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 8,793 (3.511) 11,912
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 14,658 15,544 13,325
Repayment of long-term debt (10,625) (9,849) (8,981)
Proceeds from issuance of guaranteed preferred beneficial interests
in Company'’s subordinated debentures 1,500 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 484 422 528
Redemption of preferred stock (200) — (191)
Repurchase of common stock (1,760) (3,238) (2,141)
Payment of cash dividends on preferred and common stock (1,724) (1,586) (1,436)
Other, net 16 {468) (34)
Net cash provided by financing activities 28,849 18,059 8,114
Net change in cash and due from banks (10) 2,860 466
Cash and due from banks at beginning of year 16,978 14,118 13,652
Cash and due from banks at end of year $ 16,968 $16,978 $ 14,118

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest S 6,472 $ 8,150 $ 5855

Income taxes $ 2,552 S 817 s 1,022
Noncash investing and financing activities:

Transfers from mortgages held for sale to loans $ 1,230 $ 129 $ 67

Transfers from loans held for sale to loans S - $ 1,388 S 1,221

Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets ) 325 $ 189 $ 220

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries (consolidated)
{the Company) is a diversified financial services company
providing banking, insurance, investments, mortgage banking
and consumer finance through banking branches, the internet
and other distribution channels to consumers, commercial
businesses and financial institutions in all 50 states of

the U.S., and in other countries. Wells Fargo & Company
{the Parent) is a financial holding company and a bank
holding company.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company
conform with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and prevailing practices within the financial services
industry. The preparation of financial statements in confor-
mity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Certain amounts in
the financial statements for prior years have been reclassified
to conform with the current financial statement presentation.

The following is a description of the significant accounting
policies of the Company.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
include the accounts of the Parent, and its majority-owned
subsidiaries, which are consolidated on a line-by-line basis.
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions are
eliminated in consolidation. Other subsidiaries in which
there is generally 20% ownership are accounted for by

the equity method; those in which there is less than 20%
ownership are generally carried at cost, except for mar-
ketable equity securities, which are carried at fair value
with changes in fair value included in other comprehensive
income. These assets that are accounted for by either the
equity or cost method are included in other assets.

Securities
Securities are accounted for according to their purpose and
holding period.

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE Debt securities that may not

be held until maturity and marketable equity securities are
classified as securities available for sale and are reported at
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, after applicable
taxes, reported as a component of cumulative other compre-
hensive income. The estimated fair value of a security is
determined based on current quotations, where available.
Where current quotations are not available, the estimated
fair value is determined based primarily on the present value
of future cash flows, adjusted for the quality rating of the
securities, prepayment assumptions and other factors.
Declines in the value of debt securities and marketable
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equity securities that are considered other than temporary
are recorded in noninterest income. Realized gains and
losses are recorded in noninterest income using the identified
certificate method. For certain debt securities (for example,
Government National Mortgage Association securities),

the Company anticipates prepayments of principal in the
calculation of the effective yield.

TRADING SECURITIES Securities acquired for short-term appre-
ciation or other trading purposes are recorded in a trading
portfolio and are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses recorded in noninterest income.

NONMARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES Nonmarketable equity
securities include the venture capital equity securities that
are not publicly traded and securities acquired for various
purposes, such as troubled debt restructurings or to meet
regulatory requirements (for example, Federal Reserve Bank
stock). These assets are reviewed at least quarterly for possi-
ble other-than-temporary impairment. Management’s review
typically includes an analysis of the facts and circumstances
of each individual investment, the expectations for that
investment’s performance and the Company’s exit strategy.
These securities are generally accounted for at cost and are
included in other assets. The asset value is reduced when
declines in value are considered to be other than temporary
and the estimated loss is recorded in noninterest income as a
loss from equity investments along with income recognized
on these assets.

Mortgages Held For Sale

Mortgages held for sale are stated at the lower of aggregate
cost or market value. The determination of any write-down
to market value includes consideration of all open positions,
outstanding commitments from investors and interest rate
lock commitment value already recorded.

Loans Held For Sale

Loans held for sale include those student loans which are
classified as held for sale because the Company does not
intend to hold these loans until maturity or sales of the
loans are pending. Such loans are carried at the lower of
aggregate cost or market value. Gains and losses are recorded
in noninterest income, based on the difference between sales
proceeds and carrying value.

Loans

Loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding,

net of unearned income. Unearned income, which includes
deferred fees net of deferred direct incremental loan origina-
tion costs, is amortized to interest income generally over the
contractual life of the loan using an interest method or the
straight-line method if it is not materially different.




NONACCRUAL LOANS Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual
status upon becoming 90 days past due as to interest or
principal (unless both well-secured and in the process of

collection), when the full timely collection of interest or
principal becomes uncertain or when a portion of the princi-
pal balance has been charged off. Real estate 1-4 family
loans (both first liens and junior liens) are placed on nonac-
crual status within 120 days of becoming past due as to
interest or principal, regardless of security. Generally,
consumer loans not secured by real estate are placed on
nonaccrual status only when a portion of the principal has
been charged off. Such loans are entirely charged off when
deemed uncollectible or when they reach a predetermined
number of days past due depending upon loan product,
industry practice, country, terms and other factors.

When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, the accrued
and unpaid interest receivable is reversed and the loan is
accounted for on the cash or cost recovery method there-
after, until qualifying for return to accrual status. Generally,
a loan may be returned to accrual status when all delinquent
interest and principal become current in accordance with
the terms of the loan agreement or when the loan is both
well-secured and in the process of collection and collectibility
is no longer doubtful.

IMPAIRED LOANS Loans, other than those included in large
groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, are consid-
ered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled interest payments.
For a loan that has been restructured, the contractual terms
of the loan agreement refer to the contractual terms specified
by the original loan agreement, not the contractual terms
specified by the restructuring agreement.

This assessment for impairment occurs when and while
such loans are on nonaccrual, or the loan has been restruc-
tured. When a loan with unique risk characteristics has been
identified as being impaired, the amount of impairment will
be measured by the Company using discounted cash flows,
except when it is determined that the sole (remaining) source
of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of
the underlying collateral. In such cases, the current fair value
of the collateral, reduced by costs to sell, will be used in
place of discounted cash flows. Additionally, some impaired
loans with commitments of less than $1 million are aggre-
gated for the purpose of measuring impairment using histor-
ical loss factors as a means of measurement, which approxi-
mates the discounted cash flow method.

If the measurement of the impaired loan is less than the
recorded investment in the loan (including accrued interest,
net deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or
discount), an impairment is recognized by creating or adjust-
ing an existing allocation of the allowance for loan losses.

RESTRUCTURED LOANS In cases where a borrower experiences
financial difficulties and the Company makes certain conces-
sionary modifications to contractual terms, the loan is
classified as a restructured (accruing) loan. Loans restructured
at a rate equal to or greater than that of a new loan with
comparable risk at the time the contract is modified may be
excluded from the impairment assessment and may cease to
be considered impaired loans in the calendar years subse-
quent to the restructuring if they are not impaired based on
the modified terms.

Generally, a nonaccrual loan that is restructured remains
on nonaccrual for a period of six months to demonstrate
that the borrower can meet the restructured terms. However,
performance prior to the restructuring, or significant events
that coincide with the restructuring, are included in assessing
whether the borrower can meet the new terms and may result
in the loan being returned to accrual at the time of restructur-
ing or after a shorter performance period. If the borrower’s
ability to meet the revised payment schedule is uncertain,
the loan remains classified as a nonaccrual loan.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES The allowance for loan losses

is a valuation allowance for probable losses inherent in the
portfolio as of the balance sheet date. The Company’s determi-
nation of the level of the allowance for loan losses rests

upon various judgments and assumptions, including general
economic conditions, loan portfolio composition, prior loan
loss experience, evaluation of credit risk related to certain
individual borrowers and the Company’s ongoing examination
process and that of its regulators. The Company considers the
allowance for loan losses adequate to cover losses inherent

in loans, loan commitments and standby and other letters

of credit.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

A transfer of financial assets is accounted for as a sale when
control is surrendered over the assets transferred. Servicing
rights and other retained interests in the assets sold are
recorded by allocating the previous recorded investment
between the asset sold and the interest retained based on
their relative fair values, if practicable to determine, at the
date of transfer. Fair values of servicing rights and other
retained interests are determined using present value of
estimated future cash flows valuation techniques, incorporating
assumptions that market participants would use in their
estimates of values.
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The Company recognizes as assets the rights to service
mortgage loans for others, whether the servicing rights are
acquired through purchases or retained upon sales of loan
originations. For purposes of evaluating and measuring
impairment of mortgage servicing rights, the Company
stratifies its portfolio on the basis of certain risk characteristics
including loan type and note rate. Based upon current fair
values, mortgage servicing rights are periodically assessed for
impairment. Any such indicated impairment is recognized in
income, during the period in which it occurs, in a mortgage
servicing rights valuation account which is adjusted each
subsequent period to reflect any increase or decrease in the
indicated impairment. The current fair values of mortgage
servicing rights and other retained interests are determined
using present value of estimated future cash flows valuation
techniques, incorporating assumptions that market partici-
pants would use in their estimates of values. Mortgage
servicing rights are amortized over the period of estimated
net servicing income and take into account appropriate
prepayment assumptions.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Capital leases are included in
premises and equipment at the capitalized amount less accu-
mulated amortization.

Depreciation and amortization are computed primarily
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives range
up to 40 years for buildings, up to 10 years for furniture
and equipment, and the shorter of the estimated useful life
or lease term for leasehold improvements. Capitalized leased
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lives
of the respective leases, which generally range from 20 to
35 years.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill, representing the excess of purchase price over

the fair value of net assets acquired, results from purchase
acquisitions made by the Company. Substantially all of the
Company’s goodwill is being amortized using the straight-line
method over 25 years. Goodwill resulting from acquisitions
with effective dates after June 30, 2001 has not been amor-
tized. Core deposit intangibles are amortized on an accelerated
basis based on an estimated useful life of 10 to 15 years.
Certain identifiable intangible assets that are included in
other assets are generally amortized using an accelerated
method over an original life of 10 to 13 vears.

The Company reviews its intangible assets periodically
for other-than-temporary impairment. If such impairment is
indicated, recoverability of the asset is assessed based on
expected undiscounted net cash flows.

Income Taxes
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return,
Federal income tax is generally allocated to individual
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subsidiaries as if each had filed a separate return. Combined
state tax returns are filed in certain states. State taxes are
also allocated to individual subsidiaries.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this
method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined
based on the tax effects of the differences between the book
and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities
and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and
laws. Foreign taxes paid are applied as credits to reduce
federal income taxes payable.

Earnings Per Common Share

Earnings per common share are presented under two formats:
earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common
share. Earnings per common share are computed by dividing
net income (after deducting dividends on preferred stock) by
the average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per common share are computed by
dividing net income (after deducting dividends on preferred
stock) by the average number of common shares outstanding
during the year, plus the impact of those common stock
equivalents (i.e., stock options, restricted share rights and
convertible subordinated debentures) that are dilutive.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 133

(FAS 133), Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, and FASB Statement No. 138, Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities-
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. All derivative
instruments are recognized on the balance sheert at fair value.
On the date the Company enters into a derivative contract the
Company designates the derivative instrument as (1) a hedge
of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an
unrecognized firm commitment {“fair value” hedge), (2} a
hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or
liability (“cash flow” hedge} or (3) held for trading, customer
accommodation or not qualifying for hedge accounting
{“free-standing derivative instruments”). For a fair value hedge,
changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument and
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability or of
an unrecognized firm commitment attributable to the hedged
risk are recorded in current period net income in the same
financial statement category as the hedged item. For a cash flow
hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument

to the extent that it is effective are recorded in other compre-
hensive income within stockholders’ equity and subsequently
reclassified to net income in the same period(s) that the hedged
transaction impacts net income in the same financial statement
category as the hedged item. For free-standing derivative instru-
ments, changes in the fair values are reported in current period
noninterest income.



The Company formally documents the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as
the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all
derivative instruments that are designated as fair value or
cash flow hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the
balance sheet or to specific forecasted transactions. The
Company also formally assesses, both at the inception of
the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative
instruments used are highly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows of hedged items. If it is determined
that the derivative instrument is not highly effective as a
hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively
when (1) it determines that a derivative instrument is no
longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash
flows of a hedged item; (2) a derivative instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised; (3) a derivative instrurnent
is dedesignated as a hedge instrument, because it is unlikely
that a forecasted transaction will occur; or (4) management
determines that designation of a derivative instrument as a
hedge instrument is no longer appropriate.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is
determined that a derivative instrument no longer qualifies
as an effective fair value hedge, the derivative instrument
will continue to be carried on the balance sheet at its fair
value with changes in fair value included in earnings, and
the previously hedged asset or liability will no longer be
adjusted for changes in fair value. Previous adjustments to
the hedged item will be accounted for in the same manner
as other components of the carrying amount of the asset or
liability. When hedge accounting is discontinued because
it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur,
the derivative instrument will continue to be carried on
the balance sheet at its fair value with changes in fair value
included in earnings, and gains and losses that were accumu-
lated in other comprehensive income will be recognized
immediately in earnings. When hedge accounting is discon-
tinued because the hedging instrument is sold, terminated, or
dedesignated the amount reported in other comprehensive
income to the date of sale, termination, or dedesignation
will continue to be reported in other comprehensive income
until the forecasted transaction impacts earnings. In all other
situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the
derivative instrument will be carried at its fair value on the
balance sheet, with changes in its fair value recognized in
current period earnings.

The Company occasionally purchases or originates
financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative
instrument. At inception of the financial instrument, the
Company assesses whether the economic characteristics of

the embedded derivative instrument are clearly and closely
related to the economic characteristics of the financial
instrument (host contract), whether the financial instrument
that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and
the host contract is currently measured at fair value with
changes in fair value reported in earnings, and whether a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
instrument would meet the definition of a derivative instru-
ment. If the embedded derivative instrument is determined

not to be clearly and closely related to the host contract,

is not currently measured at fair value with changes in fair
value reported in earnings, and the embedded derivative
instrument would qualify as a derivative instrument, the
embedded derivative instrument is separated from the host
contract and carried at fair value with changes recorded in
current period earnings. The Company has elected to not
apply FAS 133, as permitted by the FASB, to all embedded
derivative instruments that existed on January 1, 2001 and
were issued or acquired before January 1, 1999 and not
substantially modified thereafter.

Prior to the adoption of FAS 133, the Company primarily
used interest rate derivative contracts to hedge mismatches
in the rate maturity of loans and their funding sources and
the price risk of interest-rate sensitive assets. Interest rate
derivative contracts were accounted for by the deferral or
accrual method if designated as hedges and expected to be
effective in reducing risk. The resulting gains or losses were
deferred and recognized in income along with effects of
related hedged asset or liability. If the hedge was no longer
deemed to be effective, hedge accounting was discontinued;
previously unrecognized hedge results and the net settlement
upon close-out were deferred and amortized over the life of
the hedged asset or liability. If the hedged asset or liability
settled before maturity of the interest rate derivative contract
and the derivative contract was closed out or settled, the
net settlement amount was accounted for as part of the
gains and losses on the hedged item. The Company also
entered into various derivative contracts to provide derivative
products as customer accommodations. Derivative contracts
used for this purpose were marked to market and recorded
as a component of noninterest income.

Foreign Currency Translation

The accounts of the Company’s foreign consumer finance
subsidiaries are measured using local currency as the
functional currency. Assets and liabilities are translated
into United States dollars at period-end exchange rates,
and income and expense accounts are translated at average
monthly exchange rates. Net exchange gains or losses
resulting from such translation are excluded from net
income and included as a component of cumulative other
comprehensive income.
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Note 2: Business Combinations

The Company regularly explores opportunities to acquire
financial institutions and related financial services businesses.
Generally, management of the Company does not make a
public announcement about an acquisition opportunity

until a definitive agreement has been signed.

Excluding the FSCO Merger, the table below includes trans-
actions completed in the years ended December 31, 2001,

2000 and 1999:

(in millions) Date Assets Method of
accounting
2001
Conseco Finance Vendor Services Corporation January 31 $ 860 Purchase of assets
Buffalo Insurance Agency Group, Inc. March 1 1 Purchase
SCl Financial Group, Inc. March 29 21 Purchase
Midland Trust Company, National Association April 7 10 Purchase
ACO Brokerage Holdings Corporation
(Acordia Group of Insurance Agencies) May 1 866 Purchase
H.D.Vest, Inc. July 2 182 Purchase
CarFinance America, Inc. July 25 6 Purchase of assets
H &R Phillips, Inc. December 6 4 Purchase
$ 1,950
2000
First Place Financial Corporation, Farmington, New Mexico January 18 § 733 Purchase
North County Bancorp, Escondido, California January 27 413 Purchase
Prime Bancshares, Inc., Houston, Texas January 28 1,366 Purchase
Ragen MacKenzie Group Incorporated, Seattle, Washington March 16 901 Purchase
Napa National Bancorp, Napa, California March 17 188 Purchase
Servus Financial Corporation, Herndon, Virginia March 17 168 Purchase
Michigan Financial Corporation, Marquette, Michigan March 30 975 Purchase
Bryan, Pendleton, Swats & McAllister, LLC, Nashville, Tennessee March 31 12 Purchase
Black & Company, Inc., Portland, Oregon May 1 4 Purchase
1st Choice Financial Corp., Greeley, Colorado June 13 483 Purchase
First Commerce Bancshares, Inc., Lincoln, Nebraska June 16 2,868 Purchase
National Bancorp of Alaska, Inc., Anchorage, Alaska July 14 3,518 Purchase
Charter Financial, inc., New York, New York September 1 532 Purchase
Buffalo National Bancshares, Inc., Buffalo, Minnesota September 28 123 Purchase
Brenton Banks, Inc., Des Moines, lowa December 1 2,191 Purchase
Paragon Capital, LLC, Needham, Massachusetts December 15 13 Purchase
Flagship Credit Corporation, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania December 21 841 Purchase of assets
$15,329
(continued)

62 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




(in millions)

1999
Mid-Penn Consumer Discount Company, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Century Business Credit Corporation, New York, New York
Van Kasper & Company, San Francisco, California
Metropolitan Bancshares, Inc., Aurora, Colorado
Mercantile Financial Enterprises, Inc., Brownsville, Texas
Riverton State Bank Holding Company, Riverton, Wyoming
Comstock Bancorp, Reno, Nevada

Greater Midwest Leasing Company, Minneapolis, Minnesota
XEON Financial Corporation, Stateline, Nevada

Mustang Financial Corporation, Rio Vista, Texas

Eastern Heights Bank, St. Paul, Minnesota

Goodson Insurance Agency, Denver, Colorado

SB Insurance Company, Marshall, Minnesota

Allied Leasing Company, Burnsville, Minnesota

Eastdil Realty Company, L.L.C., New York, New York

Texas Bancshares, Inc., San Antonio, Texas

Date Assets Method of
accounting
January 21 $ N Purchase
February 1 342 Purchase
February 12 20 Purchase
February 23 64 Purchase
February 26 779 Pooling of interests*
March 12 81 Purchase
June 1 208 Purchase
June 3 24 Purchase
June 14 122 Purchase
June 25 254 Purchase
July 1 453 Purchase
August 1 — Purchase of assets
October 15 — Purchase
November 1 17 Purchase
November 16 9 Purchase
December 16 370 Purchase
$2,754

* Pooling-of-interests transaction was not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements; accordingly, previously reported results were not restated.

In connection with the foregoing transactions, the Company
paid cash in the aggregate amount of $803 million, $396
million and $541 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
and issued aggregate common shares of .4 million, 75.6 million
and 11.1 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2001, the Company completed its
acquisitions of H.D. Vest, Inc. and ACO Brokerage Holdings
Corporation, parent company of Acordia, Inc. H.D. Vest, Inc.
provides comprehensive financial planning services, including
securities, insurance, money management and business advice,
through approximately 6,000 independent tax and financial
advisors. Acordia, Inc. is a property and casualty insurance
agency with over $400 million in annual revenue and 112
offices in 29 states.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had 4 pending
transactions with total assets of approximately $6 billion and
anticipates that approximately 12 million common shares will
be issued and approximately $500 million in cash will be paid
upon consummation of these transactions.

Merger Involving the Company and First Security
Corporation (FSCO)

On October 25, 2000 the merger involving the Company

and First Security Corporation (FSCO Merger) was completed
as a pooling-of-interests. Under the terms of the merger
agreement, stockholders of First Security received .355 shares
of common stock of the Company for each share of common
stock owned. As a condition to the merger, the Company was
required by regulatory agencies to divest 39 stores in Idaho,
New Mexico, Nevada and Utah having aggregate deposits

of approximately $1.5 billion. These sales were completed

in the first quarter of 2001 and the Company realized a net
gain of $96 million, which included a $54 million reduction
of goodwill.
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Note 3: Cash, Loan and Dividend Restrictions

Federal Reserve Board (FRB) regulations require reserve
balances on deposits to be maintained with the Federal
Reserve Banks by each of the banking subsidiaries. The
average required reserve balance was $2.1 billion and
$2.0 billion in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Federal law prevents the Company and its nonbank
subsidiaries from borrowing from its subsidiary banks unless
the loans are secured by specified collateral. Such secured
loans by any subsidiary bank are generally limited to 10%
of the subsidiary bank’s capital and surplus (which for this
purpose represents Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital, as calculated
under the risk-based capital guidelines, plus the balance of
the allowance for loan losses excluded from Tier 2 capital)
and aggregate loans to the Company and its nonbank sub-
sidiaries are limited to 20% of the subsidiary bank’s capital
and surplus. (For further discussion of risk-based capital,
see Note 22 to Financial Statements.)

Note 4: Securities Available for Sale

The payment of dividends by subsidiary banks is subject
to various federal and state regulatory limitations. Dividends
payable by a national bank without the express approval of
the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC) are
limited to that bank’s retained net profits for the preceding
two calendar years plus retained net profits up to the date
of any dividend declaration in the current calendar year.
Retained net profits are defined by the OCC as net income
less dividends declared during the period as determined
based on regulatory accounting principles. The Company
also has state-chartered subsidiary banks that are subject to
state regulations that limit dividends. Under those provisions,
the Company’s national and state-chartered subsidiary banks
could have declared dividends of $1,026 million and $650
million in 2001 and 2000, respectively, without obtaining
prior regulatory approval. In addition, the Company’s non-
bank subsidiaries could have declared dividends of $1,292
million and $1,889 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The following table provides the cost and fair value for the
major components of securities available for sale carried at

fair value. There were no securities classified as held to
maturity at the end of 2001 or 2000.

(in millions) December 31
2001 2000

Cost Estimated  Estimated Estimated Cost Estimated Estimated  Estimated

unrealized unrealized fair value unrealized unrealized  fair value

gross gains gross losses gross gains  gross losses

Securities of U.S. Treasury and federal agencies ~ $ 1,983 $ 66
Securities of U.S. states and political subdivisions 2,146 90
Mortgage-backed securities:

Federal agencies 29,280 449
Private collateralized

mortgage obligations (1) 2,628 49

Total mortgage-backed securities 31,908 498

Other 2,625 86

Total debt securities 38,662 740

Marketable equity securities 815 264

Total® $39,477 $1,004

$ 2§ 2,047 $ 2,739 $ 49 $ 5 $ 2,783
13 2,223 2,322 20 12 2,400

8 29,721 26,304 838 147 26,995

19 2,658 1,455 43 52 1,446
27 32,379 27,759 881 199 28,441
43 2,668 2,588 37 123 2,502
85 39,317 35,408 1,057 339 36,126
88 991 2,457 563 491 2,529
$173  $40,308 $37,865 51,620 $830 $38,655

(1) Substantially all private collateralized mortgage obligations are AAA-rated bonds collateralized by 1-4 family residential first mortgages.
(2) At December 31, 2001, the Company held no securities of any single issuer (excluding the U.S. Treasury and federal agencies) with a book value that exceeded 10% of

stockholders’ equity.

The decrease in marketable equity securities of $1.64
billion in cost between December 31, 2000 and December 31,
2001 was due to dispositions and the non-cash impairment
charges taken in the second quarter of 2001 primarily in
the venture capital portfolio. The Company experienced
sustained declines in the market values of publicly traded
securities, particularly in the technology and telecommunica-
tion industries. In the second quarter of 2001, the Company
recognized non-cash charges of $1.18 billion to reflect
other-than-temporary impairment. (See Note 1 (Securities
Available for Sale) for further information.)
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Securities pledged where the secured party has the right
to sell or repledge totaled $6.2 billion at December 31, 2001
and $1.3 billion at December 31, 2000. Securities pledged
where the secured party does not have the right to sell or
repledge totaled $135.7 billion at December 31, 2001 and
$17 billion at December 31, 2000 and are primarily pledged
to secure trust and public deposits and for other purposes as
required or permitted by law. The Company has accepted
collateral in the form of securities that it has the right to
sell or repledge of $2.7 billion at December 31, 2001 and
$1.6 billion at December 31, 2000.




The table to the right provides the components of the
realized net gains (losses) on securities from the securities
available for sale portfolio. Realized gains (losses) on
securities are also reported in mortgage banking nonin-
terest income. Realized gains (losses) on marketable equity
securities from venture capital investments, which include
other-than-temporary impairment, are reported as net
venture capital gains (losses) (not included in the table to
the right).

The table below provides the remaining contractual
principal maturities and yields (taxable-equivalent basis) of
debt securities available for sale. The remaining contractual
principal maturities for mortgage-backed securities were
allocated assuming no prepayments. Expected remaining
maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
debt issuers may have the right to prepay obligations with
or without penalties.

{in millions)

Realized gross gains
Realized gross losses
Realized net gains (losses)

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
$688" 334 $ 91
_ne 1.056 (319)
$597 $ (722) $(228)

|
|

(1) Includes 5148 million of gross gains reported in mortgage banking noninterest income.
(2) Includes $14 million of gross losses reported in mortgage banking noninterest income,

December 31,2001

(in millions)
Total Weighted
amount  average
yield
Securities of U.S. Treasury
and federal agencies $ 2,047 6.55%
Securities of U.S. states and
political subdivisions 2,223 7.98
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies 29,721 7.19
Private collateralized
mortgage obligations 2,658 8.55
Total mortgage-backed securities 32,379 7.31
Other 2,668 7.80
ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE
OF DEBT SECURITIES (¥ $39,317 7.46%
TOTAL COST OF DEBT SECURITIES $38,662

Remaining contractual principal maturity

Within one year

After one year
through five years

After five years
through ten years

After ten years

Amount Yield
$ 698 6.35%

143 8.46

55 8.23

897 7.03

952 7.10

26 6.90
$1,819 7.06%

$1,781

Amount Yield Amount Yield
$1,146 6.64% S 188 6.70%
341 8.22 171 7.91
134 8.37 395 8.91

1 10.75 97 9.17
135 8.39 492 8.96
94 6.22 166 7.17
$1,716 7.27% $1,017 8.23%
$1,668 $ 997

Amount  Yield
$ 15 6.81%
1,568  7.89
29,137 7.6
1,663 933
30,800 7.28
2,382 791
$34,765 7.47%
$34,216

(1) The weighted average yield is computed using the amortized cost of debt securities available for sale.
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Note 5: Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the major categories of loans outstanding
and related unfunded commitments is shown in the table
below. Unfunded commitments are defined as all legally
binding agreements to extend credit, net of all funds lent,
and all standby and commercial letters of credit issued
under the terms of those commitments. At December 31,
2001 and 2000, the commercial loan category and related

unfunded commitments did not have a concentration in any
industry that exceeded 10% of total loans and unfunded
commitments. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the real
estate 1-4 family first mortgage and junior lien mortgage
categories and related unfunded commitments did not have

a concentration in any state that exceeded 10% of total loans
and unfunded commitments.

(in millions}) December 31,
2001 2000
Outstanding Commitments Outstanding Commitments
to extend credit to extend credit
Commercial $ 47,547 $52,682 $ 50,518 $47,597
Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 25,588 479 18,464 238
Other real estate mortgage 24,808 2,081 23,972 3,134
Real estate construction 7.806 4,237 7,715 6,181

Consumer:

Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 25,530 14,038 18,218 7,899
Credit card 6,700 16,817 6,616 19,004
Other revolving credit and monthly payment 23,502 9,104 23974 6,549
Total consumer 55,732 39,959 48,808 33,452
Lease financing 9,420 — 10,023 1,847
Foreign 1,598 214 1.624 260
Total loans $172,499 $99,652 $161,124 $92,709

(1) Outstanding loan balances at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are net of unearned income, including net deferred loan fees, of $4,143 million and $4,231 million, respectively.

In the course of evaluating the credit risk presented by a
customer and the pricing that will adequately compensate the
Company for assuming that risk, management may require
a certain amount of collateral support. The type of collateral
held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory,
land, buildings, equipment, income-producing commercial
properties and residential real estate. The Company has the
same collateral policy for loans whether they are funded
immediately or on a delayed basis (commitment).

A commitment to extend credit is a legally binding agree-
ment to lend funds to a customer usually at a stated interest
rate and for a specified purpose. Such commitments have
fixed expiration dates and generally require a fee. The
extension of a commitment gives rise to credit risk. The
actual liquidity requirements or credit risk that the Company
will experience will be lower than the contractual amount
of commitments to extend credit shown in the table above
because a significant portion of those commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon. Certain
commitments are subject to loan agreements containing
covenants regarding the financial performance of the customer
that must be met before the Company is required to fund
the commitment. The Company uses the same credit policies
in making commitments to extend credit as it does in
making loans.
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In addition, the Company manages the potential credit
risk in commitments to extend credit by limiting the total
amount of arrangements, both by individual customer and
in the aggregate; by monitoring the size and maturity structure
of these portfolios; and by applying the same credit stan-
dards maintained for all of its related credit activities. The
credit risk associated with these commitments is considered
in management’s determination of the allowance for
loan losses.

Standby letters of credit totaled $5.5 billion and
$5.6 billion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Standby letters of credit are issued on behalf of customers
in connection with contracts between the customers and
third parties. Under standby letters of credit, the Company
assures that the third parties will receive specified funds if
customers fail to meet their contractual obligations. The
liquidity risk to the Company arises from its obligation
to make payment in the event of a customer’s contractual
default. The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of
credit and the Company’s management of that credit risk is
considered in management’s determination of the allowance
for loan losses. Standby letters of credit are reported net of
participations sold to other institutions of $736 million in
2001 and $623 million in 2000.




Included in standby letters of credit are those that back
financial instruments (financial guarantees). The Company
had issued or purchased participations in financial guarantees
of approximately $1.6 billion and $2.3 billion at December
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company also had
commitments for commercial and similar letters of credit of
$577 million and $729 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Substantially all fees received from the
issuance of financial guarantees are deferred and amortized
on a straight-fine basis over the term of the guarantee.

The Company has an established process to determine the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses which assesses the
risk and losses inherent in its portfolio. This process provides
an allowance consisting of two components, allocated and
unallocated. To arrive at the allocated component of the
allowance, the Company combines estimates of the
allowances needed for loans analyzed individually {including
impaired loans subject to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 114 (FAS 114), Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan) and loans analyzed on a pool basis.

The determination of the allocated allowance for portfo-
lios of larger commercial and commercial real estate loans
involves a review of individual higher-risk transactions, focus-
ing on the accuracy of loan grading, assessments of specific
loss content, and, in some cases, strategies for resolving prob-
lem credits. These considerations supplement the application of
loss factors delineated by individual loan grade to the existing
distribution of risk exposures, thus framing an assessment of
inherent losses across the entire wholesale lending portfolio
segment which is responsive to shifts in portfolio risk content.
The loss factors used for this analysis have been derived from
migration models which track actual portfolio movements
from problem asset loan grades to loss over a 5 to 10 year
period. In the case of pass loan grades, the loss factors are
derived from analogous loss experience in public debt mar-
kets, calibrated to the long-term average loss experience of
the Company’s portfolios. The loan loss allocations arrived
at through this factor methodology are adjusted by manage-
ment’s judgment concerning the effect of recent economic
events on portfolio performance.

In the case of more homogeneous portfolios, such as
consumer loans and leases, residential mortgage loans, and
some segments of small business lending, the determination
of the allocated allowance is conducted at an aggregate, or
pooled, level. For such portfolios, the risk assessment process
emphasizes the development of rigorous forecasting models,
which focus on recent delinquency and loss trends in different
portfolio segments to project relevant risk metrics over an
intermediate-term horizon. Such analyses are updated
frequently to capture the most recent behavioral characteristics
of the subject portfolios, as well as any changes in manage-
ment’s loss mitigation or customer solicitation strategies, in

order to reduce the differences between estimated and
observed losses. An amount which approximates one year

of projected net losses is provided as the baseline allocation
for most homogeneous portfolios, to which management
will add certain adjustments to help ensure that a prudent
amount of conservatism is present in the specific assumptions
underlying thar forecast.

While coverage of one year’s losses is often adequate
(particularly for homogeneous pools of loans and leases),
the time period covered by the allowance may vary by portfo-
lio, based on the Company’s best estimate of the inherent
losses in the entire portfolio as of the evaluation date. To
mitigate the imprecision inherent in most estimates of expected
credit losses, the allocated component of the allowance is
supplemented by an unallocated component. The unallocated
component includes management’s judgmental determination
of the amounts necessary for concentrations, economic
uncertainties and other subjective factors; correspondingly,
the relationship of the unallocated component to the total
allowance for loan losses may fluctuate from period to
period. Although management has allocated a portion of
the allowance to specific loan categories, the adequacy of
the allowance must be considered in its entirety.

The Company’s determination of the level of the allowance
and, correspondingly, the provision for loan losses rests
upon various judgments and assumptions, including general
economic conditions, loan portfolio composition, prior loan
loss experience and the Company’s ongoing examination
process and that of its regulators. The Company has an
internal risk analysis and review staff that continuously
reviews loan quality and reports the results of its examina-
tions to executive management and the Board of Directors.
Such reviews also assist management in establishing the level
of the allowance. Like all national banks, subsidiary national
banks continue to be subject to examination by their primary
regulator, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
(OCC), and some have OCC examiners in residence. These
examinations occur throughout the year and target various
activities of the subsidiary national banks, including specific
segments of the loan portfolio (for example, commercial
real estate and shared national credits). In addition to the
subsidiary national banks being examined by the OCC, the
Parent and its nonbank subsidiaries are examined by the
Federal Reserve Board.

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of
$3.76 billion adequate to cover losses inherent in loans, loan
commitments and standby and other letters of credit at
December 31, 2001.
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Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows: In accordance with FAS 114, the following table shows

the recorded investment in impaired loans and the related

(in millions)

Balance, beginning of year

Allowances related to
business combinations

Provision for loan losses

Loan charge-offs:
Commercial

Real estate 1-4 family
first mortgage

Other real estate mortgage
Real estate construction
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family
junior lien mortgage
Credit card

Other revolving credit and
monthly payment

Total consumer
Lease financing
Foreign
Total loan charge-offs
Loan recoveries:
Commercial

Real estate 1-4 family
first mortgage

Other real estate mortgage
Real estate construction
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family
junior lien mortgage
Credit card

Other revolving credit and
monthly payment

Total consumer
Lease financing
Foreign
Total loan recoveries
Total net loan
charge-offs
Balance, end of year

Total net loan charge-offs
as a percentage of
average total loans

Allowance as a percentage
of total loans

Year ended December 31,

methodology used to measure impairment at December 31,

2001 and 2000:

2001 2000 1999
$3,719 $ 3344 §3,307 T
(in millions) December 31
2001 2000
41 265 48
1,780 1,329 1,104 Impairment measurement based on:
Collateral value method $485 $174
(692) (429) (395) D?scognted cash flow method 338 331
Historical loss factors 172 _257
(29) (16) (14) Total $995 5762
(32) (32) (28)
(37) ® (2) (1) Includes $529 million and $345 miltion of impaired loans with a related
FAS 114 allowance of $91 million and $74 million at December 31,2001 and
2000, respectively.
(a7) (34) (33)
(421) (367) (403)
(770 (623) (585) The average recorded investment in impaired loans during
(1,238) (1,024) (1,021) 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $937 million, $470 million and
(94) (52) (38) $376 million, respectively. Total interest income recognized
—(78) — (86) — 50 on impaired loans during 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $17
(2:200) (1.647) 11588 million, $4 million and $7 million, respectively, which was
96 o8 % primarily recorded using the cash method.
The Company uses either the cash or cost recovery
3 4 6 method to record cash receipts on impaired loans that are
2; 13 3? on nonaccrual. Under the cash method, contractual interest
is credited to interest income when received. This method is
used when the ultimate collectibility of the total principal is
n 14 5 not in doubt. Under the cost recovery method, all payments
40 39 49 received are applied to principal. This method is used when
203 213 243 the ultimate collectibility of the toral principal is in doubt.
254 266 307 Loans on the cost recovery method may be changed to the
25 13 12 cash method when the application of the cash payments has
18 30 15 . .
221 228 73 reduced the principal balance to a level where collection of
the remaining recorded investment is no Jonger in doubt.
{1,779) (1,219 1.115)
$3,761 $ 3719 $3344
1.09% .84% .90%
2.18% 2.31% 2.51%
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Note 6: Premises, Equipment, Lease Commitments, Interest Receivable and Other Assets

The following table presents comparative data for premises
and equipment:

The components of interest receivable and other assets at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

(in millions) December 31,
2001 2000
Land $ 463 $ 440
Buildings 2,593 2,553
Furniture and equipment 3,012 2,942
Leasehold improvements 874 761
Premises leased under capital leases 54 75
Total 6,996 6,771
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization 3,447 3,356
Net book value $3,549 $3,415

Depreciation and amortization expense was $561 million,
$560 million and $499 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

The Company is obligated under a number of noncancelable
operating leases for premises (including vacant premises) and
equipment with terms, including renewal options, up to 100
years, many of which provide for periodic adjustment of rentals
based on changes in various economic indicators. The following
table shows future minimum payments under noncancelable
operating leases and capital leases, net of sublease rentals,
with terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2001:

(in millions) Operating leases Capital leases

Year ended December 31,

2002 $ 383 $ 8
2003 304 6
2004 253 4
2005 190 3
2006 158 3
Thereafter 736 21
Total minimum lease payments $2,024 45
Executory costs (1)
Amounts representing interest 17
Present value of net minimum $27

I

lease payments

Rental expense, net of rental income, for all operating
leases was $473 million, $499 million and $418 million in
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(in millions) December 31,

2001 2000

Trading assets $ 4,996 $ 3,777
Nonmarketable equity investments:

Venture capital cost method investments 1,696 2,033

Federal Reserve Bank stock 1,295 1,237

All other 1,071 872

Total nonmarketable equity investments 4,062 4,142
Government National Mortgage
Association (GNMA} pool buy-outs 2,815 1,510
Interest receivable 1,284 1,516
Interest-earning deposits 206 95
Foreclosed assets 171 128
Certain identifiable intangible assets 119 227
Due from customers on acceptances 104 85
Other 9,788 10,449
Total interest receivable
and other assets $23,545 $21,929

Trading assets consist largely of securities, including
corporate debt, U.S. government agency obligations and
derivative instruments held for customer accommodation
purposes. Interest income from trading assets was $114
million, $98 million and $81 million in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. Noninterest income from trading assets
was $400 million, $238 million and $112 million in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

Noninterest {loss) income from nonmarketable equity
investments accounted for using the cost method was $(55)
million, $170 million and $138 million in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. The decreases from 2000 to 2001 in
noninterest income and the balance of venture capital cost
method investments was primarily due to a $330 million
second quarter 2001 impairment write-down of certain
venture capital cost method investments.

GNMA pool buy-outs are advances made to GNMA
mortgage pools that are guaranteed by the Federal Housing
Administration or by the Department of Veterans Affairs
(collectively, “the guarantors”}. These advances are made
to buy out government agency-guaranteed delinquent
loans, pursuant to the Company’s servicing agreements. The
Company, on behalf of the guarantors, undertakes the collec-
tion and foreclosure process. After the foreclosure process is
complete, the Company is reimbursed for substantially all
costs incurred, including the advances, by the guarantors.

Amortization expense for certain identifiable intangible
assets included in other assets was $38 million, $42 million
and $68 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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Note 7: Deposits

The aggregate amount of time certificates of deposit and
other time deposits issued by domestic offices was $26,454
million and $36,207 million at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Substantially all of those deposits were
interest bearing. The contractual maturities of those deposits
are shown in the following table.

(in millions) December 31, 2001
2002 $19,533
2003 3,825
2004 1,169
2005 753
2006 472
Thereafter 702
Total $26,454

Of the total above, the amount of time deposits with a
denomination of $100,000 or more was $6,427 million and
$9,741 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note 8: Short-Term Borrowings

The contractual maturities of these deposits are shown in the
following table.

(in millions) December 31, 2001
Three months or less $2,534
After three months through six months 1,282
After six months through twelve months 1,172
After twelve months 1,439
Total $6,427

Time certificates of deposit and other time deposits issued
by foreign offices with a denomination of $100,000 or more
represent most of the foreign deposit liabilities of $4,132
million and $7,712 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Demand deposit overdrafts that have been reclassified
as loan balances were $638 million and $749 million at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The table below shows selected information for short-term borrowings.

These borrowings generally mature in less than 30 days.

(in millions) 2001 2000 1999
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
As of December 31,
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings $13,965 2.01% $15,844 6.64% $17,246 6.06%
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 23,817 1.53 13,145 5.81 14,481 473
Total $37,782 1.71 $ 28989 6.26 $ 31,727 5.45
Year ended December 31,
Average daily balance
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings $13,561 4,12% $ 14,375 6.43% $10,272 5.40%
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 20,324 3.51 13,847 6.03 12,287 4.69
Total $33,885 3.76 $ 28222 6.23 $22,559 5.00
Maximum month-end balance
Commercial paper and other short-term borrowings ) $19,818 N/A $ 17,730 N/A $ 17,246 N/A
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase @ 26,346 N/A 16,535 N/A 15,147 N/A

N/A - Not applicable.

(1) Highest month-end balance in each of the fast three years appeared in October 2001, January 2000 and December 1999, respectively.
(2) Highest month-end balance in each of the last three years appeared in September 2001, August 2000 and August 1999, respectively.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had available lines
of credit totaling $4.3 billion, of which $2.3 billion was
obtained through a subsidiary, Wells Fargo Financial, Inc.
The remaining $2.0 billion was in the form of a revolving
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credit facility. A portion of these financing arrangements
require the maintenance of compensating balances or
payment of fees, which are not material.




Note 9: Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt (reflecting
unamortized debt discounts and premiums, where applicable)

owed by the Parent and its subsidiaries:

(in millions)

Wells Fargo & Company (Parent only)
Senior
Global Notes ()
Global Notes
Medium-Term Notes (!
Medium-Term Notes
Floating-Rate Medium-Term Notes
Floating-Rate Euro Medium-Term Notes
Notes
Extendable Notes (&
Total senior debt
Subordinated
Global Notes (1)
Notes (1)
Debentures
Other notes (1)

Total subordinated debt
Total long-term debt - Parent

WFC Holdings Corporation
Senior
Medium-Term Notes (1)
Medium-Term Notes

Total senior debt
Subordinated
Medium-Term Notes (N3)
Medium-Term Notes
Notes
Notes (1)
Notes (N3

Total subordinated debt

Total long-term debt - WFC Holdings

Wells Fargo Financial, Inc. and its subsidiaries (WFFI)
Senior

Medium-Term Notes

Floating-Rate Notes

Notes

Total long-term debt — WFFI

First Security Corporation and its subsidiaries
Senior
Medium-Term Notes
Floating-Rate Euro Medium-Term Notes 4
Floating-Rate Euro Medium-Term Notes
Federal Home Loan Bank {FHLB) Notes and Advances
Notes
Other notes &)

Total senior debt

Subordinated
Notes

Total subordinated debt
Total long-term debt - FSCO

Maturity
date

2002-2006
2002
2002-2006
2002-2027
2002-2004
2001
2004
2005

2011
2003
2023
2003

2002
2002

2013
2002
2002-2003
2004-2006
2008

2002-2008
2002-2003
2002-2009

2003
2002
2003
2002-2010
2003-2006
2002-2007

2002-2006

Interest
rate(s)

6.50-7.25%
Various
5.75-6.875%
3.375-7.75%
Various
Various
6.00%
Various

6.375%
6.625%
6.65%
6.625-6.75%

10.00%
9.04-10.00%

6.50-6.625%
9.375%
6.125-8.75%
6.875-9.125%
6.25%

5.1-747%
Various
5.375-8.56%

6.40%
Various
Various
2.02-6.47%
5.875-6.875%

7.00-7.50%

2001

801

6,395
8,146

2000

$ 3,986
1,997
2,095

620
2,100
300

1,497
12,596

881
1,020
5,068

6,969

(1) The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements for substantially all of these notes, whereby the Company receives fixed-rate interest payments approximately
equal to interest on the notes and makes interest payments based on an average three-month or six-month LIBOR rate.
(2) The extendable notes are a floating rate security with an initial maturity of 13 months, which can be extended on a rolling basis, at the investor’s option to a final maturity

of 5 years.

(3) The interest rate swap agreement for these notes is callable by the counterparty prior to the maturity of the notes.
(4) The Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement for these notes, whereby the Company receives interest payments based on an average three-month LIBOR
rate and makes fixed-rate interest payments ranging from 5.625% 10 5.65%.

(5) The notes are tied to low-income housing funding.

(continued on page 72)
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(continued from page 71)

Maturity Interest
(in millions) date rate(s) 2001 2000
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Senior
Floating Rate Bank Notes 2002 Various $ 1,525 $ —
Notes payable by subsidiaries 2003-2009 8.25-13.50% 52 48
Other notes 2003 8.5% 3 3
Obligations of subsidiaries under capital eases (Note 6) 8 11 2
Total senior debt 1,588 62
Subordinated
Floating-Rate Notes (6! 2005 Various — 750
FixFloat Notes (calfable 6/15/2005) (T} 2010 7.8% through 2005, various 997 996
Notes (1) 2010-2011 6.45-7.55% 2,496 747
Total subordinated debt 3,493 2,493
Total long-term debt - WFB, N.A. 5,081 2,555
Other consolidated subsidiaries
Senior
FHLB Notes and Advances ) 2002-2027 3.15-8.38% 2,21 367
Floating-Rate FHLB Advances 2002-2011 1.824-2.174% 2,334 4,409
Other notes and debentures 2001-2015 3.00-12.00% 239 316
Capital lease obligations (Note 6) 19 15
Total long-term debt - other consolidated subsidiaries 4,803 5107
Total consolidated long-term debt $36,095 $ 32,046

(6) The notes were called in May 2001 at par.
(7) The maturities of the FHLB advances are determined quarterly, based on the outstanding balance, the then current LIBOR rate, and the maximum life of the advance.
Advances maturing within the next year are expected to be refinanced, extending the maturity of such borrowings beyond one year.

At December 31, 2001, the principal payments, including The interest rates on floating-rate notes are determined
sinking fund payments, on long-term debt are due as noted periodically by formulas based on certain money market
in the following table. rates, subject, on certain notes, to minimum or maximum

interest rates.

As part of its long-term and short-term borrowing

{in miltions) Parent Company arrangements, the Company was subject to various financial
2002 $ 3,125 $10,115 and operational covenants. Certain of the agreements under
2003 3,398 6,904 which debt has been issued contain provisions that may limit
2004 2,000 3915 the merger or sale of certain subsidiary banks and the issuance
2005 2,993 4,273 . . . . Ly
3006 1596 1359 of capital stock or convertible securities by certain subsidiary
Thereafter 1344 5529 banks. At December 31, 2001, the Company was in compliance
Total $14,.456 $36,095 with all the covenants.
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Note 10: Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests In Company’s Subordinated Debentures

The special purpose trusts, identified in the table on the

next page, were established by the Parent in 2001, and by
WEFC Holdings Corporation (the former Wells Fargo &
Company) in 1996 and 1997, and by First Security in 1996
(both of which are now direct subsidiaries of the Parent)

(the holding company subsidiaries) for the purpose of issuing
trust preferred securities and related trust common securities.
The proceeds from such issuances were used by the trusts

to purchase junior subordinated debentures (debentures)

of the Parent or the debentures of the applicable holding
company subsidiary, which are the sole assets of each trust.
Concurrently with the issuance of the trust preferred securi-
ties, the Parent or the holding company subsidiary, as
applicable, issued guarantees for the benefit of the holders

of the trust preferred securities. These trust preferred securi-
ties are treated by the Company as Tier 1 regulatory capital
and provide the Company with a more cost-effective means
of obtaining Tier 1 capital for regulatory purposes than if

the Company itself were to issue additional preferred stock.

The sole assets of these special purpose trusts are the
debentures issued by the Parent, (for the 2001 trusts) or the
debentures issued by a holding company subsidiary, as
applicable. The Parent and the holding company subsidiaries
own all of the common securities of their related trusts. The
trust preferred securities issued by the trusts rank senior to
the common securities. The common securities and debentures,
along with the related income effects, are eliminated within
the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The
respective obligations of the Parent and the holding company
subsidiaries under the debentures, indentures, the trust agree-
ments, and the guarantees relating to the trusts established
by each of them and identified in the table below in each
case constitute the full and unconditional guarantee by the
Parent or the holding company subsidiary, as applicable, of
the obligations of the trusts with respect to the trust pre-
ferred securities and rank subordinate and junior in right
of payment to all of their other liabilities. The Parent also
guaranteed the obligations previously issued by the former
Wells Fargo & Company and assumed by WFC Holdings
with respect to the 1996 and 1997 trusts.
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The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory
redemption at the stated maturity date of the debentures,
upon repayment of the debentures, or earlier, pursuant to the
terms of the trust agreements. The table below summarizes

the outstanding preferred securities issued by each special
purpose trust and the debentures issued by the Parent

or the holding company subsidiary to each trust as of
December 31, 2001:

(in millions)
Trust preferred securities
Trust name Issuance date Amount
Wells Fargo Capital A () November 1996 $ 85
Wells Fargo Capital B November 1996 153
Wells Fargo Capital C (" November 1996 186
Wells Fargo Capital | (V) December 1996 212
Wells Fargo Capital It () January 1997 149
Wells Fargo Capital [V ()3} August 2001 1,300
Wells Fargo Capital V 3 December 2001 200
First Security Capital | December 1996 150
Total $2,435

Trust preferred securities

Principal and debentures
balance of Stated Annualized Interest payable/
debentures maturity coupon rate distribution dates®
§ %4 December 1,2026 8.13% Semi-annual -
June 1 and December 1
159 December 1,2026 7.95% Semi-annual -
June 1 and December 1
194 December 1,2026 7.73% Semi-annual -
June 1 and December 1
224 December 15,2026 7.96% Semi-annual -
June 15 and December 15
155 January 30,2027 LIBOR +.5% Quarterly -
January 30, April 30,
July 30 and October 30
1,300 September 1,2031 7.00% Quarterly -
March 1, June 1,
September 1 and December 1
200 December 1,2031 7.00% Quarterly -
March 1, June 1,
September 1 and December 1
150 December 15,2026 841% Semi-annual -

June 15 and December 15

) Established by WFC Holdings (the former Wells Fargo).
) Established by the Parent.

4l
(2
{3) The Parent has the right to extend the stated maturity dates of the debentures held by the indicated trusts for a period of up to 19 years.
(4

) All distributions are cumulative.

The debentures held by the trusts may be redeemed at the
option of the Parent or the holding company subsidiaries as
applicable, and the corresponding trust preferred securities
will also be redeemed, subject to any applicable regulatory
approvals, at the redemption prices specified under the terms
of the debentures and trust preferred securities on or after
certain stated dates occurring in August 2006 for Wells
Fargo Capital IV, in December 2006 for Wells Fargo Capital
A, Wells Fargo Capital B, Wells Fargo Capital C, Wells
Fargo Capital I, Wells Fargo Capital V, and First Security
Capital I, and in January 2007 for Wells Fargo Capital II.
Prior to the applicable stated redemption date, the trust
preferred securities may be redeemed at the option of the
Parent or the applicable holding company subsidiary, and
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the related trust preferred securities will be redeemed after
the occurrence of certain events that would have a negative
tax effect on the Parent, the holding company subsidiaries
or their applicable trusts, would cause the trust preferred
securities to no longer qualify as Tier 1 capirtal, or would
result in a trust being treated as an investment company.
The ability of each trust to pay timely distributions on its
trust preferred securities depends upon the Parent or the
applicable holding company subsidiary making the related
payment on the debentures when due. The Parent or the
holding company subsidiaries have the right to defer
payment of interest on the debentures and, therefore,
distributions on the trust preferred securities for up to

five years.




Note 11: Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 20 million shares of liquidation preference but have no general voting rights. No
preferred stock and 4 million shares of preference stock, preference shares have been issued under this authorization.
both without par value. All preferred shares outstanding The following table is a summary of preferred stock:

rank senior to common shares both as to dividends and

Shares issued Carrying amount Dividends declared
and outstanding (in millions) Adjustable (in millions)
December 31, December 31, dividend rate Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 2001 2000 Minimum Maximum 2001 2000 1999
Adjustable-Rate Cumulative, Series B{" 1,460,000 1,460,000 $ 73 $73 5.50% 10.50% $ 4 $ 4 $ 4
6.59%/Adjustable-Rate Noncumulative '

Preferred Stock, Series H (D@ — 4,000,000 —_ 200 7.00 13.00 10 13 13
Cumulative Tracking & —_ — — — — — — — 18
2001 ESOP Cumulative Convertible 4 61,800 — 62 — 10.50 11.50 — — —
2000 ESOP Cumulative Convertible ¢4 39,962 55,273 40 55 11.50 12.50 — — —
1999 ESQP Cumulative Convertible @ 15,552 18,206 15 18 10.30 11.30 — — —
1998 ESOP Cumulative Convertible ¢4 6,145 7,631 6 8 10.75 11.75 — — —
1997 ESOP Cumulative Convertible 4 7,576 9,542 8 10 9.50 10.50 — — —
1996 ESOP Cumulative Convertible ¢4 7,707 10,211 8 10 8.50 9,50 —_ — —
1995 ESOP Cumulative Convertible ) 5,543 8,285 5 8 10.00 10.00 — — —
ESOP Cumulative Convertible 4! 1,002 2,656 1 3 9.00 9.00 — — —
Unearned ESOP shares ) — — (154) 118 — — — —_ =
Total 1,605,287 5,571,804 $64 $267 $14 $17 $35

(1) Liquidation preference $50.

(2) Annualized dividend rate was 6.59% until October 1, 2001. On October 1,2001 all shares were redeemed at the stated liquidation price plus accrued dividends.

(3) In December 1999, the Company redeemed all shares of its Cumulative Tracking preferred stock.

(4) Liquidation preference $1,000.

(5) In accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position 93-6, Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership
Pians, the Company recorded a corresponding charge to unearned ESOP shares in connection with the issuance of the ESOP Preferred Stock. The unearned ESOP
shares are reduced as shares of the ESOP Preferred Stock are committed to be released. For information on dividends declared, see Note 12.

ADJUSTABLE-RATE CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES B quarterly at annual rates ranging from 8.50 percent to 12.50
These shares are redeemable at the option of the Company percent, depending upon the year of issuance. Each share of
at $50 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. ESOP Preferred Stock released from the unallocated reserve
Dividends are cumulative and payable quarterly on the of the Plan is converted into shares of common stock of the
15th of February, May, August and November. For each Company based on the stated value of the ESOP Preferred
quarterly period, the dividend rate is 76% of the highest Stock and the then current market price of the Company’s
of the three-month Treasury bill discount rate, 10-year common stock. The ESOP Preferred Stock is also convertible
constant maturity Treasury security yield or 20-year at the option of the holder at any time, unless previously
constant maturity Treasury bond yield, but limited to a redeemed. The ESOP Preferred Stock may be redeemed at
minimum of 5.5% and a maximum of 10.5% per year. any time, in whole or in part, at the option of the Company
The average dividend rate was 5.6% during 2001 and at a redemption price per share equal to the higher of
2000 and 5.5% in 1999, {a) $1,000 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends or
(b) the fair market value, as defined in the Certificates of
ESOP CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK Designation of the ESOP Preferred Stock.

All shares of the Company’s 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, 1997,
1996 and 1995 ESOP Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock and ESOP Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
(collectively, ESOP Preferred Stock) were issued to a trustee
acting on behalf of the Wells Fargo & Company 401(k)

Plan (formerly known as the Norwest Corporation Savings
Investment Plan). Dividends on the ESOP Preferred Stock are
cumulative from the date of initial issuance and are payable
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Note 12: Common Stock and Stock Plans

Common Stock
The following table summarizes common stock reserved,
issued and authorized as of December 31, 2001:

Number of shares

Convertible subordinated

debentures 24,400
Acquisition contingencies 139,337
Dividend reinvestment and

common stock purchase plans 2,126,970
Director plans 1,323,541
Stock plans (1 219,541,353

Total shares reserved 223,155,601
Shares issued 1,736,381,025
Shares not reserved 4,040463,374

Total shares authorized 6,000,000,000

(1) Includes employee option, 401(k}, profit sharing and compensation
deferral plans.

Each share of the Company’s common stock includes one
preferred share purchase right. These rights will become
exercisable only if a person or group acquires or announces
an offer to acquire 15 percent or more of the Company’s
common stock. When exercisable, each right will entitle the
holder to buy one one-thousandth of a share of a new series
of junior participating preferred stock at a price of $160 for
each one one-thousandth of a preferred share. In addition,
upon the occurrence of certain events, holders of the rights
will be entitled to purchase either the Company’s common
stock or shares in an “acquiring entity” at one-half of the
then current market value. The Company will generally be
entitled to redeem the rights at one cent per right at any time
before they become exercisable. The rights will expire on
November 23, 2008, unless extended, previously redeemed
or exercised. The Company has reserved 1.7 million shares
of preferred stock for issuance upon exercise of the rights.

Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plans
The Company’s dividend reinvestment and common stock
direct purchase plans permit participants to purchase at fair
market value shares of the Company’s common stock by
reinvestment of dividends and/or optional cash payments,
subject to the terms of the plan.
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Director Plans

Under the Company’s director plans, non-employee directors
receive stock as part of their annual retainer. These plans
provide for annual grants of options to purchase common
stock to each non-employee director elected or re-elected at
the annual meeting of stockholders. Options granted become
exercisable after six months and may be exercised until

the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. Compensation
expense for the options is measured as the quoted market
price of the stock at the date of exercise less the grant price
and is accrued over the vesting period.

Employee Stock Plans

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS The Company’s stock incentive
plans provide for awards of incentive and nonqualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares,
restricted share rights, performance awards and stock
awards without restrictions. Employee stock options can

be granted with exercise prices at or above the fair market
value (as defined in the plan) of the stock at the date of
grant and with terms of up to ten years. The options
generally become fully exercisable over three years from
the date of grant. Except as otherwise permitted under the
plan, upon termination of employment for reasons other
than retirement, permanent disability or death, the option
period is reduced or the options are canceled. Options also
may include the right to acquire a “reload” stock option.

If an option contains the reload feature and if a participant
pays all or part of the exercise price of the option with
shares of stock purchased in the market or held by the
participant for at least six months, upon exercise of the
option, the participant is granted a new option to purchase,
at the fair market value of the stock as of the date of the
reload, the number of shares of stock equal to the sum of
the number of shares used in payment of the exercise price
and a number of shares with respect to related taxes. No
compensation expense was recorded for the options granted
under the plans, as the exercise price was equal to the
quoted market price of the stock at the date of grant. The
total number of shares of common stock available for grant
under the plans as of December 31, 2001 was 50,271,203,




Holders of restricted shares and restricted share rights
are entitled at no cost to the related shares of common stock
generally over three to five years after the restricted shares
or restricted share rights were granted. Upon grant of the
restricted shares or restricted share rights, holders generally
are entitled to receive quarterly cash payments equal to the
cash dividends that would be paid on common stock equal
to the number of restricted shares or restricted share rights.
Except in limited circumstances, restricted shares and
restricted share rights are canceled upon termination of
employment. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, 107,000, 56,636 and
204,868 restricted shares and restricted share rights were
granted, respectively, with a weighted-average grant-date per
share fair value of $46.73, $40.61 and $43.24, respectively.
As of December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, there were
888,234, 1,450,074 and 2,423,999 restricted shares and
restricted share rights outstanding, respectively. The compen-
sation expense for the restricted shares and restricted share
rights equals the quoted market price of the related stock at
the date of grant and is accrued over the vesting period. The
total compensation expense recognized for the restricted
shares and restricted share rights was $6 million in 2001
and 2000 and $21 million in 1999.

In connection with various acquisitions and mergers since
1992, the Company converted employee and director stock
options of acquired or merged companies into stock options
to purchase the Company’s common stock based on the
terms of the original stock option plan and the agreed-upon

exchange ratio.

BROAD-BASED PLANS In 1996, the Company adopted the
Best Practices PartnerShares® Plan, a broad-based employee
stock option plan covering full- and part-time employees
who were not participants in the long-term incentive plans
described above. The total number of shares of common
stock authorized for issuance under the plan since inception
through December 31, 2001 was 67,000,000, including
14,936,350 shares available for grant. Options granted
under the PartnerShares Plan have an exercise date that
generally is the earlier of five years after the date of grant
or when the quoted market price of the stock reaches a

predetermined price. Those options generally expire ten
years after the date of grant. Because the exercise price of
each PartnerShares grant has been equal to or higher than
the quoted market price of the Company’s common stock
at the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.
The following table summarizes the Company’s stock

option activity and related information for the three years

ended December 31, 2001:

Director Plans

Long-Term Incentive Plans

Broad-Based Plans'>)

Number  Weighted-average Number  Weighted-average Number  Weighted-average
exercise price exercise price exercise price
Options outstanding as of December 31,1998 562,590 $21.02 64,131,146 $24.78 41,805,980 $33.60
1999:
Granted 38,253 4260 17,492,150@3) 39.59 — —
Canceled — — (2,198,973) 28.30 (7,836,842) 34.76
Exercised 75,745) 16.57 (12.817.198 19.63 (1.454,838) 2440
Options outstanding as of December 31, 1999 525,098 2324 66,607,125 29.53 32,514,300 33.72
2000:
Granted 28,0800 42.75 23,183,070123) 35.63 23,160,800 46.50
Canceled (5,005) 2504 (1,896,001) 35.74 (4,827,800) 36.81
Exercised (115,495) 12.94 (13,906,642} 22.93 (390,695) 18.19
Acquisitions — — 797,076 2043 — —
Options outstanding as of December 31, 2000 432,678 27.23 74,784,628 3239 50,456,605 39.41
2001:
Granted 49,6350 47.55 19,930,772(23) 49.52 353,60014) 4184
Canceled — (1,797,865) 43.21 {5,212,550) 41.81
Exercised 169,397 19.42 (10,988,267) 25.61 191,440 2143
Options outstanding as of December 31,2001 312916 34.69 81,929,268 $37.23 45,406,215 $39.23
Qutstanding options exercisable as of:
December 31,1999 511,225 $22.06 39,582,781 $24.86 1,646,500 $17.64
December 31,2000 432,678 27.23 44,893,948 30.36 1,309,005 18.33
December 31,2001 312,916 34.69 46,937,295 33.44 1,264,015 20.29

(
(
(
(
(

1) The weighted-average per share fair value of options granted was $13.87,$12.60 and $12.09 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
2) The weighted-average per share fair value of options granted was $14.16,$10.13 and $10.16 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
3) Includes 1,791,852, 2,029,063 and 2,285,910 reload grants at December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

4) The weighted-average per share fair value of options granted was $5.90 and $4.60 for 2001 and 2000, respectively.

5) Activity for broad-based plans in 1999 includes the options related to the Employee Stock Purchase Pian, which was discontinued in 2000.The Employee Stock Purchase

Plan allowed eligible employees of the former Wells Fargo to purchase common stock at a price of the lower of (1) the quoted market price of the stock at the date of

grant or (2) 85% of the quoted market price at the end of the one-year option term.
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The following table is a summary of selected information In accordance with FAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
for the Company’s stock option plans described on the Compensation, the Company has elected to continue applying
preceding page: the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion 235,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, in accounting for
the stock plans described above. Had compensation cost for

December 31,2001 those stock plans been determined based on the (optional)
Weighted- Number  Weighted- fair value method established by FAS 123, the Company’s
average average . .
remaining exercise net income and earnings per common share would have
contractual price been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the
life (in yrs.)
table below.
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES
Director Plans (in millions, except per Year ended December 31,
5.10 common share amounts) 2001 2000 1999
Options outstanding/exercisable 3.01 2,390 $ .10
$7.84-$13.48 Net income
Options outstanding/exercisable 236 8,210 11.49 As reported $3,423 $4,026 $4,012
$13.49-516.00 Pro forma 3,277 3914 3,909
Options outstanding/exercisable 3.27 30,940 15.10 Earnings per common share
$16.01-$25.04 As reported $ 1.99 $ 236 $ 232
Options outstanding/exercisable 3.94 64,788 21.98 Pro forma 1.91 2.29 2.26
$25.05-$38.29 Diluted earnings per common share
Options outstanding/exercisable 5.90 74,620 33.47 As reported $ 1.97 $ 233 $ 229
$38.30-551.00 Pro forma 1.89 2.27 2.23
Options outstanding/exercisable 8.12 131,968 48.27
Long-Term Incentive Plans
$3.37-$5.06
Options outstanding/exercisable 595 92,900 432 The fair value of each option grant is estimated based on
35.07-57.60 _ ' the date of grant using an option-pricing model. The follow-
Options outstanding/exercisable 165 150461 749 ing weighted-average assumptions were used in 2001, 2000
$7.61-$11.41 = . . o
Options outstanding/exercisable 1.84 300,936 1060 and 1999: expected dividend yield ranging from 1.4% to
$11.42-17.13 3.4%; expected volatility ranging from 20.0% to 42.0%;
Options outstanding 295 3369121 14.11 risk-free interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 7.8% and
Options exercisable 292 3233969 14.03 expected life ranging from .1 to 6.6 years.
$17.14-525.71
Options outstanding 262 3,021,351 19.98
Options exercisable 2.68 2,909,873 19.96
$25.72-538.58
Options outstanding 6.80 47,336,583 3381
Options exercisable 6.26 31,679,923 33.39
$38.59-571.30
Options outstanding 819 27,657,916 48.35
Options exercisable 6.05 8,569,233 47.08
Broad-Based Plans
$16.56
Options outstanding/exercisable 4.56 1,022,815 16.56
$24.85-537.81
Options outstanding 6.25 24,686,600 34.40
Options exercisable 6.18 200,800 34.01
$37.82-$46.50
Options outstanding 8.85 19,696,800 4647
Options exercisable 8.84 40,400 46.50
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN The Wells Fargo & Company
401(k) Plan (the 401(k) Plan) is a defined contribution employ-
ee stock ownership plan (ESOP) under which the 401(k) Plan
may borrow money to purchase the Company’s common or
preferred stock. Beginning in 1994, the Company has loaned
money to the 401(k) Plan which has been used to purchase
shares of the Company’s ESOP Preferred Stock. As ESOP
Preferred Stock is released and converted into common shares,
compensation expense is recorded equal to the current market
price of the common shares. Dividends on the common shares
allocated as a result of the release and conversion of the ESOP
Preferred Stock are recorded as a reduction of retained earn-
ings and the shares are considered outstanding for purposes of
earnings per share computations. Dividends on the unallocated
ESOP Preferred Stock are not recorded as a reduction of
retained earnings, and the shares are not considered to be
common stock equivalents for purposes of earnings per share
computations. Loan principal and interest payments are made
from the Company’s contributions to the 401(k) Plan, along
with dividends paid on the ESOP Preferred Stock. With each
principal and interest payment, a portion of the ESOP
Preferred Stock is released and, after conversion of the ESOP
Preferred Stock into common shares, allocated to the 401(k)
Plan participants.

Total dividends paid to the 401(k) Plan on ESOP shares
were as follows:

The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 were as follows:

December 31,
2001 2000 1999

ESOP Preferred Stock:
Allocated shares {common)
Unreleased shares (preferred)

1989 ESOP shares:

Allocated shares

17,233,798 13,716,692 10,784,773
145,287 111,804 69,221

9,809,875 10,988,083 13,016,033

Unreleased shares 3,042 39,558 76,070
Fair value of unearned
ESOP shares (in millions) $145 $112 $69

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

ESOP Preferred Stock:

Common dividends $15 S $7

Preferred dividends 19 14 1
1989 ESOP shares:

Common dividends _11 1 11
Total $45 $36 $29

Deferred Compensation Plan for Independent Sales Agents
WEF Deferred Compensation Holdings, Inc. is a non-operating,
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent formed solely to
sponsor a deferred compensation plan for independent
sales agents who provide investment, financial and other
qualifying services for or with respect to participating
affiliates. The plan, which became effective January 1, 2002,
allows participants to defer all or part of their eligible
compensation payable to them by a participating affiliate.
The Parent has fully and unconditionally guaranteed WF
Deferred Compensation Holdings, Inc.’s deferred compensation
obligations under the plan. Effective January 1, 2002, the
H.D. Vest, Inc. Representatives’ Deferred Compensation
Plan was merged into the plan.
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Note 13: Employee Benefits and Other Expenses

Employee Benefits

The Company sponsors noncontributory qualified defined
benefit retirement plans including the Cash Balance Plan
and the First Security Corporation Retirement Plan. The
Cash Balance Plan is an active plan and it covers eligible
employees of the Company except certain subsidiaries. The
FSCO Retirement Plan is an inactive plan, which provides
benefits to eligible employees of First Security. All benefits
under the FSCO Retirement Plan were frozen effective
December 31, 2000.

Under the Cash Balance Plan, eligible employees’ Cash
Balance Plan accounts are allocated a compensation credit
based on a certain percentage of their certified compensa-
tion. The compensation credit percentage is based on age
and years of credited service. In addition, participants are
allocated at the end of each quarter investment credits on
their accumulated balances. Employees become vested in
their Cash Balance Plan accounts after completion of five
years of vesting service or attainment of age 63, if earlier.
Pension benefits accrued prior to the conversion to the Cash
Balance Plan are guaranteed. In addition, certain employees
are eligible for a special transition benefit comparison.

The Company’s policy is to fund the actuarially
computed retirement cost accrued for the Cash Balance
Plan. Contributions are intended to provide not only for
benefits attributed to service to date but also for those
expected to be earned in the future.

The Company sponsors defined contribution retirement
plans including the 401(k) Plan and the First Security
Incentive Savings Plan and Trust (the FSCO 401(k) Plan).
Under the 401(k) Plan, eligible employees who have
completed one month of service are eligible to contribute
up to 18% of their pretax certified compensation, although
a lower limit may be applied to certain highly compensated
employees in order to maintain the qualified status of the
401{k) Plan. Eligible employees who complete one year of
service are eligible for matching company contributions,
which are generally a dollar for dollar match up to 6% of
an employee’s certified compensation. The Company’s
matching contributions are generally subject to a four-year
vesting schedule.

Under the FSCO 401(k) Plan, eligible employees who
were 21 or older with one year of service were eligible to
contribute up to 17% of their pretax certified compensation,
although a lower limit may be applied to certain employees
in order to maintain the qualified status of the FSCO 401(k)
Plan. Eligible employees were eligible for matching company
contributions, which are generally equal to 50% of the first
6% of an employee’s certified compensation. The Company’s
matching contributions were fully vested upon enrollment.
The FSCO 401(k) Plan was merged into the Wells Fargo
401(k) Plan effective January 1, 2001.
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The Company provides health care and life insurance
benefits for certain retired employees and reserves the right
to terminate or amend any of the benefits described above
at any time.

The following table shows the changes in the benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets during 2001
and 2000 and the amounts included in the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2001 and
2000 for the Company’s defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefit plans:

(in millions) December 31,
2001 2000
Pension Other Pension Other

benefits  benefits benefits  benefits

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at

beginning of year $2,656 $578 $ 2,503 $ 567

Service cost 161 16 154 16
Interest cost 191 42 186 43
Plan participants’

contributions — 12 — 6
Amendments (47) —_ — —
Plan mergers — (10) 25 —
Actuarial gain (loss) 165 (28) (24) (22)
Benefits paid (192) (64) (176) (32)
Settlement — — (12) —
Benefit obligation

at end of year $2,934 $ 546 $2,656 $ 578

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets

at beginning of year $3,270 $ 236 $2,867 $ 209
Actual return

on plan assets (331) (12) 550 26
Plan mergers — — 28 —
Employer contribution 14 54 13 27
Plan participants’

contributions — 12 — 6
Benefits paid (192) (64) (176) (32)
Settlement — — (12) —
Fair value of plan assets

at end of year $2,761 $ 226 $ 3,270 S 236
Funded status $ (175) $(319) $ 612 $(336)
Unrecognized net

actuarial loss (gain) 228 (23) (667) (29)
Unrecognized net

transition asset 1 4 (4) 4
Unrecognized prior

service cost (27) (12) 21 2)

Accrued benefit income (cost) § 27 $(350) $  (38) $(363)

Amounts recognized in
the balance sheet

consist of: (1)
Prepaid benefit cost $ 156 $(287)

Accrued benefit liability (197) (63)
Intangible asset —_ —

Accumulated other
comprehensive income 68 —

Accrued benefitincome (cost) § 27 $(350)

(1) Reconciliation is not provided for 2000 as no minimum liability was
recognized in that year.




The following table sets forth the components of net peri-
odic benefit (income) cost for 2001, 2000 and 1999:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Pension Other  Pension Other Pension  Other
benefits benefits  benefits benefits benefits benefits
Service cost $161  $ 16 $154  $ 16 $120 § 25
Interest cost 191 42 186 43 144 35
Expected return
on plan assets (287) (20) (249) (18) (200) (6)
Recognized
net actuarial
gain @ (112) (2 {46) m B ®
Amortization of
prior service cost — M 2 — 3 —
Amortization of
unrecognized
transition asset (1) — (2) — (2) —
Settlement ) — 4 _ — — —
Net periodic benefit
{(income) cost ${49) $35 $ 49 $40 §$ 62 S 46

|
|
|
|

(1) Net actuarial gain is generally amortized over five years.

The weighted-average assumptions used in calculating the
amounts above were:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Pension Other Pension Other  Pension Other
benefits benefits benefits benefits benefits benefits
Discount rate 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 75% 7.5-80% 7.5-8.0%
Expected
return on
plan assets 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%
Rate of
compensation
increase 5.0% —% 4.5-5.0% —% 4.5-5.0% —%

Accounting for postretirement health care plans uses a
health care cost trend rate to recognize the effect of expected
changes in future health care costs due to medical inflation,
utilization changes, technological changes, regulatory
requirements and Medicare cost shifting. Average annual
increases of 8.0% for HMOs and for all other types of
coverage in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits
were assumed for 2001. By 2006 and thereafter, rates were
assumed at 5.5% for HMOs and for all other types of
coverage. Increasing the assumed health care trend by one
percentage point in each year would increase the benefit
obligation as of December 31, 2001 by $43 million and the
aggregate of the interest cost and service cost components
of the net periodic benefit cost for 2001 by $5 million.
Decreasing the assumed health care trend by one percentage
point in each year would decrease the benefit obligation as
of December 31, 2001 by $39 million and the aggregate of
the interest cost and service cost components of the net
periodic benefit cost for 2001 by $5 million.

Expenses for defined contribution retirement plans were
$206 million, $169 million and $1535 million in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

Other Expenses

The following table shows expenses which exceeded 1% of
total interest income and noninterest income and which are
not otherwise shown separately in the financial statements or
notes thereto.

(in miltions) Year ended December 31

2001 2000 1999
Outside professional services $486 $447 $381
Contract services 472 536 473
Telecommunications 355 303 286
Outside data processing 319 343 312
Travel and entertainment 286 287 262
Advertising and promotion 276 316 251
Postage 242 252 239
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Note 14: Income Taxes

The following is a summary of the components of income
tax expense applicable to income before income taxes:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Current:
Federal $2,329 $ 1,446 $ 628
State and local 282 158 46
Foreign 34 46 53
2,645 1,650 727
Deferred:
Federal (518) 783 1,416
State and local (71) 90 195
(589} 873 1611
Total $2,056 $2,523 $2,338

The Company’s tax benefit related to the exercise of
employee stock options that was recorded in stockholders’
equity was $88 million, $112 million and $88 million for
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Company had a net deferred tax liability of $2,614
million and $3,297 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The tax effects of temporary differences that
gave rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are presented in
the table to the right.

The Company has determined that a valuation reserve
is not required for any of the deferred tax assets since it is
more likely than not that these assets will be realized princi-
pally through carryback to taxable income in prior years,
and future reversals of existing taxable temporary differ-
ences, and, to a lesser extent, future taxable income and tax
planning strategies. The Company’s conclusion that it is

{in millions} Year ended December 31,
2001 2000
Deferred Tax Assets
Allowance for loan losses $1,429 $1,414
Net tax-deferred expenses 907 747
Other 168 63
Total deferred tax assets 2,504 2,224
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Core deposit intangible 338 376
Leasing 2,061 1,853
Mark to market 307 712
Mortgage servicing 1,838 1,799
FAS 115 adjustment 312 295
FAS 133 adjustment 162 —
Other 100 486
Total deferred tax liabilities 5118 5521
MNet Deferred Tax Liability $(2,614) $(3,297)

“more likely than not” that the deferred tax assets will be
realized is based on federal taxable income in excess of $10
billion in the carryback period, substantial state taxable
income in the carryback period, as well as a history of
growth in earnings and the prospects for continued
earnings growth.

The deferred tax liability related to 2001, 2000 or 1999
unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale
along with the deferred tax liability related to derivatives
and hedging activities for 2001, had no impact on income
tax expense as these gains and losses, net of taxes, were
recorded in cumulative other comprehensive income.

The table below is a reconciliation of the statutory federal
income tax expense and rate to the effective income tax
expense and rate:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Statutory federal income tax expense and rate $1,918 35.0% $2,292 35.0% $2,222 35.0%
Change in tax rate resulting from:
State and local taxes on income, net of
federal income tax benefit 137 2.5 161 25 158 25
Amortization of goodwill not
deductible for tax return purposes 196 3.6 165 25 133 2.1
Tax-exempt income (87) (1.6) (76) (1.2) (71 (1.1
Other (108) (2.0 19 _(3) 104 (7
Effective income tax expense and rate $2,056 37.5% $2,523 38.5% $2,338 36.8%

I

82 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Note 15: Earnings Per Common Share

The table below shows dual presentation of earnings per a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of both
common share and diluted earnings per common share and earnings per common share calculations.
{in millions, except per share amounts) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Net income $ 3,423 $ 4,026 $ 4012
Less: Preferred stock dividends 14 17 35
Net income applicable to common stock $ 3,409 $ 4009 S 3977
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Net income applicable to common stock (numerator) $ 3,409 $ 4,009 $ 3977
Average common shares outstanding (denominator) 1,709.5 1,699.5 1,714.0
Per share $ 1.99 § 236 § 232
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Net income applicable to common stock (numerator) $ 3,409 $ 4,009 $ 3,977
Average common shares outstanding 1,709.5 1,699.5 1,714.0
Add: Stock options 16.8 17.7 19.7
Restricted share rights 6 1.2 1.6
Convertible preferred — — 1
Diluted average common shares outstanding (denominator) 1,726.9 1,718.4 1,7354
Per share $ 197 $ 233 $ 229
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Note 16: Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the components of other The following table presents cumulative other
comprehensive income and the related tax effect allocated comprehensive income balances:
to each component:

(in millions) Before Tax Net of {in millions) Translation Minimum Net Net Cumulative
tax effect tax adjustments pension  unrealized  unrealized other
amount liability gains gains  comprehensive
adjustment  (losses) on on income
1999: securities  derivatives
Translation adjustments S 6 $ 2 $ 4 8al
Net unrealized gains on aancs, _ .
securities available for sale December31,1998  3{14) $— $507 § = 5493
ar:srrjng du.rmg the year 205 78 127 Net change 4 L 63 - 267
Reclassification of net losses Balance B —
on securities available for sale :
N D ber 31,1999 10 — 770 —_ 760
included in net income 219 83 136 ecember ) -
Net unrealized gains on securities Net change ) = (234) _ 236
available for sale arising Balance,
during the year 424 161 263 December 31,2000 12) — 536 — 524
Other comprehensive income $ 430 $ 163 $ 267
Net change (3) (42) 10 263 22
2000: Balance,
Translation adjustments S (3) s ) S () December 31,2001 $(15) $(42) $546 $263 752

|
|
Il
|

Net unrealized losses on

securities available for sale

arising during the year (232) (88) (144)
Reclassification of net gains

on securities available for sale

included in net income (145) (55) (90)

Net unrealized losses on
securities available for sale

arising during the year (377) (143) (234)
Other comprehensive income $ (380) $ (144) $ (236)
2001:

Translation adjustments $ (5 $ _(9) $ 3
Minimum pension liability adjustment (68) (26) (42)

Net unrealized losses on securities
available for sale arising
during the year (574) (211) (363)

Reclassification of net losses
on securities available for sale
included in net income 601 228 373

Net unrealized gains on securities
available for sale arising
during the year 27 17 10

Cumulative effect of the change in

accounting principle for derivatives

and hedging activities 109 38 71
Net unrealized gains on

derivatives and hedging activities

arising during the year 196 80 116
Reclassification of net losses on

cash flow hedges included in

net income 120 44 76

Net unrealized gains on derivatives

and hedging activities arising

during the year 316 124 192
Other comprehensive income $ 379 $ 151 $ 228
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Note 17: Operating Segments

The Company has identified three lines of business for

the purposes of management reporting: Community
Banking, Wholesale Banking and Wells Fargo Financial.
The results are determined based on the Company’s
management accounting process, which assigns balance
sheet and income statement items to each responsible
operating segment. This process is dynamic and somewhat
subjective. Wells Fargo Home Mortgage activities are
included in the Community Banking Group due to the
integration of Home Mortgage into Community Banking
and the reorganization of Wells Fargo Home Mortgage as

a subsidiary of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. In 2001, there

were various reorganizations resulting in the integration
into Wholesale Banking from Community Banking of
certain units of First Security, certain Community Banking
Offices that were reorganized as Regional Commercial
Banking Offices, the Insurance Group and Correspondent
Banking. Unlike financial accounting, there is no comprehen-
sive, authoritative guidance for management accounting
equivalent to generally accepted accounting principles.

The management accounting process measures the perfor-
mance of the operating segments based on the management
structure of the Company and is not necessarily comparable
with similar information for any other financial services
company. The Company’s operating segments are defined
by product type and customer segments. Changes in manage-
ment structure and/or the allocation process may result

in changes in allocations, transfers and assignments.

In that case, results for prior periods would be {and have
been) restated to allow comparability.

The Community Banking Group offers a complete line
of diversified financial products and services to individual
consumers and small businesses with annual sales up to $10
million in which the owner is also the principal financial
decision maker. Community Banking also offers investment
management and other services to retail customers and high
net worth individuals, insurance and securities brokerage
through affiliates and venture capital financing. These prod-
ucts and services include Wells Fargo Funds™, a family of
mutual funds, as well as personal trust, employee benefit
trust and agency assets. Loan products include lines of
credit, equity lines and loans, equipment and transportation
{auto, recreational vehicle and marine) loans, origination and
purchase of residential mortgage loans for sale to investors
and servicing of mortgage loans. Other credit products and
financial services available to small businesses and their own-
ers include receivables and inventory financing, equipment
leases, real estate financing, Small Business Administration
financing, cash management, payroll services, retirement
plans, medical savings accounts and credit and debit card
processing. Consumer and business deposit products include
checking accounts, savings deposits, market rate accounts,
Individual Retirement Accounts (IRAs) and time deposits.

Community Banking provides access to customers through
a wide range of channels, which encompass a network of
traditional banking stores, banking centers, in-store banking
centers, business centers and ATMs. Additionally, 24-hour
telephone service is provided by PhoneBank™ centers and the
National Business Banking Center. Online banking services
include the Wells Fargo Internet Services Group and Business
Gateway®, a personal computer banking service exclusively
for the small business customer.

The Wholesale Banking Group serves businesses with
annual sales in excess of $10 million across the United
States. Wholesale Banking provides a complete line of
commercial, corporate and real estate banking products
and services. These include traditional commercial loans
and lines of credit, letters of credit, asset-based lending,
equipment leasing, mezzanine financing, high yield
debt, international trade facilities, foreign exchange
services, treasury management, investment management,
institutional fixed income and equity sales, electronic
products, insurance and insurance brokerage services,
and investment banking services. Wholesale Banking
includes the majority ownership interest in the Wells
Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, which provides trade financing,
letters of credit and collection services and is sometimes
supported by the Export-Import Bank of the United States
{a public agency of the United States offering export
finance support for American-made products). Wholesale
Banking also supports the commercial real estate market
with products and services such as construction loans for
commercial and residential development, land acquisition
and development loans, secured and unsecured lines of
credit, interim financing arrangements for completed
structures, rehabilitation loans, affordable housing loans
and letters of credit, permanent loans for securitization,
commercial real estate loan servicing and real estate and
mortgage brokerage services.
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Wells Fargo Financial includes consumer finance and The Reconciliation Column includes unallocated

auto finance operations. Consumer finance operations goodwill, the net impact of transfer pricing loan and
make direct loans to consumers and purchase sales finance deposit balances, the cost of external debt, and any
contracts from retail merchants from offices throughout residual effects of unallocated systems and other support
the United States and Canada and in the Caribbean and groups. It also includes the impact of asset/liability
Latin America. Automobile finance operations specialize strategies the Company has put in place to manage

in purchasing sales finance contracts directly from automo- interest rate sensitivity at the consolidated level.

bile dealers and making loans secured by automobiles in
the United States and Puerto Rico. Credit cards are offered
to consumer finance customers through two credit card
banks. Wells Fargo Financial also provides lease and other
commercial financing and provides information services to
the consumer finance industry.

(income/expense in millions,

average balances in billions) Community Wholesale Wells Fargo  Reconciliation Consolidated N
Banking Banking Financial Column® Company

2001

Net interest income () $8,910 $1,969 $1,679 $ (98) $12,460

Provision for loan losses 1,015 278 487 — 1,780

Noninterest income 5,189 2,113 371 17 7,620

Noninterest expense 9,118 2,345 1,096 332 12,891 1

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 3,966 1,459 467 (413) 5,479

Income tax expense (benefit) (2 1,398 531 179 {(52) 2,056

Net income (loss) 2,568 928 288 (361) 3,423

Less: Impairment and other special charges (after tax) 3 (1,089) __(62) — ___(8) _(1,157)

Net income (loss) excluding impairment and

other special charges $3,657 $ 990 $ 288 $ (355) $ 4,580
2000
Net interest income () $7,586 $1,949 $1,424 S (94) $10,865
Provision for loan losses ) 849 151 329 — 1,329
Noninterest income 6,685 1,768 304 86 8,843
Noninterest expense ; 8,542 1.946 986 356 11,830
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 4,880 1,620 413 (364) 6,549
Income tax expense (benefit) @) ) 1,774 613 155 (19) 2,523
Net income (loss) . $3,106 $1,007 $ 258 $ (345) $ 4,026
1999 ,
Net interest income (1) $ 7,479 $1,403 $1,314 $ (80) $10,116
Provision for loan losses ) 712 102 288 2 1,104
Noninterest income 6,371 1,194 311 99 7,975
Noninterest expense 8,194 1,154 952 337 10,637
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 4,944 1,341 385 (320) 6,350
Income tax expense (benefit) (2 1,700 500 142 (4 2,338
Net income (loss) , $ 3,244 S 841 $ 243 S (316) $ 4,012
2001
Average loans $ 100 $ 50 $ 13 s — $ 163
Average assets 198 66 15 6 285
Average core deposits 152 16 — — 168
2000
Average loans $ 89 $ 46 $ 11 s — $ 146
Average assets 173 58 12 7 250
Average core deposits 131 15 — — 146

(1) Net interest income is the difference between actual interest earned on assets (and interest paid on liabilities) owned by a group and a funding charge (and credit) based
on the Company’s cost of funds. Community Banking and Wholesale Banking are charged a cost to fund any assets (e.g., loans) and are paid a funding credit for any funds
provided (e.g., deposits}. The interest spread is the difference between the interest rate earned on an asset or paid on a liability and the Company’s cost of funds rate.

(2) Taxes vary by geographic concentration of revenue generation. Taxes as presented may differ from the consolidated Company’s effective tax rate as a result of taxable-
equivalent adjustments that primarily relate to income on certain loans and securities that is exempt from federal and applicable state income taxes. The offsets for
these adjustments are found in the reconciliation column.

(3) Non-cash impairment and other special charges recognized in the second quarter of 2001, which are included in noninterest income, mainly related to impairment of
publicly traded and private equity securities, primarily in the venture capital portfolio,

{4) The material items in the reconciliation column related to revenue (i.e, net interest income plus noninterest income) and net income consist of Treasury activities and
unallocated items. Revenue includes Treasury activities of $14 million, $63 million and $83 million; and unallocated items of $(95) million, $(71) million, and $(64) million
for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Net income includes Treasury activities of $6 million, $38 million and $51 million; and unallocated items of $(367) million, $(383)
million and $(367) million for 2007, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The material item in the reconciliation column related to noninterest expense is amortization of
unallocated goodwill of $329 million, $327 million and $318 million for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The material item in the reconciliation column related to
average assets is unallocated goodwill of $6 billion and $7 billion for 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Note 18: Securitizations

The Company routinely originates, securitizes and sells
mortgage loans and, from time to time, other financial assets,
including student loans, auto receivables and securities, into
the secondary market. As a result of this process, the Company
typically retains the servicing rights and may retain other
beneficial interests from the sales. These securitizations are
usually structured without recourse to the Company and
without restrictions on the retained interest. The retained
interests do not contain significant credit risks. The Company
recognized gains from sales of financial assets in securitiza-
tions of $623 million in 2001, compared with $298 million
in 2000. Additionally, the Company had the following cash
flows with securitization trusts:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000

Residential Other Residential Other
mortgage financial  mortgage financial
loans assets loans assets

Proceeds from
new securitizations $16,410 $3,024 $4,397  $4,540

Servicing fees 65 42 58 34
Cash flows on interest-only strips 144 12 115 112

Note 19; Mortgage Banking Activities

In the normal course of creating securities for investors,
the Company may sponsor the special purpose entities
which hold, for the benefit of the investors, the loans or
leases that are the source of payment to the investors. Those
special purpose entities are consolidated unless they meet
the criteria for a qualifying special purpose entity in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 140 (FAS 140),
Accounting for the Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, or they have a
substantial residual equity investment by an unaffiliated
entity and the Company does not retain a controlling
interest as a result of the Company’s ownership of
residual equity.

Mortgage banking activities, included in the Community
Banking and Wholesale Banking operating segments, com-
prise residential and commercial mortgage originations and
servicing. The following table presents the components of
mortgage banking noninterest income:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Origination and other closing fees  $§ 737 $ 350 $ 406

Servicing fees, net of amortization
and impairment (260) 665 404

Net gains on securities available forsale 134 - —_
Net gains on sales of mortgage
servicing rights — 159 193
Net gains on mortgage loan
origination/sales activities 705 38 117
Ali other 355 232 287
Total mortgage banking
noninterest income $1,671 $1,444 $1,407

The managed servicing portfolio totaled $514 billion at
December 31, 2001, $468 billion at December 31, 2000 and
$308 billion at December 31, 1999, which included loans
subserviced for others of $63 billion, $85 billion and $9
billion, respectively.

The following table summarizes the changes in capitalized
mortgage loan servicing rights:

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Balance, beginning of year $5,609 $ 4,652 $3,294
Originations 1,883 702 1,110
Purchases 962 1,212 695
Sales — (58) (172)
Amortization (914) (554) (721)

Other (includes changes in mortgage

servicing rights due to hedging) {175) {345) 446

7,365 5,609 4,652

Less: Valuation allowance 1,124 — —
Balance, end of year $6,241 $ 5,609 $4,652
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The key economic assumptions used in determining the
fair value of mortgage servicing rights and other retained
interests related to residential mortgage loan securitizations
at the date of securitization resulting from securitizations
completed in 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

interest is calculated independently without changing any
other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result
in changes in another (for example, changes in prepayment
speed estimates could result in changes in the discount rates),
which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

Mortgage Other

servicing rights  retained interests
2001 2000 2001 2000

Prepayment speed (annual CPR) (¥ 134% 128% 16.41% 10.2%
Weighted average life (in years) 7.1 7.9 6.1 8.2
Discount rates (! 8.9% 10.6% 11.2% 12.0%

CPR - Constant prepayment rate

(1) Discount rates and prepayment speeds represent weighted averages for
all retained interests resulting from residential mortgage securitizations
completed in 2001 and 2000.

At December 31, 2001, key economic assumptions and
the sensitivity of the current fair value of mortgage servicing
rights, both purchased and retained, and other retained
interests related to residential mortgage loan securitizations
to immediate 10% and 25% adverse changes in those
assumptions are presented in the table to the right.

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used
with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value
based on a 10% variation in assumptions generally cannot
be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in
the assumption to the change in fair value may not be
linear. Also, in the above table, the effect of a variation in
a particular assumption on the fair value of the retained

Note 20; Parent Company

(in millions) Mortgage Other retained
servicing rights interests
Fair value of retained interests $6,397 $1,470
Expected weighted average life (in years) 5.6 5.3
Prepayment speed assumption (annual CPR) 16.5% 15.9%
Decrease in fair value from
10% adverse change $333 $86
Decrease in fair value from
25% adverse change 772 199
Discount rate assumption 7.41% 741%
Decrease in fair value from
100 basis point adverse change $270 559
Decrease in fair value from
200 basis point adverse change 504 108

Not included in the table above are mortgage servicing
rights, both purchased and retained, with a fair value of $14
million and other retained interests with a fair value of $150
million related to commercial mortgage loan securitizations
and other retained interests of $325 million related to securi-
tizations of student loans, auto receivables and securities.

Condensed financial information of the Parent follows. For
information regarding the Parent’s long-term debt, see Note 9.

Condensed Statement of Income

(in millions)

INCOME
Dividends from subsidiaries:
Bank
Nonbank
Interest income from subsidiaries
Service fees from subsidiaries
Other income

Total income

EXPENSE
Interest on:
Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt
Noninterest expense

Total expense
Income before income tax benefit
and undistributed income of subsidiaries
Income tax benefit {(expense)
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

NET INCOME

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
$2,360 $2,318 $2,378
218 1,139 153
566 701 616
49 45 104
180 369 95
3,373 4,572 3,346
305 464 350
691 739 514
148 116 380
1,144 1.319 1,244
2,229 3,253 2,102
230 114 161)
964 659 2,071
$3,423 $4,026 54,012
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Condensed Balance Sheet

(in millions) December 31
2001 2000
ASSETS
Cash and noninterest-bearing balances due from:
Subsidiary banks $ 2 $ —
Non-affiliates 74 50
Interest-bearing balances due from subsidiary banks 2,834 1,759
Securities available for sale 1,531 1,982
Loans and advances to subsidiaries:
Bank 200 200
Nonbank 10,439 10,862
Investment in subsidiaries
Bank 28,741 26,386
Nonbank 4,781 4,845
Other assets 2,326 1,257
Total assets $50,928 $47,341
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Short-term borrowings $ 4,969 $ 5,848
Other liabilities 1,086 900
Long-term debt 14,456 12,994
Indebtedness to subsidiaries 1,657 1AM
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in Company’s
subordinated debentures 1,546 —
Stockholders’ equity 27,214 26,488
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $50,928 $47,341

(1) The double leverage ratio, which represents the ratic of the Parent’s total equity investment in subsidiaries to its total stockholders’ equity, was 123% and 118% at
December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

(in millions) Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $3,423 $4,026 $4,012
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries (964) (659) (2,071)
Depreciation and amortization 19 18 26
Release of preferred shares to ESOP 159 127 86
Other assets, net (848) 295 114
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 143 127 536
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,932 3,680 2,703

Cash flows from investing activities:
Securities available for sale:

Proceeds from sales 626 739 348
Proceeds from prepayments and maturities 85 112 120
Purchases (462) (1,067) (872)

Net advances to nonbank subsidiaries (722) (2,499) 724
Principal collected on notes/loans of subsidiaries 1,304 1,487 1,108
Capital notes and term loans made to subsidiaries (159) (2,007} (505}
Net increase in investment in subsidiaries 979 1,804) {(1,003)
Net cash used by investing activities (307) 5039 (80)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase in short-term borrowings

and indebtedness to subsidiaries (331 (743) 1,059
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 4,527 6,590 6,574
Repayment of long-term debt (3,066) (4,400) (1,780)
Proceeds from issuance of guaranteed preferred beneficial
interests in Company’s subordinated debentures 1,546 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 484 422 517
Repurchases of common stock (1,760) (3,235) (2,122)
Preferred stock redeemed (200) — —
Net decrease in ESOP loans — — 2
Payment of cash dividends (1,724) (1,586 (1.436)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities 524 2,952 2,814

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,101 (4,311) 5,437
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,809 6,120 683
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $2,910 $1,809 $6,120
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Note 27: Legal Actions

In the normal course of business, the Company is at all times
subject to numerous pending and threatened legal actions,
some for which the relief or damages sought are substantial.
After reviewing pending and threatened actions with counsel,
management believes that the outcome of such actions will
not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations

Note 22: Risk-Based Capital

or stockholders’ equity of the Company. The Company is not
able to predict whether the outcome of such actions may or
may not have a material adverse effect on results of operations
in a particular future period as the timing and amount of any
resolution of such actions and its relationship to the future
results of operations are not known.

The Company and each of the subsidiary banks are subject to
various regulatory capital adequacy requirements adminis-
tered by the FRB and the OCC, respectively. The Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991
(FDICIA) required that the federal regulatory agencies adopt
regulations defining five capital tiers for banks: well capital-
ized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly
undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Quantitative measures, established by the regulators to
ensure capital adequacy, require that the Company and each
of the subsidiary banks maintain minimum ratios (set forth
in the table on the following page) of capital to risk-weighted
assets. There are three categories of capital under the guide-
lines. Tier 1 capital includes common stockholders’ equity,
qualifying preferred stock and trust preferred securities,
less goodwill and certain other deductions (including the
unrealized net gains and losses, after applicable taxes,
on securities available for sale carried at fair value). Tier 2
capital includes preferred stock not qualifying as Tier 1
capital, subordinated debt, the allowance for loan losses and
net unrealized gains on marketable equity securities, subject
to limitations by the guidelines. Tier 2 capital is limited to
the amount of Tier 1 capital {i.e., at least half of the total
capital must be in the form of Tier 1 capital). Tier 3 capital
includes certain qualifying unsecured subordinated debt.

Under the guidelines, capital is compared to the relative
risk related to the balance sheet. To derive the risk included
in the balance sheet, one of four risk weights (0%, 20%,
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50% and 100%) is applied to the different balance sheet and
off-balance sheet assets, primarily based on the relative credit
risk of the counterparty, For example, claims guaranteed by
the U.S. government or one of its agencies are risk-weighted
at 0%. Off-balance sheet items, such as loan commitments
and derivative financial instruments, are also applied a risk
weight after calculating balance sheet equivalent amounts.
One of four credit conversion factors (0%, 20%, 50% and
100%}) is assigned to loan commitments based on the
likelihood of the off-balance sheet item becoming an asset.
For example, certain loan commitments are converted at
50% and then risk-weighted at 100%. Derivative financial
instruments are converted to balance sheet equivalents based
on notional values, replacement costs and remaining contrac-
tual terms. (See Notes 5 and 23 for further discussion of
off-balance sheet items.) The capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk weightings and other factors.
Management believes that, as of December 31, 2001, the
Company and each of the covered subsidiary banks met
all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.
Under the FDICIA prompt corrective action provisions
applicable to banks, the most recent notification from the
OCC categorized each of the covered subsidiary banks as
well capitalized. To be categorized as well capitalized, the
institution must maintain a total risk-based capital ratio as
set forth in the following table and not be subject to a
capital directive order. There are no conditions or events
since that notification that management believes have
changed the risk-based capital category of any of the
covered subsidiary banks.




(in billions}) To be well
capitalized under
the FDICIA
For capital prompt corrective
Actual adequacy purposes action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31,2001:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Wells Fargo & Company $27.3 10.45% >$20.9 >8.00%
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 15.7 11.79 > 107 >8.00 >$133 >10.00%
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. 33 11.14 > 24 >8.00 > 30 >10.00
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Wells Fargo & Company $18.2 6.99% >$10.4 >4.00%
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 9.5 7.16 > 53 >4.00 >$ 80 > 6.00%
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. 3.0 10.19 > 12 >4.00 > 18 > 6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
(Leverage ratio)
Wells Fargo & Company $18.2 6.25% >$11.7 >4.00%"
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 9.5 7.31 > 52 >400 O >$ 65 > 5.00%
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. 3.0 5.99 > 20 >4.00 M > 25 > 5.00

(1) The leverage ratio consists of Tier 1 capital divided by quarterly average total assets, excluding goodwill and certain other items.The minimum leverage ratio guideline is
3% for banking organizations that do not anticipate significant growth and that have well-diversified risk, exceltent asset quality, high liquidity, good earnings, effective

management and monitoring of market risk and, in general, are considered top-rated, strong banking organizations.

Note 23: Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company adopted FAS 133 on January 1, 2001. The
effect on net income from the adoption was an increase of
$13 million (after tax). The pretax amount of $22 million
was recorded as a component of other noninterest income.
In accordance with the transition provisions of FAS 133, the
Company recorded a transition adjustment of $71 million,
net of tax, (increase in equity) in other comprehensive income
in a manner similar to a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle. The transition adjustment was the ini-
tial amount necessary to adjust the carrying values of certain
derivative instruments (that qualified as cash flow hedges)

to fair value to the extent that the related hedge transactions
had not yet been recognized.

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk
management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative
instruments to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in
earnings, fair values of assets and liabilities, and cash flows
caused by interest rate volatility. The Company’s interest rate
risk management strategy involves modifying the repricing
characteristics of certain assets and liabilities so that changes
in interest rates do not have a significant adverse effect on the
net interest margin and cash flows. As a result of interest rate
fluctuations, hedged assets and liabilities will appreciate or
depreciate in market value. In a fair value hedging strategy,
the effect of this unrealized appreciation or depreciation
will generally be offset by income or loss on the derivative
instruments that are linked to the hedged assets and liabilities.
In a cash flow hedging strategy, the variability of cash °
payments due to interest rate fluctuations is managed by
the effective use of derivative instruments that are linked
to hedged assets and liabilities.

Derivative instruments that the Company uses as
part of its interest rate risk management strategy include
interest rate swaps and floors, interest rate futures and
forward contracts, and options. The Company also offers
various derivative contracts, which include interest rate,
commodity and foreign exchange contracts to its customers
but usually offsets such contracts by purchasing other
financial contracts. The customer accommodations are
treated as free-standing derivatives held for trading. The
free-standing derivative instruments also include derivative
transactions entered into for risk management purposes
that do not otherwise qualify for hedge accounting. To a
lesser extent, the Company takes positions based on market
expectations or to benefit from price differentials between
financial instruments and markets.

By using derivative instruments, the Company is
exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by
counterparties to financial instruments. If a counterparty
fails to perform, credit risk is equal to the fair value gain
in a derivative. The Company minimizes the credit risk
through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures.
Credit risk related to derivative contracts is considered
and, if material, provided for separately. As the Company
generally enters into transactions only with counterparties
that carry quality credit ratings, losses associated with
counterparty nonperformance on derivative contracts have
been immaterial. Further, the Company obtains collateral
where appropriate and uses master netting arrangements in
accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 39, Offsetting of
Amounts Related to Certain Contracts, as amended by FASB
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Interpretation No. 41, Offsetting of Amounts Related to
Certain Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements.

The Company’s derivative activities are monitored by
the Asset/Liability Committee. The Company’s Treasury
function, which includes asset/liability management, is
responsible for implementing various hedging strategies
that are developed through its analysis of data from
financial models and other internal and industry sources.
The resulting hedging strategies are then incorporated into
the Company’s overall interest rate risk management and
trading strategies.

Fair Value Hedges

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to convert a
majority of its fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt.
The decisions to convert fixed-rate debt to floating takes into
consideration the asset/liability repricing characteristics, the
desired asset/liability sensitivity and current level of interest
rates. Additionally, the Company enters into a combination
of derivative instruments (futures, floors, forwards, swaps
and options} to hedge changes in fair value of its mortgage
servicing rights as it relates to changes in London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) interest rates and changes in the
credit risk. In determining the portion of mortgage servicing
rights to hedge, the Company takes into account natural
offsets from the mortgage loan production franchise.

The Company recognized a net gain of $11 million for
2001, as an offset to interest expense, representing the inef-
fective portion of fair value hedges of long-term debt. For
long-term debt, in some instances all components of each
derivative instrument’s gain or loss are included in the assess-
ment of hedge effectiveness, whereas, in other instances, only
the benchmark interest rate is included in the assessment of
hedge effectiveness. Additionally, for 2001, the Company
recognized a net gain of $521 million in noninterest income,
which represents the ineffective portion of all fair value
hedges of mortgage servicing rights. For mortgage servicing
rights, all components of each derivative instrument’s gain
or loss are included in the measurement of hedge ineffective-
ness, as reflected in the statement of income, while the time
decay and the volatility components of an option’s change
in value are excluded from the assessment of hedge effective-
ness. As of December 31, 2001, all designated hedges
continued to qualify as fair value hedges.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company enters into interest rate swaps and floors to
convert floating-rate loans to fixed rates. The loans are
typically grouped by the same risk exposure for which they
are being hedged. Specific types of loans and amounts that
are hedged are determined based on prevailing market
conditions, the asset/liability mix of the Company and the
current shape of the yield curve. Additionally, to hedge the
forecasted sale of its mortgage loans, the Company enters
into futures contracts and mandatory forward contracts,
including options on futures and forward contracts.
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For 2001, the Company recognized a net loss of $120
million, which represents the total ineffectiveness of all cash
flow hedges. Gains and losses on derivative contracts that
are reclassified from cumulative other comprehensive income
to current period earnings are included in the line item in
which the hedged item’s effect in earnings is recorded. All
components of each derivative instrument’s gain or loss are
included in the assessment of hedge effectiveness, except for
derivative instruments hedging commercial loans indexed to
LIBOR, where only the benchmark interest rate is included
in the assessment of hedge effectiveness. For the period
ended December 31, 2001, all designated hedges continued
to qualify as cash flow hedges. Further, all designated
forecasted transactions remain probable of occurring.

As of December 31, 2001, $110 million of deferred
net gains on derivative instruments included in other
comprehensive income are expected to be reclassified to
net income during the next twelve months. The maximum
term over which the Company is hedging its exposure to
the variability of future cash flows for all forecasted transac-
tions, excluding those related to payments of variable
interest in existing financial instruments, is ten years for
hedges converting floating-rate loans to fixed and one year
for hedges of forecasted sales of mortgage loans.

Free-Standing Derivative Instruments

The Company enters into various derivative contracts
which primarily focus on providing derivative products to
customers. To a lesser extent, the Company takes positions
based on market expectations or to benefit from price
differentials between financial instruments and markets.
These derivative contracts are not linked to specific assets
and liabilities on the balance sheet or to forecasted transac-
tions and, therefore, do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Interest rate lock commitments issued on residential
mortgage loans intended to be held for resale are considered
free-standing derivative instruments. The interest rate
exposure on these commitments is economically hedged
primarily with options and forwards. The commitments
and free-standing derivative instruments are marked to
market and recorded as a component of mortgage banking
noninterest income in the statement of income.

Derivative instruments utilized by the Company and
classified as free-standing instruments include interest rate
swaps, futures, forwards, floors and caps purchased and
written, options purchased and written, and warrants.




The foll()wing table summarizes the aggregate notional or fair value for the Company’s derivative financial instruments

contractual amounts, credit risk amount and estimated net at December 31, 2001 and 2000.
(in millions) December 31,
2001 2000
Notional or Credit Estimated Notional or Credit Estimated
contractual risk net fair contractual risk net fair
amount amount®) value amount amount® value

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

HEDGES
Interest rate contracts:
Swaps (" $ 27,868 $1,594 $1,559 $25,817 $391 $368
Futures 264 — — 71,484 — 141
Floors and caps (1) 500 27 27 20,139 191 191
Options (M4 499,430 286 184 20,620 275 267
Forwards () 113,620 290 (263) 21,392 69 (93)
Foreign exchange contracts:
Forwards (1) - — — 72 — )]

CUSTOMER ACCOMMODATIONS AND TRADING
Interest rate contracts:

Swaps (1) 68,332 1,657 148 40,934 635 58
Futures 22,762 — — 17,890 — —
Floors and caps purchased ) 24,255 440 440 14,196 107 107
Floors and caps written 24,309 — (385) 15,310 — (76)
Options purchased (! 2,435 18 18 1,205 12 12
Options written 23,117 — (162) 71 — (3)
Forwards (1) 41,837 248 173 150 2 ()
Commodity contracts:
Swaps () 66 10 1 167 57 1
Floors and caps purchased (¥ 104 8 8 58 8 8
Floors and caps written 105 — (8) 57 — (8)
Equity contracts:
Swaps 3,464 13 (1) — —_ —
Options purchased 704 33 33 — — —
Options written 529 — (29) — — —
Foreign exchange contracts:
Forwards () 8,968 227 65 7,283 150 31
Options purchased (" 275 18 18 42 1 1
Options written 260 — (17) 42 — 1M

(1) The Company anticipates performance by substantially all of the counterparties for these contracts or the underlying financial instruments.

(2) At December 31,2001, the purchased option contracts were predominantly options on futures contracts, which are exchange traded for which the exchange assumes
counterparty risk.

(3) Credit risk amounts reflect the replacement cost for those contracts in a gain position in the event of nonperformance by counterparties.

(4) Includes purchased options with notional or contractual amounts, credit risk amounts and estimated net fair value of $263,617 million, $286 mitlion, and $286 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2001. includes written options with notional or contractual amounts, credit risk amounts and estimated net fair values of $235,813 million,
nil and $(102) million, respectively, at December 31,2001.
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Note 24: Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FAS 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, requires that the Company disclose estimated
fair values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates,
methods and assumptions set forth below for the Company’s
financial instruments are made solely to comply with the
requirements of this Statement and should be read in con-
junction with the financial statements and notes in this
Annual Report. The carrying amounts in the table on page
96 are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet under
the indicated captions, except for the derivative financial
instruments which are recorded in other assets.

Fair values are based on estimates or calculations using
present value techniques in instances where quoted market
prices are not available. Because broadly traded markets do
not exist for most of the Company’s financial instruments,
the fair value calculations attempt to incorporate the effect
of current market conditions at a specific time. Fair valua-
tions are management’s estimates of the values, and they
are often calculated based on current pricing policy, the
economic and competitive environment, the characteristics
of the financial instruments and other such factors. These
calculations are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment and do not include tax
ramifications; therefore, the results cannot be determined
with precision, substantiated by comparison to independent
markets and may not be realized in an actual sale or immedi-
ate settlement of the instruments. There may be inherent
weaknesses in any calculation technique, and changes in the
underlying assumptions used, including discount rates and
estimates of future cash flows, that could significantly affect
the results. The Company has not included certain material
items in its disclosure, such as the value of the long-term
relationships with the Company’s deposit, credit card and
trust customers, since these intangibles are not financial
instruments. For all of these reasons, the aggregation of the
fair value calculations presented herein do not represent,
and should not be construed to represent, the underlying
value of the Company.

Financial Assets

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

Short-term financial assets include cash and due from banks,
federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale
agreements and due from customers on acceptances. The
carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value
because of the relatively short period of time between the
origination of the instrument and its expected realization.

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Securities available for sale at December 31, 2001 and 2000
are set forth in Note 4.
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MORTGAGES HELD FOR SALE
The fair value of mortgages held for sale is based on quoted
market prices.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE

The fair value of loans held for sale is based on what
secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios
with similar characteristics.

LOANS

The fair valuation calculation process differentiates loans
based on their financial characteristics, such as product
classification, loan category, pricing features and remaining
maturity. Prepayment estimates are evaluated by product
and loan rate.

The fair value of commercial loans, other real estate
mortgage loans and real estate construction loans is
calculated by discounting contractual cash flows using dis-
count rates that reflect the Company’s current pricing for
loans with similar characteristics and remaining maturity.

For real estate 1-4 family first and junior lien mortgages,
fair value is calculated by discounting contractual cash flows,
adjusted for prepayment estimates, using discount rates
based on current industry pricing for loans of similar size,
type, remaining maturity and repricing characteristics.

For consumer finance and credit card loans, the portfo-
lio’s yield is equal to the Company’s current pricing and,
therefore, the fair value is equal to book value.

For other consumer loans, the fair value is calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows, adjusted for prepay-
ment estimates, based on the current rates offered by the
Company for loans with similar characteristics.

For auto lease financing, the fair value is calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows at the Company’s
current pricing for items with similar remaining terms, not
including tax benefits.

Commitments, standby letters of credit and commercial
and similar letters of credit not included in the table on page
96 have contractual values of $99.7 billion, $5.5 billion and
$577 million, respectively, at December 31, 2001, and $92.7
billion, $5.6 billion and $729 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2000. These instruments generate ongoing fees
at the Company’s current pricing levels. Of the commitments
at December 31, 2001, 38% mature within one year.

Trading Assets
Trading assets, which are carried at fair value, are set forth
in Note 6.




NONMARKETABLE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

There are restrictions on the sale and/or liquidation of the
Company’s nonmarketable equity investments, including
Federal Reserve Bank Stock. For the Federal Reserve Bank
Stock carrying value equals fair value. The Company uses all
facts and circumstances available to estimate the fair value of
its cost method investments. Typical considerations include:
access to and need for capital (including recent or projected
financing activity), qualitative assessments of the viability of
the investee, and prospects for its future.

Financial Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

FAS 107 states that the fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, inter-
est-bearing checking and market rate and other savings, is
equal to the amount payable on demand at the measurement
date. Although the FASB’s requirement for these categories
is not consistent with the market practice of using prevailing
interest rates to value these amounts, the amount included
for these deposits in the following table is their carrying
value at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The fair value of
other time deposits is calculated based on the discounted
value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimat-
ed using the rates currently offered for like deposits with
similar remaining maturities,

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short-term financial liabilities include federal funds pur-
chased and securities sold under repurchase agreements,
commercial paper and other short-term borrowings. The
carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value
because of the relatively short period of time between the
origination of the instrument and its expected realization.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The fair value of the Company’s underwritten long-term debt
is estimated based on the quoted market prices of the instru-
ments. The fair value of the medium-term note programs,
which are part of long-term debt, is calculated based on the
discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate
is estimated using the rates currently offered for new notes
with similar remaining maturities.

GUARANTEED PREFERRED BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN COMPANY'’S
SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

The fair value of the Company’s trust preferred securities
is estimated based on the quoted market prices of

the instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is based
on the estimated amounts that the Company would receive
or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date
(i.e., mark-to-market value). Dealer quotes are available
for substantially all of the Company’s derivative

financial instruments.

Limitations

These fair value disclosures are made solely to comply with
the requirements of FAS 107. The calculations represent
management’s best estimates; however, due to the lack of
broad markets and the significant items excluded from this
disclosure, the calculations do not represent the underlying
value of the Company. The information presented is based
on fair value calculations and market quotes as of December
31, 2001 and 2000. These amounts have not been updated
since year end; therefore, the valuations may have changed
significantly since that point in time.

As discussed above, certain of the Company’s asset and
liability financial instruments are short-term, and therefore,
the carrying amounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
approximate fair value. Other significant assets and liabili-
ties, which are not considered financial assets or liabilities
and for which fair values have not been estimated, include
premises and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles,
deferred taxes and other liabilities.
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The following table presents a summary of the
Company’s remaining financial instruments, as defined

by FAS 107:
(in millions) December 31,
2001 2000
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Mortgages held for sale $ 30,405 $ 30,405 $ 11,812 $ 11,812
Loans held for sale 4,745 4,828 4,539 4,637
Loans, net 168,725 167,400 157,396 154,379
Nonmarketable equity investments 4,062 4,239 4,142 4,435
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits $187,266 $187,520 $169,559 $169,535
Long-term debt @ 36,068 37,610 32,019 31,869
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in
Company'’s subordinated debentures 2,435 2,830 935 967
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &3
Interest rate contracts:
Floors and caps purchased S 467 $ 467 $ 184 S 298
Floors and caps written (385) (385) (76) (76)
Options purchased 298 298 106 287
Options written (258) (258) (13) 1)
Swaps 1,707 1,707 177 427
Futures — — 141 141
Forwards (90) (90) (245) (94)
Foreign exchange contracts 66 - 66 31 29
Equity derivatives 3 3 — —
Commodity contracts 1 1 1 1

(1) Loans are net of deferred fees on loan commitments and standby letters of credit of $13 million and $9 million at December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

(2) The carrying amount and fair value exclude obligations under capital leases of $27 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

(3) The 2001 carrying amounts are at estimated fair value in accordance with FAS 133.The 2000 carrying amounts include unamortized fees paid or received and
gains or losses on derivative financial instruments receiving mark-to-market treatment.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Wells Fargo & Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity
and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

K?”M@ LCP

San Francisco, California
January 15, 2002
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Quarterly Financial Data

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income — Quarterly (Unaudited)

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2001 2000
Quarter ended Quarter ended
Dec.31  Sept.30  June 30 Mar. 31 Dec.31 Sept.30(0  June 30 Mar.31()
INTEREST INCOME $ 4690 S 4816 $ 4,816 §$ 4,881 $ 4934 S 4870 § 4543 S 4,378
INTEREST EXPENSE 1,258 1.615 1,808 2,061 2,140 2,095 1879 __1.746
NET INTEREST INCOME 3,432 3,201 3,008 2,820 2,794 2,775 2,664 2,632
Provision for loan losses 536 455 427 361 352 425 275 __ 276
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2,896 2,746 2,581 2,459 2442 2,350 2,389 2.356
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposit accounts 506 470 471 428 437 435 428 404
Trust and investment fees 454 424 417 415 421 412 394 397
Credit card fees 216 203 196 181 187 194 175 167
Other fees 323 303 31 307 295 300 266 251
Mortgage banking 394 369 517 391 434 341 336 334
Insurance 221 196 210 118 119 80 17 95
Net venture capital (losses) gains (37) (124) (1,487) 17 203 535 320 885
Net gains (losses) on securities available for sale 154 165 27 117 259 (341) (39) (601)
QOther 216 277 (117) 440 256 99 138 111
Total noninterest income 2,447 2,283 545 2,414 2,611 2,055 2135 2,043

NONINTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries 1,012 1,020 1,018 977 920 945 906 881
Incentive compensation 411 315 265 204 222 271 185 168
Employee benefits 223 223 236 278 247 241 245 255
Equipment 237 217 217 237 307 211 208 221
Net occupancy 259 240 23¢9 237 247 236 233 238
Goodwill 158 156 152 144 141 136 136 117
Core deposit intangible 40 41 41 43 45 46 47 48
Net (gains) losses on dispositions of premises

and equipment — (2) — (19) 3 9) 17) (34)
Other 1,114 977 1,087 895 1,086 947 909 842

Total noninterest expense 3,454 3,187 3,255 2,996 3218 3,024 2852 2,736
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,889 1,842 (129) 1,877 1,835 1,381 1,672 1,663
Income tax expense (benefit) 708 678 (42) 712 707 560 635 623
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 1,181 $ 1,164 $  (87) $ 1,165 $ 1,128 $ 821 § 1037 $ 1,040
NET INCOME (LOSS) APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK $ 1,180 $ 1,160 $_ (81) § 1,161 $ 1124 § 816 § 1,033 § 1,036
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE $ 70 $§ 68 $ (.05 § .68 $ 66 § 48 & 61 S 61
DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMIMON SHARE $ 69 $ 67 $ (05 § .67 $ 65 & 47 5 61 § 61
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE $§ 26 $§ 26 § .24 § 24 $ 24 S 22 & 22 % 22
Average common shares outstanding 1,696.7 _1,7106 _1,7149 _1,7159 _1,7105 _1,707.7 1,682.8 1,696.7
Diluted average common shares outstanding 1,709.2  _1,72692 _1,7149 _1,738.7 17324 _1,7280 17026 1,711.3

(1} Amounts have been restated to reflect the pooling-of-interests accounting treatment of the FSCO Merger. The restated amounts include adjustments to conform the
accounting policies of First Security and Wells Fargo.

28 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA




Average Balances, Yields and Rates Paid (Taxable-Equivalent Basis) — Quarterly (12) (Unaudited)

(in millions) Quarter ended December 31
2001 2000

Average Yields/ Interest Average Yields/ Interest
balance rates income/ balance rates income/

expense expense

EARNING ASSETS
Federal funds sold and securities purchased

under resale agreements $ 2,320 2.19% S 13 S 2,128 5.48% 5§ 29
Debt securities available for sale 3
Securities of U.S. Treasury and federal agencies 2,057 5.97 30 2,808 6.60 46
Securities of U.S. states and political subdivisions 2,055 8.09 39 1,984 7.31 36
Mortgage-backed securities:
Federal agencies 29,424 7.24 512 24,981 7.35 454
Private collateralized mortgage obligations 2,137 7.23 38 1,333 10.01 34
Total mortgage-backed securities 31,561 7.24 550 26,314 7.48 488
Other debt securities @ 3,210 7.62 59 4,205 8.00 ) 65
Total debt securities available for sale ¢ 38,883 7.25 678 35,311 7.45 635
Mortgages held for sale 3) 33,892 6.36 540 11,895 7.74 232
Loans held for sale 3 4,875 5.41 66 4,410 8.59 95
Loans:
Commercial 47,252 6.87 818 48,576 9.48 1,157
Real estate 1-4 family first mortgage 22,221 6.80 378 18,293 7.97 365
Other real estate mortgage 24,494 7.10 438 23,597 8.86 525
Real estate construction 8,053 6.65 135 7,576 10.01 191
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family junior lien mortgage 24,748 8.29 517 17,510 10.67 468
Credit card 6,392 12.51 199 6,160 15.14 233
Other revolving credit and monthly payment 22,904 10.87 626 22,576 12.25 692
Total consumer 54,044 9.88 1,342 46,246 12.04 1,393
Lease financing 9,537 7.35 176 9,984 7.46 186
Foreign 1,602 20.63 83 1,588 21.18 84
Total loans & 167,203 8.02 3,370 155,860 998 3,901
Other 4,709 3.79 45 3,049 6.64 51
Total earning assets $251,882 7.50 4,712 $212,653 9.33 4,943
FUNDING SOURCES
Deposits:
Interest-bearing checking $ 2,002 1.33 7 $ 3,664 2.24 21
Market rate and other savings 87,497 1.24 272 65,404 3.02 497
Savings certificates 26,656 427 287 30,923 5.66 440
Other time deposits 922 4.21 10 4,932 5.98 73
Deposits in foreign offices 5,578 1.99 28 6,327 6.38 102
Total interest-bearing deposits 122,655 1.95 604 111,250 4.05 1,133
Short-term borrowings 41,635 2,25 236 27,253 6.54 448
Long-term debt 34,624 4,45 387 31,336 6.88 540
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in Company's
subordinated debentures 2,291 5.38 31 935 797 19
Total interest-bearing liabilities 201,205 2.48 1,258 170,774 4,99 2,140
Portion of noninterest-bearing funding sources 50,677 — — 41,879 — —
Total funding sources $251,882 2.00 1,258 $212,653 4,03 2,140
Net interest margin and net interest income on
a taxable-equivalent basis (6) 5.50% $3,454 5.30% $2,803
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 14,913 $ 13,758
Goodwill 9,583 9,215
Other 27,552 24,345
Total noninterest-earning assets $ 52,048 $ 47,318
NONINTEREST-BEARING FUNDING SOURCES
Deposits $ 59,597 $ 51,856
Other liabilities 16,015 11,028
Preferred stockholders' equity 62 266
Common stockholders’ equity 27,051 26,047
Noninterest-bearing funding sources used to
fund earning assets (50,677) (41,879)
Net noninterest-bearing funding sources $ 52,048 $ 47,318
TOTAL ASSETS $303,930 $259,971

(1) The average prime rate of the Company was 5.16% and 9.50% for the quarters ended December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.The average three-month London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) was 2.15% and 6.69% for the same quarters, respectively.

(2} Interest rates and amounts include the effects of hedge and risk management activities associated with the respective asset and liability categories.

(3) Yields are based on amortized cost balances computed on a settlement date basis.

(4) Includes certain preferred securities.

(5) Nonaccrual loans and related income are included in their respective loan categories.

(6) Includes taxable-equivalent adjustments that primarily relate to income on certain loans and securities that is exempt from federal and applicable state income taxes.
The federal statutory tax rate was 35% for both quarters presented.
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108 CONNECTED TO OUR PAST

Wells Fargo Direct Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan You can buy
Wells Fargo stock directly from Wells Fargo, even if you're not now a Wells Fargo
stockholder, through optional cash payments or automatic monthly deductions
from a bank account.You can also have your dividends reinvested automatically.
It’s a convenient and economical way to increase your Wells Fargo investment.
Call 1-800-813-3324 for an enrollment kit inctuding a plan prospectus,

Investor Information For more copies of this report, other Wells Fargo investor
materials or the latest Wells Fargo stock price, call 1-888-662-7865.

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting 1:00 p.m.Tuesday, April 23, 2002,
420 Montgomery St., San Francisco, Calif. Proxy statement and form of proxy
will be mailed to stockholders beginning on or about March 20, 2002

Copies of Form 10-K The Company will send the Wells Fargo annual report

on Form 10-K for 2001 (including the financial statements filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission) without charge to any stockholder
who asks for a copy in writing. Stockholders also can ask for copies of any
exhibit to the Form 10-K. The Company wilt charge a fee to cover expenses to
prepare and send any exhibits. Please send requests to: Corporate Secretary,
Wells Fargo & Company, Wells Fargo Center, MAC N9305-173, Sixth and Marquette,
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55479.
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How Wells Fargo survived, reinvented

itself and became one of America’s most
successful companies over a span of 150
years is one of the great stories in American
business history. That story now is told by
award-winning author Philip Fradkin and
Wells Fargo & Company’s chief historian,
Dr. Andy Anderson, in STAGECOACH.

(Simon & Schuster, February 2002)

From Fradkin’s Wells Fargo and the American West:

“Wells Fargo’s early history meandered through and illuminated
the booms and busts of gold and silver mining rushes, the
collection and distribution of mail, the rise and failure of
banks, the Pony Express, overland staging, the building of
the transcontinental railroad, the Civil War and the Indian
Wars, the violence of robbers and gunfighters, the development
of agriculture, the rise of capitalist entrepreneurs, and the
regulation and disbanding of monopolies. In fact, more than
any government agency or any other commercial enterprise,
the history of Wells Fargo mirrored the history of the
American West through the second decade of the last century.”

From Anderson’s Wefls Fargo and the Rise

of the American Financial Services industry:

“The business behind the Wells Fargo brand is a longer tale

of transformation, convergence, and the peculiar American
talent for reinvention. It is a flow of people, money and credit
across the plains, rivers, mountains, valleys, towns, and cities
of America. At times, it moves as slowly as crops grow.
Sometimes it whistles like a straight-line wind across the prairie
and takes shelter in the glow of home ownership. Sometimes it
percolates in the aspirations of small businesses and roars in the
machinery of factories and the commotion of stock exchanges.
Finally, it pulses in nanoseconds, zings along cables, and
bounces off satellites at instantaneous speed over an unpaved
superhighway. By the time the business reaches its hundred
fiftieth year, Wells Fargo is the payments processor, wealth-
builder, business partner, and home mortgage provider for
more than 20 million Americans.”

Soecizl Shareholder Offert Order this stirring history of
Wells Fargo—with over 100 photos—for just $24.95.

Call 1-800-288-2288, or visit www.wellsfargo.com.




OUR VISION

We want to satisfy all the financial needs of our
customers, through our advice and service to help
them succeed financially, be recognized as the premier
financial services company in our markets and be one
of America’s great companies.

NUESTRA VISION

Deseamos satisfacer todas las necesidades financieras
de nuestros clientes, ayudarlos a tener éxito en el drea
financiera, ser reconocidos como la compania de
servicios financieros mas importante de nuestros
mercados y ser reconocidos como una de las grandes
compafiias de norteamerica.
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Wells Fargo & Company
420 Montgomery Street
San Francisco, California 94163

1-800-411-4932
www.wellsfargo.com
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